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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strategy
The business of Wittington Investments Limited {the
‘Group’) Is the managemenl ol nvestments in a wide
range of assets.

The Group's investments are managed in five business
segments, kkeing Luxury Retaii, Real Estate, Hotels, Private
Markets & Other investments and Associaled British Foods
plc {*ABF'}. The latter refers to the Group's 54.5%
shareholding in ABF, which is quoted on The London Stock
Exchange.

The Group takes a long-term approach to investment and
is committed fo Increasing shareholder value through
sound busingss decisions which will deliver sustainable
growth in earnings and dividends,

Given the materiality of the ABF business segment and for
ease of cross-reference to the published financial
statements of ABF, the directors have elected fo provide
additional information in the notes which follow setting out
the confribufion of the ABF business segment to the
consclidated financial statements of the Group. For
clarity, all references to the ABF business segment are
shown injtalics in the notes to these statements and are
consistent with the published financial statements of ABF.

The Garfield Weston Foundation {"The Foundation') is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfleld Weston. As at 17 September 2022, the Foundation
holds 683.073 shares {2021 - 483,073} in Wittington
Investments Limited representing 79.2% (2021 - 79.2%) of
the Group's issued share capital and is, therefore, the
Group's ultimate controliing party.

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £89.9
rmillion {year to 5 April 2022} in support of 1,788 appeals
(2021 £98.3 million in support of 2,129 appeals). The
Foundation accepts appeals from UK registered charities.
No applications from individuals are considered and the
Trustees do not typically fund projects cutside the UK.

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retail comprises Fortnum & Mason plc and Heal &
Sons Ltd, two long-established retailers. The aim for each
of these businesses is t¢ build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long ferm by providing an outstanding
customer experience through all channels and by
developing the product offer. They also aim to develop
their respective digital businesses and, where appropriate,
international activities.

Real Estate

The Group invests in high-quality invesiment properties in
the retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK. it
alsg takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alongside local pariners or sector specialists,
where it can use its patient capital te unlock the potential
in those sites.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy, the Group
invests in hotels with high-quaility real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
lefsure markets.

Private Markets & Other Investments

The Group invests both directly and via externally
managed funds in private equity and private debt
markets. This is a long-term asset class and exposures are

managed o provide a diverse portfolio by sector,
geography and age of company. If also invests selectively
in special situations.

Other investments are principally composed of liquid
investments in short-dated investment grade bonds as well
as lsted equities, which provides porifolio diversification
and enables lIlquidity and portiolic needs 1o be met.

Associated British Foods plc

ABF is a diversified international food, ingredients and
retail group with revenue of £17bn, 132,000 employees
and operations in 53 countries across Europe, southern
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Australia. Further details
can be found in ABF's Annual Report 2022 which can be
found at www.abf.co.uk.

Business Review

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & Mason's financial year encompassed a period
of significant disruption, with the last remaining COVID-19
restrictions worldwide being removed in July 2021 but
followed almost immediately by fractured global supply
chains and a fightening labour market in the UK: by the
start of the war in Ukraine which precipitated rapid
inflation; and by greater economic and political
unceriginty. The Fortnum & Masen team has navigated
this disruption well. The onling channel has attracted many
new custorners 1o fortnum & Mason and is now three
times larger than pre-pandemic level, while physical stores
returned 10 2019 levels of revenue and footfall by the end
of the pericd. Revenue grew 42% to £186.5m (2021
£131.2m); profit before taxation was £5.8m {2027 Loss of
£2.4m) and EBITDA grew to £14.2m (2021: £5.1m}. Capital
investment in the year amounted to £4.9m (£2021: £5.2m}
centred on further improvements in our digital and store
experiences. Closing cash was £17m {2021: £10m}), with nc
debt.

Heal’s

Revenue remained materially fiat at £37.0m (2021:
£38.0m), however the dual challenges of supply chain
and wage inflation drove a 20% reduction in operafing
profit to £1.6m {2021: £2.0m) . The strategic focus of the
company geing forward is to continue 1o build its digital
brand and to combine its online presence with a small
numkber of showrcoms.

Real Estate

One property was sold (West End Retatl Park in Glasgow
for proceeds of £34.2m) driving an increase in cperating
profit to £146.3m {2021; £3.9m). This included an imgairment
charge of £5.6m (2021: £4.2m) in respect of the carrying
value of some of the office and retail properties and a
residential development. Three properties were acguired
during the year with an aggregate consideration of £64m.
QOver the year, 99% of rents were collected {2021: 92%}
comparing very favourably with the sector as a whole.

Hotels

Grand Hotel, Brighton

The Grand Hotel has recovered strongly from the COVID-
19 pandemic, with unprecedented demand in the leisure
market driving record levels of occupancy. Revenue for
the period was the highest in the hotel's history af £17.0m
(2021: £9.2m}. helping the business to record an operaling
profit for the year of £2.7m {2021: £7.1m). In 2021 a third-

Witlington Investments Financial Statements 2022
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party valuation supported a £7.9m reversal of impairment
charges previously recorded in 2019 and 2020.

Richmond Hill Hotel

Richmond Hill Hotel also recovered strongly from COVID-
19 and benefitted from unprecedented demand in the
leisure market, Revenue for the period was the highest in
the hotel's history at £9.2m (2021: £3.9m), whilst current
and future bookings remain strong. A third party valuation
of the property at 17 September 2022 supported a £12.5m
reversal of previous impairnent charges primarily Dooked
in 2020 during the COVID-19 pandemic. This reversal,
together with record levels of occupancy, drove an
operating profit of £13.4m (2021: loss of £1.8m},

Private Markets & Other Investments

Performance of the closed-end funds portfolio has been
resilient during a volatile year. During the year, the Group
commifted fo six new funds with existing managers.

Pertormance elsewhere in the remaining direct portfolio
companies continues to be mixed, with some siill trading
below pre pandemic levels.

Profit after tax for the year for Private Markets & Other
nvestments was £28.3m (2021: £82.2m, including £62Zm
profit realised on the sale of the Company's investment in
Lady of Leisure Investco Limited (holding company for
Sweaty Betty, the athleisure brandj).

Associated British Foods plc

ABF delivered strong revenue and profit growth this year in
a clear demonstration of the benefits of its diversification,
brand strength, and of its commitment 1o disciplined
financing and investment. The performance was
achieved despite pandemic-induced disruption being
followed by high and volatile input cost inflation. ABF's
food businesses continued o play an important role
providing safe, nutritious food in an era of supply chain
disruption and high infiation with revenue increasing by
10% driven by price recovery and with adjusted operating
profit proving resilient. Revenue, margin and profits at
Primark increased significantly as more normal customer
behaviour resumed after the pandemic. Significant
progress was made in building out Primark's digital
capability, which will be a key element in the future
development of Primark. Substantial and volatile input
cost inflation will be the most significant chollenge in the
new financial year, and ABF's businesses will continue to
seek to recover these higher costs in the most appropriate
way,

ABF posted statutcry operating profit for the year of
£1.178m (2021 £808m) net of excepticnal charges of
£206m {2021: £151my}. Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a

£500m share buyback programme on November 8th 2022,

Directors' duties

The directors are required to act in a way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, In doing so, have regard 1o the maiters set
oul insection 172({1} (a] to (f} of the Companies Act 2006.

Stakeholder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
particular issue. Regardless of the legal duties. the
directors consider regular engagement with siakehoiders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through

Z Wittington Investments  Financial Statements 2022

collaboration and to be fundamental to the success of
the group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder groups
with whom engagement is fundamental to the Group's
ongeing success:

1. The Garfield Weston Feundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group Is the Garfield Weston
Foundaiion, a charitable grant-making ody which
supports a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and to ensure that it is in
a position to pay dividends to a level commeénsurate
with the Foundation’s objectives. An additional key
conhcem for the Foundation is that the Group operate
with high ethical standards so as not to undermine the
Foundation's chartable aims and objectives.

2. Governments: The Group is impacted by changes in
laws and public policy. The key issues of concern in
relation to the government are regulatory changes
{including COVID 19 and tax legislation, climate and
environmental related matters and support of
businesses and workers. The directors of The Group
engage with this stakeholder group in various ways
including meetings, responding o requests {or inputs
(e.9. on sustainability reporting guidelines} and
apnlications to participate in government schemes.

3. Communities and the environment: As The Group's
controlling shareholder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in national efforts to mitigate ¢climate
change. This is primarily achieved through the award
of grants to relevant bedies, Through the ABF business
segment, the Group is also engaged in community
relations at o national and internaticnal level and with
the design and implementation of strategies 1o
promote climate change mitigation and a circular
economy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
in various ways including coaching and fraining
programmes ¢gnd community programmes and
schemes.

4. Cusfomers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with customers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, retaill and hotel operalions. The key
issues of concem to customers are health and safety,
products and services, value for money, availability of
products and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations.
The business engages with this stakeholder group in
various ways including customer surveys, labeiling,
social medio and custorner/consumer information
Ines.

5. Employees: Qur people are central fo our success. The
Group employs 133,895 people of which 132,000 are
employed by ABF. Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segment. ABF engages with its employees
in varicus ways including email, health and safety
programmes, intranet, newsietters, surveys, fown halls,
fraining, virtual meetings and nofice boards. The key
Issuas of concern to employees are health and safety,
engagement & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is commifted to an aclive equal
opportunities policy from recruitment and selection,
through froining and development, performance
reviews and promaotions to refirement., If is our policy fo
promaote an environment free from discrimingtion,
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harassment and victimisation, where everyone
receives equal freatment regardless of gender, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disability, age, marital status,
sexual orientation or religion. Al decisions relating to
employment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit. It is our policy that people with disablities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and fair
consideration for all vacancies. We endeavour fo
retain employees in the workforce if they become
disabled during employment. it is the Group's policy to
provide confinuing employment wherever practicable
in the same or an alternative positicn and to provide
appropriate fraining to achieve this aim.

4. Suppliers: Through the ABF business segmenl, Ihe
Group is indirectly dependent on many complex
supply chains operating at an international level. The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices, responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainability. The Group engages with this
stakeholder group in various ways including
conversations {face-to-face or virtual), training,
communicaticns fora, correspondence, press releases
and audits.

Principal decisions

An example of o principal decision taken during the year
that tock stakeholder views into account is the decision to
pay a first interim dividend in December 2021 and a
second interim dividend in May 2022, with the primary
beneficiary of the decision being the Garfield Weston
Foundation and - indirectly — the recipients of the grants
awarded by the Foundation.

As of December 2021, both hotels as well as Fortnum &
Mason, Heal's and ABF's Primark stores were all open
again. All were mostly free of trading restrictions and were
trading well. The uncertainty around future cash flows was
considerably lower than the previous year althocugh the
possibility of further trading restrictions could not be ruled
out.

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of 71.25p per
share in December 2021 which, together with the second
interim dividend paid in May 2022 of 49p per share, made
a total of 120.25p per share for the year. This dividend was
consistent with that for the previous year and is more than
four times covered by the earnings per share of 5146p.

The decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of £3.15
bn at the 2021 year end.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's board reviews annually the material risks
facing the business together with the internal control
crocedures and resources devoted to them.

The principal risks currently identified are:

External Risks: the war in Ukraine and its impact on the UK
and Global economy; events impacting consumer
confidence leading to reduced consumer spending;
movement in exchange rates; wage and materials
inflation; fluctuations in commodity and energy prices;
operating in global markets: health and nutrition
concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chain interruptions and labour
shortages; workplace health and safety; social distancing
rules; product safety and guality; use of natural resources

cnd managing environmental impact; ethical business
practices; and breaches of IT and information security.

Energy and Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group is commitied to making year-on-year
improvements in operational energy efficiency.

ABF's emissions {Scopes 1 and 2) reduced by 2% to 3.11
million tonnes CO2e (2021: 3.14 million tonnes COze). ABF's
energy consumptionreduced by 4% to 21,046 GWh (2021
21,990 GWhj. The principal energy efficiency measures fo
reduce ABF's carbon emissions include the introduction of
energy monitoring systerns; conversions fo LED lighting;
and upgrades to production machinery such as
compressors and boilers to improve efficiencies.

Fortnum & Mason is alse committed {o decreasing its
refiance on the planet's resources and 1§ werking hard 10
ensure that all packaging is either reusable, home
compostdble or fully recyciable by 2024. Forthum &
Mason’s emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) were 1,608.11 tennes
COze.

Corporate Responsibility

The Group's corporate responsibilities centre on those of
ABF. As a diversified internalional food, ingredients and
retal group with 132,000 employees and operations in 53
countries across Europe, southern Africa., the Americas,
Asia and Australia, ABF takes its responsibilities to wider
society seriously. ABF publishes a full corporate
responsibility report every three years, most recently in
2022. Corporate responsibility is a central part of how the
business is run and is incorporated into the day to day
decision making processes. In the Corporale Responsibility
Report, ABF shares informaticon on its anti-bribery and
corruption policy, whistleblowing policy, approcch to
human rights, social matters, environment policy,
employees and diversity. Further information and a copy
of the 2022 ABf Corpcrate Responsibility Report are
available at www.abf.co.uk/responsibility /cr_downloads.

ABF is committed to gender diversity and, across the
business overcll, the gender split is close to equal with 54%
of the workforce last year being female. The Equality Act
2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information} Regulations 2017
were intfroduced in April 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for all of its relevant employees. Further
details for each of the UK legal entities that are required to
report data is published online and submitted to the
Government's Gender Pay Reporting website in
accordance with the legislation. Further information can
be found inin the ABF 2022 Annual Report at

www abbf.co.uk/investorrelations freports.

Being o respensitle company means respecting the
human rights of all the people who interact with the
business, whether they are direct employees, temporary
workers or those in the supply chain. ABF's approach to
human rights and the steps it takes to fry to ensure that
maodern slavery, in any of its forms, is not present within its
operations or supply chains is set out in the 2022 Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businesses have complled their own statements, and all
published statements can be found at
hito:/Avwww.abbf.co.uk /responsibility fresponsibility_policies.

ABF is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics ond compliance with all reievant laws wherever it
does business. Compliance with anti-brioery and anti-
corryption laws 5 an essential part of this and ABF
maintains a robust compliance system which is designed
to respect both the spirt and letter of the relevant laws. A

Wittington Investments Financial Statements 2022 3
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copy of the group’'s Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is
available at
hito:f faserw b co Uk fresponsitility fresponsibility_policies.

Fffective and honest communication is essential if
malpractice and wrongdoing are to be dealt with
effectively. ABF's Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people who feel they need to raise certain issues in
confidence, A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
available at

http://www . abf.co.uk/responsibility fresponsibility_policios.

Fortnum & Mason, as a business that has been around for
over 300 years, sees its primary responsibility as conducting
business today in o way that fruly considers the next 300
years. Fortnum & Mason's strategy is colled Future Matters
within which gre four sustainabliity and social responsibility
pillars: People, Product, Packaging and Planet. These
drive a commitment to doing more things more often to
create long-lasting change, with the help of suppliers,
emplovees and customers. More information is available
in the Fortnum & Mason PLC Annual Directors Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements which can be found at
the Companies House website [hitps://find-and-
update.company-information.service.gov.uk/) .

Geapolitical uncertainty and Russia’s war in Ukraine

The global inflationary impacts of COVID-12 have been
exacerbated by fhe geopolitical uncertainty caused by
Russia's war in Ukraine. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Group does not have any operations or investments in
Russia. Nevertheless. the war has resulted in economic
uncertainty in almost all of the markets in which the Group
operates, and has adversely impacted energy pricing,
commodily costs and supply chains. Our management
teams in all business segments are maonitoring the situation
closely. This is an ongoing challenge and its impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crisis and on geopolitical
repercussions.

A~

Sir Guy Weston 12 January 2023
Chairman

wittington Investments Limitea
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WiK 4QY

Company Number 003646054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and audited
financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 17
September 2022, in cocordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Board considers that the
Group's Report and Accounts 2022, taken as a whole, is
fair, balonced and understandable and provides
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy,

Given the materiality of the ABF {Associated British Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference to
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected fo provide additional informaftion in the
notes which follow setting cut the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consolidated financial stalements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABE business
segment are shown in jtalics in the notes to these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF,

Results and Dividends

The consolidated income statement is on page 11. Profit
for the financial period amounted to £783m (2021; £612m)
and dividands to £104m (2021: £104m). Dividends are
detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial period
attributable to equity shareholders amounted to £445m
(2021: £375m].
Directors
The Directors who held office throughout the year were as
follows:

Sir Guy Weston [Chairman)
Ermma Adamo

Sir Harry Djanogly

Martin Hattrell

Anna Catrina Hobhouse
Charles Mason

Lindsay Pearson
Alannah Weston

Garth Weston

George Weston
Gratham Weston

The Company Secretary was Jennifer Docley.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Group has in place appropriate directors' and
officers' liability insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its executive and non-exec utive directors
amengst others. The directors of a subsidiary company
that acts as frusiee of a pension scheme benefited from a
audlifying pension scheme indemnity provision during the
financial year and at the date of the ABRF 2022 Annual
Report. Other than these, there were no qualifying third-
party iIndemnity provisions provided by the Group or its
subsidiaries during the financial year and as at the date of
the ABF 2022 Report.

Controlling Shareholder Relationship Agreement
Any person who exercises or confrols, on thelr own or
togethear with any person with whom they are acting in
ceoncert, 30% or more of the votes able to be cast at
general meetings of a company are known as a
‘controling shareholder’ under the Listing Rules. The Listing
Rules require companies with controlling shareholders to
enter into an agreement which is intended 1o ensure that
the controlling shareholders comply with cerfain
independence provisions in the Listing Rules. The Group
and, through their control of the Group. the trustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are conirelling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 November 2014 the Group enferedinto a
relationship agreement with ABF and the trustiees of the
Guilield Weston ocundation containing the required
undertakings, The Relationship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 June 2020.

Controlling Interest
Details of a controlling interest in the shares of the Group
are given in note 32. Other than as noted, so faras s
known, no other person holds or is beneficially interested
in a disclosable holding in the Group.

Engagement with suppliers

The way the Group engages with suppliers is oullined in
the Strategic Report in the section concerned with
directors' duties.

Branches

The Group, through various subsidiaries, has established
branches in a number of different countries in which the
group operates.

Financial risk management
Details of the Group's use of financial instruments,
together with informaticn con our risk objectives and
policies and our exposure to price, credit, liguidity, cash
flow and inferest rate rsks, can be found in note 28.

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the
recsonable steps that he /she cught to have taken as a
director io make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is
aware of that information. For these purposes, relevant
cudit information means information needed by the
auditer in connection with the preparation of its report on
pages 8-10.

Wittingtan Investments Fnancial Statements 2022
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Auditors Lendon

In accordance with section 485(4) of the Companies Act WIK 4QY

2006, a respluﬂon for the refop.poimmem of Ermst & Young Company Number 00366054
LLP as auditors of the Group will be proposed of the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

Maintaining effective corporate governance is
fundamental to the Board's abllity to discharge iis duties
to shareholders.

The Board considers that the Group has, throughout the
52 weeks ended 17 September 2022, applied the main
principles and complied with the provisions sef cutin the
UK Corgorate Governance Code.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the system
of infernal control 1o facilitate the identification,
assessment and management of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk is
minimised, that proper accounting records are
maintained, that the financial information used within the
business is reliable and that the consclidated accounts
preparation and financial reporfing processas comply
with all relevant regulatory reporting requirements. The
directors confirm that there is a process for identifying,
evaluaiing and managing the risks faced by the Group
and the operational effectiveness of the related controls.
They also confirm hat ihey have regularly reviewed ihe
system of internal controls.

Going concem

The global inflationary impacts of COVID-19 have been
exacerbated by the geopolitical uncertainty caused by
Russia's war in Ukralne. For the avoldance of doubt, the
CGroup does not have any operations or investments in
Russici. Nevertheless, the war has resulted in economic
uncertainty in almost all of the markets in which the Group
opérates, and has adversely impacted energy pricing,
commaodity costs and supply chains. Our management
teams in all business segments are monitoring the situation
closely, This is an ongoing challenge and its impacts on
the Group's trading and invesiing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crisis and the geopolitical
repercussions. However, the directors believe the Group's
resilience has been evidenced by the year-on-year
growth in prefit and operating cash flows in excess of £1bn
set out in these stafements and that the Group is well
placed to trade through the uncertain times with
adeqguate resources to continue to meet its commitments
when caled. As such these financial statements are
prepared on a golng concern basis (see note 1).

i

:
A~

Sir Guy Wesfon 12 January 2023
Chairman

Wwittington Investmenis Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

& wittington Investments  Financicl Statements 2022
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Statement of directors' responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the group and parent
company financal statements in accordance with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial
year. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law and nternational Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements In accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard
101 '‘Reduced Disclosure Framewaork'.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfied that they give a
frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the group and parent company fingncial statements, the directors are required to:
- select sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
-  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- for the group financial statements, state whather they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the UK;

for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements;
and

- prepare the tinancial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 1o presume that the group and
the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2004, They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open o them to safeguard the assets of the group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other regularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsicle for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, and Corporate Governance statement that complies with that law and those regulations. The directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual report
We confirm that tc the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting siandards, give a frue and
fair view of the assels, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole; and

— the Strategic reperl includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings inciuded in the consolidation taken as whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

A

[
AT

Sir Guy Weston 12 January 2023
Chairman

wittingfon Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00364054
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Witlington Investments Limited (‘the parent company’} and its subsidiaries
{the ‘group’] for the 52 weers ended 17th September 2022 which comprise consolidated statements such as the Group
Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Parent company Balance Sheet, Group statement of cash flows, the Group
statement of comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent statement of changes in equity, and the reloted notes 1 1o
32, including @ summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that nas been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted Internationai Accounting Standards and as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

In cur opinion:

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 17
September 2022 and of the group's profit for the period then ended;

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance wilh International Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK}) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for ihe audit of the
financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Efthical Standard,
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with these requirements,

We pelieve that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concemn

In auditing the financiai statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounling in the preparation ¢f the financia! statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of
the group and parent company's ability 1o continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

- Challenging the assumptions underpinning the Group's forecasts and goling concern periad until January 2024,

— Understanding the process taken by management to evaluate the operational and economic impachs of
macroeconomic factors on the Group and to reflect these in the group's forecasts.

- Considering the downside scenario identiflied by management and assessing whether any other scenarios should be
considered, and the potential impact on the assessment of such scenarios.

- Performing areverse stress test to establish the reduction inrevenue and related impact on cash flows that could
lead to ¢ loss of liquidity.

Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's disclosure conceming the going concern basis of preparation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as ¢ going concern for a period of at ieast 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for
jssue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not o
guarantee as to the group's ability to continue as a going concern.

COther information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, ofner than the financid statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our respensibility s to read the other information and., in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the cudit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a materdial misstatement in the financial statements themselves, f, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required
to repodt that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Acl 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for Ihe financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requiremeants.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the cudit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relatfion to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

- udeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent company financial stafements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by low are not made; or

- we have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set cut on page 7, the directors are responsiole for the
preparation of the financial statemenis and for being satistied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such internat
control as ihe directors determine is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Recsonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not o guarantee that an qudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK] will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied 1o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Explanation as to what exitent the audit was considered capable of detecling irregularities, including fraud
rregularities, including fraud, are instances of nen-compliance with [aws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect iregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from errcr, as raud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detalled below. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests both with those charged with governance of the entity and
with management.

-  We oblained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that the most significant are Internaticnal Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006, the reporting framework [FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Companies Act 2006, GDPR, Bribery Act 2010 and relevant tax
compliance regulations in the jurisdiction in which the Company operates.

- We undersiood how Wittington Investments Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of
management and observing the oversight of those charged with governance. We corcboraied our enguiries
through the review of the following documentation:

o al minutes of board meetings held during the period; and
o any relevant correspondence with local tax authorities.

- We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial statements to material misstalement, including how fraud
might occur by gaining an understanding of the entity level controls and policies that the Company applies. In doing
50 we focused on the value of investments held and designed and executed additional audit procedures to address
the risk of material misstaterment, placing emphasis on testing to third party confirmation.

- Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncomgpliance with such laws and
regulations. Cur procedures involved a focus on journals indicating large or unusual transactions or meeting cur
defined risk criteria based on our understanding of the business and enquiries of management.

Wittington Investments Financial Statements 2022 ?
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the finoncial stalements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at hitps:/fwww frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our audifor's report,

Use of ocur report
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as ¢ body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required 1o stafe to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law. we do noi accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone oiher than the compony and the company's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
Lomt T..«\J [y
AFCFESBFBEFALRE .
Julie Carlyle (Senior siatutory audiior)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Avditor

1 More London Place,
London,

United Kingdom

SET 2AF

13 January 2023
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Consolidated income statement

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

2022 w2
Continuing cperglions role £m Iim
Revenue 3 17,258 14079
Operating costs before exceptional iterms 4 {15,967) (13.195)
Excepfionaliterms 4 (@8  (13]
1,083 733
Share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 13 109 80
frofits less losses on disposal of non-cumentassets W 5
Operdating profit 1,208 818
Adjusted operating profit ) 3 1,456 1,020
~ Profits less losses on disposal of non-curent assets 1é 5
Amortisation of non-operating intangitles 9 (47} (50)
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 4 {5) {3)
! Transaction costfs 4 (6) {3)
;,,EE‘EQE'?PUQUT?TS o e el e _.4 _(208) U
Profits less [osses on sale ond closure of businesses e 5 123 @
Profit before interest 1,185 838
Finance income 6 44 137
Finance expense & (114) (114}
Otnerfinancialincome/lexpense} 6. ... 4 7
Profit before taxation 1.153 852
Adjusted profit before taxation 1,424 1,034 :
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 16 5 ;
; Amortisation of non-operating intangiblas 2 (47) (50) i
I Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 4 {5} (3) :
; Transaction costs 4 {6} (3 ‘
: Exceptional items 4 (206) {151) \
| Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses _ . . B 20 |
Taxation — UK {excluding tax on exceptional items) (64) 81)
- UK [on exceptionalitems} 3 3
- OQverseas (excluding fax on excepticnal items) (243) {196)
- Overseos (on exceptional itermns] L (66 34
e A B7O) (240)
FProfit for the period R .- T - 1
Affributable to
Equity shareholders 445 375
Non-confrolinginferests Ll _ 838 %7
Profit for the period 783 412

Wittingtan Investments  Financial Statements 2022
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the 52 weeks ended 17 Seplember 2022

- - - 2022
Motg £m Em
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement 783 412
Cther comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 825 559
Oeferred fox associated with defined benefitschemes 15 Q99 {144
tams that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss 424 415
Effect of movemenis in foreign exchange 445 {355]
Net {loss)/gain on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidiaries (1} 14
Net gain on other investments heid at fair value through other comprehensive income 4 -
Reclassification adjustment for movements in foreign exchange on subsidiaries disposed - {6)
Movement in cash flow hedging position 28¢ 419 39
Deferred Yax associated with movement in cash flow hedging position 7. 28c {28) 114)
Deferred tax associated with moverment in other investrmenis )] -
Share of other comprehensive ncome of joint ventures ond associates 28 (o
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 48
tems that are or may be subseauently reclassified fo profit orloss 9212 (324]
éthrergc::o.-;}prgheﬁsige in égme fétr fhé p;e-rio;:! ) i li538 21
Total comprehensive income for the period T T T 2,321 703
Altributable to
Equity shareholders 1,281 M9
Non-controling inferests_ . n - - § _ § _ _ .. oo D84
Tolal comprehensive income for the perio 2321 703
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 17 September 2022

T 2022 T oaom
role £m Lir
Non-cument assets
Intangible assets 9 1,879 1,591
Property, plant and equipment 10 5727 5,406
Right-af-use assets B! 2,477 2,674
Investrment property 12 244 214
Investments in joint ventures 13 303 278
Investments in associates 13 89 &7
Employes benefits assets T4 1,393 640
Investmoents 28 142 101
Income fax 7 23 23
Deferred tax assels 15 140 221
Olherreceivables L L . 68
Totalnon-cumentassets 12497 11283
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale 17 45 13
Inventories 18 3,296 2,179
Biological assets i? 105 85
Trade and other receivables 14 1,789 1,388
Derivative assets 28 475 124
Investments 28 1,243 1,093
Income tax 74 63
Cosandeoshequivolents .2 22 2509
Total current assels 9,255 7,454
olasets: ST mm ey
Current liabilities
Liabilities classified as held for sale 17 (14) -
Lease liabllities 11 (320) (293)
Loans and overdrafts 21 {157) {376
Trade and other payables 22 {3,145) (2,432)
Derivative liabilities 78 {205) (34}
Income tax {170) {179}
Provisions 23 (e 7))
Tolal current liabilities o (4118) (3,385
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 11 {2,955) (3.015)
Loans 21 (481) (74)
Provisions 23 (24) {31)
Deferred tax liablities 15 (664) [376)
Empoyeebenefits lobiites . 14 8) (157
Total non-current liobiltes . (4212)  (3.659)
Totallablies .. _ . _(8330)  (7040)
Netassels 13,422 11,697
Equity
Issued capital - -
Share premium 382 382
Other reserves 97 25
Translation reserve 235 119)
Hedging reserve 84 24
Retained earnings 7308 5617
Tofal equlty ofbutable fo eaquiy shareholders 06 e
Non-controling interests o o ) o 5314 4,598
Total equity 13,422 11,697
The financial statemenis on pages 11 to 72 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 January 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:
c‘.l P
l’\’\ Ve kﬁJ
Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Tazz T w0z

bate £m £m
Cash flow from operating activities
Prafit before taxation 1.153 852
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets (18} (51
Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses 23 {20]
Transaction costs 4 é 3
Finance income 6 (44) {137
Finance expense 6 11é 14
Cther financial (incomel/expense 3 (40} 9
Share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 13 (109) (80}
Amartisation 71 76
Depreciatfion inctuding depreciation of ight-of use ossets and non-cash lease adjustments) B1& 845
Reversal of impairment of property, plant & equipment and right-of-use assets (13) (8]
Impairment of investment properties [ é
Exceptional items 4 206 151
Acquired inventory foir value adjustments 5 3
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 14 7
Net change in the fair value of current bioksgical assets (8) (12
Share-based payment expense 26 19 17
Pension costs less contributions 7 4
Increase in inventories (964) (130}
Increase inreceivables (288) (78}
Increase in payables 514 135
Purchases less sales of curent biological assets {4 (1)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions . _ ) ~ . 7 (40}
Cash generaled from opsrafions T T a4y 1711
Income taxes paid _ L = _ . _ ) _ B ; (313 _ (304)
Net cash generated from operating activities o B _ _ ) B B _ o 1ss 1,407
Cash flow from investing activities
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 13 96 63
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (683) 5855}
Purchase of intfangibles (?2) {78}
Saile of property, plant and equipment 30 21
Purchase of investment properties (43} {2}
Sale of investment properties 34 [
Purchase of subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaciates (154) {57}
Sale of subsidiaries, joint venturas and associates 2 38
Purchose of non-current investments {31) 114}
fPurchase)/sale of current investments 27 (122} 130
Interest and dividends received ~ _ o o B & 26 s
Netcashusedininvesting actviies ___ _ _  _ . _ _ __(#7 _ (4@
Cash flow from financing activifies
Dividends paid fo non-contraling interests (180) 126}
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 8 (104) (104}
Interest paid (114) (117}
lease incentives received 44 10
Repayment of lease liabilities 27 {325) [(295)
Decrease in short-term loans 27 (58) (1)
ncrease/{decrease) in long-term loans 27 179 (20)
Purchase of shares in subsidiary undertaking from non-controling interests - (24)
Movement from chongesinownsharesheld — __  _ _ AU i*) B
Net cash usedin financing activies (608 (584
Net {(decrease)/increase in cash and ¢ash equivalents 27 (397) 389
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,423 2,098
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange L o - 74 (64)
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the period T T C 2,000 2423
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Non-

e ”_&ﬂr,it}ulgglgjg equit snareholders -7_" .
Issued Share Other Translation  Hedaing  Retairod contraling Tatal
cazital premium  reserves reserve reserve  earnings Total interecy eaquity
£ £m £m £ £m £m Em Em £m

Balance as af 12 September 2020 o i 382 L 52 1886 13) 8174 6792 4314 11,106
Tolal comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - - - 375 375 237 512
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes - - - - - 304 304 255 559
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes - - - - - 78) (78]  [66) (144
lterns that wil not be reclassified fo profit or loss - - - - - 226 226 189 415
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - {205) - - 1205) (160) (365}
Net gain on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - 8 - - 8 4 14
Reclassification adjustment for movements in foreign
exchange on subsidiaries disposed - - - (3) - - 13) {3) (6)
Movement in cash flow hedging position - - - - 21 - 21 18 39
Deferrad tax nssnciatedd with moveaments in cosh flow - - - - 18} - (8) 16) (14]
hedging position
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures
and associates - - - {5) - - (5} 15) {10
Effect of hyperinflationary economies s - - - - 10 o 8 8
tems that are or may be subsequently reclassified to
pofitorfoss e S P (.0 13100087 (142) (324)
Other comprehensive income == (205) 13 236 44 47 ?1
Total comprehensive income o e S V. ¢ 13 0 611 419 284 703
Invertory cash fiow hedge movements
Gains fransfered fo cost of imventory - - - LA =14 25
Totalinventory cash flow hedge movemeants - - - = 14 - 14 s 25
Transaclions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - - - (104) {104) - (104)
MNet movement in own shares held - - - - - 9 9 8 17
Dividends paid to non-controling interests - - - - - - - (26} (29)
Acquisition of non-controling interasts - - - - - 4 (4 120 (24]
Reclussification of reserves - - L < - - (69 27 2 -
Total fransactions with owners R A R - - Ales_{126] _  (11)__ (137)
Balance as at 18 September 2021 - - 382 85 19} 24 $617 7.0 4,598 11.697
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - - - 445 445 338 783
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes - - - - - 451 451 374 825
Deferred tox associated with defined benefit schemes - - - - - (109 (10%) (?0) (199)
ltems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss - - - - - 342 342 284 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - 240 B - 240 205 445
Net loss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - m - - {1 - (1)
Net gain on other investments held at foir value through
other comprehensive income - - 3 - - - 3 1 4
Movement in cash flow hedging position - - - - 228 - 228 191 419
Deferred tax associated with movements in cash flow
hedging position - - - - (15) - {15) {13) (28)
Deferred tax associated with movements in other
investments - - (U] - - - (1) - ()]
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures
and associates - - - 15 - - 15 13 28
Effect of hyperinfiationary economies - - - = - 25 25 21 48
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit
orloss T m 2 254 213 25 494 418 912
Other comprehensive income ) - - 2 254 213 367 836 702 1,538
Total comprehensive income: - - 2 254 213 812 1281 1040 2321
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransferred to cost of inventory = - - - (153 - (153) (127) (280)
Totalinventory cash flow hedge moverments - - - - (153 - (153) (127) (280)
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - - ~  {104) (104) - (104)
MNet movement in own shares held - - - - - (18) (18&) (15} (31
Deferred tax associated with share-based payments - - - - - (&)] )] - {1)
Dividends paid to non-confroling interests - - = - = - - (180) (180)
Totalfransactions with owners === == f12n 21) (95 (314)
Balance as at 17 Seplember 2022 - 382 97 238 84 7,308 8,106 53146 13422
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Significant Accounting policies
Wittington Investments Limited {the “"Group'} is a private
company limited by shares incorporated in the United

Kingdom.

The consclidated financial statements for the 52 weeks
ended 17 Septemiver 2022 comprise those of the Group,
its subsidiaries and its interests in Joint ventures and
associates.

The directors authorised the consolidated financial
statements for issue on 12 January 2023.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with applicable law and Internalional Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2004 ('UK Adopted IFRS'].

Given the materiality of the ABF (Associated British Foods
plc} business segment and for ease of cross-reference fo
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional information in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consolidated financial statements
of the Croup. For clarity, allteferences to the ABF business
segment are shown in itglics In the notes 1o these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

The directors have elected fo prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable low (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice}, including Financial
Reporting Standard 1071 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’.
These are presented on pages 73 to 78.

Basis of preparation

The Company presents its consolidoted financial
statements in sterling. rounded to the nearest million,
prepared on the historical cost basis except that current
biological assets held by ABF (Associated British Foods plc)
and certain financial instruments are stated at falr value.
Assets classified as held for sale are stated af the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs fo sell.

The preparation of financial statements under UK-
Adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on experience.
Actual results may differ rom these estimates.

Judgements made by management in fhe application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment next year, are discussed in
Accounting estimates and judgements detailed in note 2.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a regular basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised from the period in which the estimates are
revised.

The accounting policies set cut below have peen applied
to all periods presented, except where stated otherwise.

Detdils of new accounting standards which came into
force in the year are set out at the end of this nole.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are
prepared fo the Saturday nearest fo 15 Septermber.
Accordingly, these financiol statements have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 17 Sepiembper 2022
(2021 - 533 weeks ended 18 September 2021).

To avoid delay in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the results of certain subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are included up to 31 August
each year and Fortnum and Mason plc is included up to
10 July 2022. Adjustments are made as appropriate for
significant fransactions or events occurring between 17
September and these other balance sheet dates.

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely
to affect its future development. performance and
position are set out in the Strategic report on pages 110 4.
The Principal risks and uncertainties on page 3 and note
28 on pages 50 to 61 provide details of the Group's policy
on managing its financial and commaodily fisks. The group
has considerable financial resources, good access to
debt markets, a diverse range of businesses and a wide
geographic spread. It is therefore well placed to manage
business risks successfully.

Going concern

The global inflationary impacts of COVID-19 have been
exacerbated by the geopolifical uncertdinty caused by
Russia's war in Ukraine. This has resulied in economic
uncertainly in almeost all of the markets in which we
operate, and has adversely impacted energy pricing,
commodily costs and supply chains. Qur rmanagement
teams in all business segments are monitoring the situation
closely. This is an ongoing challenge and its iImpacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crisis and the geopcelitical
repercussions. However, the directors belleve the Group's
resiience has been evidenced by the year-on-year
growth in profit and cperating cash flows in excess of £1bn
set out in these stafements. After making enguiries, the
directors have ¢ reasonable expectafion that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in cperational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Having reviewed the Board's best estimate of future cash
flow to January 2024, and having applied reverse stress
tests, the possibility that the financial headroom could be
exhausted is considered to be extremely remote. The
directors understand the risks. sensitivities and judgements
inclucled in the cash flow forecast and have a high
degree of confidence in thase cash flows. There is
substantial financial headroom between this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding available to
the Group over the pericd. This is evidenced by the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of
£2.83bn at 17th Septamber 2022 (2021 £3.15bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the resuits
of the Company and its subsidiaries from the date that
coniral commences 1o the date thatl conirol ceases.

They also include the Group's share of the affer-tax results,
other comprehensive income and net assets of its joint
ventures and associates on an equity-accounted basis
from Ihe point at which joint control or significant
influence respectively commences, to the date that it
ceaqasss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Significant Accounting policies continucd
Subsidiaries are entities controllad by the Company.
Conltrol exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, to direct the activities of an entity so as to
affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changes in the group's ownership interest In a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
within equity.

Allthe group's joint arrangements are joint ventures,
which are entities over whose activities the Group has joint
control, typically established by contractual agreement
and requiring the venturers’ unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Associates are those enftities in which the group has
significant influence, being the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy dechkions of the entity, but
which does not amount to control or joint control.

Where the Group's share of l1osses exceeds its interest ina
joint venture or associate, the carrying amaount is reduced
to zero and recognition of further iosses s discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
an investee.

Conftrol, joint conirol and significant influence are
generally assessed by reference to equity shareholdings
and voting rights.

Business acquisitions

On acguisition of a business, the Group attributes fair
values to the identifiable assets, llabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. reflecting conditicns at the date of
acquisition. These include aligning accounting policies
with those of the Group.

The Group finalises provisional fair values within 12 months
of the date of acquisition and, where significant, reflects
them by restaterment of the comparative period in which
the acquisition occurred. The Group measures non-
controlling interests at the propaortionate share of the net
identifiable assels acquired.

The Group remeasures existing equity interests in the
acquiree to fair value ot the date of acquisition, with any
resulting gain or loss taken o the income statement.

Goodwill arising on acguisition of a business is the excess
of the remeasured carrying amount of any existing equity
interest plus the far value of consideration payable for the
additional stake over the fair value of the share of net
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired (including
separately idenfilied intangible assets), net of non-
controling interests. Total consideration does not include
transaction costs, which the Group expenses as incurred.

The Group measures contingent consideration at fair
value at the date of acquisition, classified as a liability or
equity {usually as a liability).

Other than for the finalisation of provisional fair values, the
Group accounis for changes in contingent consideration
classified as a liability in the income statement.

Exceptional items

Exceptionat items are those items that, in the judgement
of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
of thelr nature, size or incidence, Items that may be
considered exceptional in nature include disposals of
businesses or significant assets, business restructurings,
significant onerous contract charges/releases, debt

repurchase costs, certain pension past service
credits/costs, asset impairments/wnte-backs and the tax
effects of these items.

The Group distinguishes between exceptional and non-
exceptional impairments/write-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the impairment, as well as the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers that are deemed 1o
be outside of the control of the Group give rise fo
exceptional impairments, Addifionally, impairment
charges that are of a one-off nature and significant
enough value to distort the underlying results of the
business are considered to be exceptional.

Revenue

Revenue represents the value of sales made to customers
affer deduction of discounts, sales taxes and o provision
for returns. Discounts include sales rebates, price
discounts. customer incentives, cerfain promotional
activities and similar items. Revenue does not include sales
petween Group companies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
obligations are satisfied, goods are delivered to customers
and control of goods is fransferred 1o the buyer.

In the Food businesses of ABF, the Group generailly
recognises revenue from the sale of goods on dispatch or
delivery to customers, dependent on shipping ferms, and
provides for discounts and returns as a reduction to
revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers, taking into account
contractual and legal obligations, historical frends and
past experience.

In the Retail business of ABF, the Group generally
recagnises revenue from the sale of goods when a
customer purchases goods, and provides for returns as a
reduction to revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management’s best estimate of the amount reguired o
meet claims by customers, taking into account historical
trends and past experience.

Borrowing costs

The Group accounts for borrowing costs using the
effective interest method. The Group capitalises
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition,
construction or production of qualifying items of property,
plant and equipment as part of their cost.

Foreign currencies

Individual Group companies record transactions in foreign
currencies at the exchange rale af the date of the
fransaction, and transiate monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies at the exchange rate at the balance
sheet date, with any resulting differences taken to the
income statement, unless designated in o hedging
relationship, in which case hedge accounting applies.

On consolidation, the Group translates the assets and
liabilities of operations denominated in foreign currencies
into sterling at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group translates the income statements of
those operations into sterling at average exchange rates.

The Group records differences arising from the
retranslation of opening net assets of Group companies,
together with differences arising from the restatement ot
the net results of Group companies from average
exchange rates to those at the balance sheet date, in the
transiation reserve in equity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group's pension and other post-employment tenefit
arrangements comprise defined benefit plans, defined
contribution plans and other unfunded post-employment
plans.

For defined benefit plans, the income statement charge
comprises the cost of benefits earned by members and
benefit improvements granted to members during the
yvear, aswell as net interest income/{expense) catcutated
by applying the liability discount rate to the opening net
pension asset or liability.

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value of scheme
iakilities on a scheme-by-scheme basis as nel pension
assets {to the extent recoverable) or fiabilities.

The Group recognises remeasurements and movements in
rrecoverable surpluses in other comprehensive income.

The Group charges contributions payable inrespect of
defined contribution plans to operating profit as incurred.

The Group accounts for other unfunded post-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit plans.

income tax

Income tax on profit or toss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. The Group recognises income
tax in the income statement except 1o the extent that it
relates to items taken directly to eguity.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted for the pericd, together with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

The Group provides for deferred tax using the balance
sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liakilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purpGsas.

The Group does not provide for the following temporary
differences: initial recognition of goodwill; initial
recognifion of assefs or ligbilities affecting neither
cccounting nor taxable profit other than those acquired
in a business combination; and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
orobably not reverse in the foreseeable future.,

The Group bases the amount of defered tax provided on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liakilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
dafe.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and liablities if, and
only 1f, it has alegally enforceable right 1o set off current tax
assets and liabfliies and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different toxable entities
which intend either to settie curent tax labllities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
smultaneously, in each future petriod in which significant
amaounts of deterrad tax fabilities or assets are expected 1o
be settled or recoveraed.
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The Group recognises income fax arising from dividend
distributions at the same time as the liability to pay the
related dividend.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities when it
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
refevant financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables

The Group records frade and other receivables initially at
fair value and subsequently at amaortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which 1s recognised based
on management's expectation of losses without regard to
whether or not g specific impairment trigger has occurred.

Other non-current receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance leqse
receivables due from a joint venture and minority
shareholdings In private companies. The Group accounts
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for trade
and other receivabies.

The Group records minority shareholdings in designated
private companies initially at fair value, inciuding directly
attributable transaction costs, and subseguently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FYOCH.

On disposal of a minority shareholding, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in cther comprehensive
income s included directly in retained earnings. without
recycling it 1o the income statement.

Bank and other borrowings

The Group records bank and other borrowings initially at
fair value, which equals the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs, and subsequently at amortised cost. The
Group gecounts for finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables

The Group records frade payables initially at fair value
and subseguently at amortised cost. This generally results
in recognition at nomina! value.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as valued at amortised cost or fair value through profit
and loss (FVYTPL). The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset's cash flow characterishics
and the business model for managing them. Financial
assets at ecmortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains and losses being recognised in the profit and loss
when the assets are derecognised of impaired. Financial
assets at far value through profit and loss are typically
held for trading and are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in protit and loss. Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence,
control orjoint control are measured at FVTPL.

Casn and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
batances. call deposits and shori-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the Group
includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management as a component of cash and casn
equivalents.
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1. Significant Accounling policies continued
Intangible assets other than goodwill

Non-operating intangible assets are intangizle assets thaf
arise on business combinations and typically include
technology. brands, customer relationships and grower
agreements. The Group acguires operating infangible
assets in the ordinary course of business, typically including
computer software, land use rights and emissions trading
icences.

The Group records Intangible assets other than goodwill at
cost lgss accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on
straight-line basis over the estimated usetul lives of
intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives are generally deemed o be no
longer than:

Technology and brands
Custormer relationships
Grower agreements

Goodwill

Goodwillis defined under 'Business acgquisitions’ on page
17. Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capable of being
recognised in the acquisition balance sheet. In such

—upto t5years
~upto 10vyears
—up to 10 years

circumstances, goodwill is recognised, which may Include,

but is not necessarily limited to, workforce assets and the
berefits of expected future synergies.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment review.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets and property. plant and equicment af each
balance sheel date 1o determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the indicated asset's recoverable
amount. For goodwill and intangibles without a finite life,
the Group does this af least annually.

The Group recognises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Group dlloccates impairment charges recognised in
respect of CGUs first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill relating to that CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value inuse. In
assessing value in use, the Group discounts estimated
future cash flows to present value using a pre-tax discount
rate reflective of current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assat.

For an asset that does not generate largely independant
cash inflows, the Group determines recoverable amount
for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subsequently reverse impairments of
goodwill. For other assets, the Group does reverse an
Impairment charge if there has been a change in the
estimates used fo determine the recoveralble amount, but
only to the extent that the new carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised.

Properly, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment al cos!
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciation to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefut
econemic lives of each item sufficient to reduce it to its
estimated residual value. Land is not depreciated.
Estimated useful economic lives are generally deemed to
be no longer than:

Freehold buildings up to s&years
Plant and eguipment. fixtures and fittings

sugar factories, yeast plants, mills and np to 20 vears

bakeries
- other operations up to 12years
vehicles up to 10years

Sugar cane roofts up to 10years

leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys o
the lessee, in refurn for c payment or a series of payments,
the right to use a specific asset for an agreed period.

wWhere the Group is a lessee, the following accounting
policy applied.

Right-of-use assets

The Group records right-of-use assets at cost at the
commencement date of the lecse, which is the date the
underlying asset is available for use, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
subsequent remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Costincludes the amount of lease llabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives receved.

The Group charges depreciation to the income statement
on a straight-ine basis over the shorter of the estimated
vseful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The Group records lease liabilities at the commencement
date of the lease af the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate af the commencement date
of the lease if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

Lease payments include fixed payments, including n-
substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments
that depend on an index or arate, less any lease
incentives recelivable,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or arate are recognised as on expense in the period in
which the event or condition that friggers the payment
occurs.

The Group subsequently measures lease liabilities at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The Group records the accretion and settlement of
interest through accruals and reduces the carrying
amount of lease liabkilities for the capital element of lease
cayments made.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured
when there s a change in future lease payments due to @
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
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1. Significant Accounting policies continved
fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment fo
nurchase the underlying asset.

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
ar less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option, It ako applies the low-value asset
recognition exemption to groups of underlying leases
considered uniformly low-vaiue.

The Group expenses ledase payments on short-term leases
and teases of low-value assets in the income statement.

Lessor accounting

When subleasing assets, the Group assesses the sublease

classification with reference to the head lease right-of-use
asset, which considers, among other factors, whether the

sublease represents a mgjority of the remaining life of the

head lease.

Tne ratio of rental income to head leass rental paymenis
Is used to determine how much of the right-of-use asset
should be derecognised, taking into account whether the
sublelfnead lease are above or below markel rate.

The Group records amounts due from lessees under
finance leases as a receivable at an amount equal t¢ the
net investment in the lease, calculated using the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of recognition.
The Group recognises any difference between the
derecognised right-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amaounts due from lessees under finance leases in the
income statement.

The Group recognises finance income over the lease
term, reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment in the lecse.

The Group recognises operafing lease income as earned
on a straight-ine basis over the lease term.

Inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost and net
realisable vatue. Cost includes raw materials, direct labour
and expenses and an appropriate proportion of
production and other overheads, calculated on a first-in
first-out basis.

The Group recoerds retail inventories at the lower of cost
and nhet realisable value using the retdll method,

calculated on the basis of selling price less appropriate
trading margin. All retail inventories are finished goods.

On acguisition of a business, the Group records inventories
at fair value. Subsequently, the Group charges the book
value of the inventories to adjusted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant, is
charged below adjusted operating profit as the
inventories are sold or used.

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Impaolrment s determined by reference to the
fair value of property estimated either by independent
valuers or by the directors. Depreciation Is provided where
the direciors consider that the residual valus of major
components of the property is less than current book
value.

The following accounting policies relafe exclusively to the
income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the
Associated British Foods pic (“ABF”) segment within the
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consolidated Group financiat statements of Witfington
Investments Limited.

Share-based payments

The Group recognises the fair value of share awards af
grant dafe as an employéee expense with a corresponding
increase in equily. spreod over the period during which
fhe employees become unconditionally entitted fo the
shares.

The Group adjusts the amount recogriised o reffect
expected and aclual levels of vesting except where the
failure to vestis as a resulf of not meeting o market
condition.

Devivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group primarily uses derivatives fo manage econgmic
exposure 10 financial and commodity risks. The principal
insfruments used are foreign exchange and commodity
contracts, futures, swaps or options. The Group does nof
use derivatives for speculafive purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives at tair vatue based on
markef prices or rates, or calculated using discounted
cash flow or option pricing models.

The Group recognises changes in the fair value of
derivatives in the income sfatement unless the derivative is
designated in a hedging relationship, whern recognition of
the change in fair value depends on the nature of the
item being hedged.

The purpose of hedge accounting is to mitigate the
impact on the Group of changes in foreign exchange or
interest rates and commodity prices.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedged itern, the
risk management objectives and strategy for underfaking
the hedge and assesses hedge effectivensss.

During the fife of each hedging relationship, the Group
performs testing o demonsirate that the hedge remains
effective.

for derivatives used as hedges of future cash flows, the
Group recognises the change in fair vatue through other
carnprehensive income in either the cost of hedging
reserve (for the element of the change in fair value
relating 1o the currency spread)] or in the hedging reserve
ffor the remaining change in fair value). Any ineffective
portion s recognised immediately in the income
statement.

When the future cash flow resulls in the recognition of @
non-financial asset or iobifity, then ot the time thof asset
or liability is recognised, the Group includes the
associated gains ond losses previously recognised in the
hedging reserve in the initial megsurement of that asset or
ficibitity .

When the future cash flow does not resultin the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, the Group
inciudes the associated gains and losses previously
recognised in the hedging reserve in the income
staternent in the same period in which the hedged ifem
affects profit or ioss.

Hedges of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations principally comprise bofrowings in the currency
of the investment’s net assefs.

For derivative or non-derivative financial instruments used
as hedges of the Group's nefinvestment in foreign
operations, the Group recognises the change in fair value
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1. Signiticant Accounting policies conlinuved
through other comprehensive income in the net
investmont hedging reserve, Any ineffective porfion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting when a
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
exercised, or no fonger qualfies for hedge occouniing.

At that fime, the Group retains the cumuiative associated
gain or foss recognised in the hedging reserve until the
forecast fronsaciion occurs. Gains or Josses on hedging
instruments relating to on underlying exposure that no
fonger exists are taken to the income statement.

The Group econamically hedges foreign currency
exposure on recognised monefary assets and fiabifities but
does not normally seek hedge accounting, The Group
records any derivatives held to hedge this exposure at fair
value through profit and foss.

Research and development

The Group expenses resegrch ond development
expenditure as incurred, unless development expenditure
relates to products or processes which are technically and
commercially feasible, in which case it is capifalised. The
Group records capitalised development expenditure at
cost less accumufated amoriisation and impairment
charges.

Current Biological Assets
The Group records current biological assefs af fair value
fess costs to sell

The basis of valuation for growing cane is estimated
sucrose content valued af estimated sucrose price for the
following season, fess the estimated costs for harvesting
and rransport.

When harvested, growing cane is fransferred to inventory
at fair value fess costs to sell.

Grants

The Group recognises grants only when there is
reasonable assurance thaf the Group will comply with the
condifions attached and that the grants will be received.
Granis receivable as compensation for expenses already
incurred are recagnised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivabie.

Hyperinfiation

The Argentinion economy was designated
hyperinflationary from 1 July 2018, In the current financial
year, the Turkish economy was designated
hyperinflationary from 1 Jufy 2022,

The Group has applied IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies to the Group's Argentinian
operations from the beginning of the 2019 financial yea
rand for its Turkish operations from the beginning cf the
2022 financial year, IAS 29 requires that hyperinflationary
adjustments are reflected from the start of the reporting
period in which it is applied. For the Group's Argentinian
operations this was | September 2018, and for the Group’s
Turkish operaticons this was 1 September 2021.

In accordance with IAS 21 The fifects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates, the comparative figures for 2021
for the Turkish operations have notf been modified. The
adjustments required by 1AS 29 are sef out below;

- adjustment of historical cost non-monetary assets and
liabllities from their date of initial recognition to the
balance sheet date to reflect the changes in

purchasing power of the curency caused by inflation,
according to the official indices published by the
Federacién Argentina de Consejos Profasionales de
Ciencias Econdmicas (FACPCE} and for Turkey
published by Turkish Stafistical Instifute {'TUIK'};

- gdjustmenf of the components of the income
statement and cash flow statement for the inflation
index since fheir generation, with a balancing enfry in
the income statemenf and a reconciling ifem in the
cash flow statement, respeciively;

- adjustment of the income stafernent to reflect the
impact of inflation on holding monetory assets and
figbifities in local currency;

the financial statements of the Group's Argentinian
and Turkish operations have been translated into
sterling at the closing exchange rate ot 17 September
2022 (ARS 164.02:£1; TRL 20.89:£1}; and

- the cumulative impact corresponding 1o previous
years has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the vear.

the cumulative impact corresponding 1o previous
years has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the year.

In Argenting, the FACPCE index was 510.3942 at 31 August
2021 and 911.1316 af 31 August 2022, The inflation index
for the year is therefore 1,7852.

InTurkey, the TUIK index was 1925 at 31 August 2021 and
8021 at 31 August 2022, The inflafion index for the year is
therefore 4.167.

The Venezuelan economy has been designated
hyperinflationary for a numiber of years, but the impacit on
the Group's results remains immaterial,

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and amendments
were adopted during the year and had no significant
impact on the Group:

- Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Confracts — Exfension
of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9;

- Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases (COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021); and

- Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 14
Interest Rate Benchmark Beform — Phase 2. Financial
authorities have announced the fiming of key interest
rate benchmark replacements such as LIBOR in the UK,
the US and the EU and other territories, with remaining
USD tenors expected 1o cease in 2023.

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpretations and amendments that are not
yet effective. Where already endorsed by the UKEB, these
changes will be cdopted on the effective dates noted.
Where not yet endorsed by the UKEB, the adoption date is
less cerfain:

Amendments fo IFRS 3 Business Combinations effective
2023 financial year;

Amendment to IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments effeclive
2023 financial year;

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
effective 2023 financial year;

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts effective 2024 financial
yedr;
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- Amendments o IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Curent or
Non-current effective 2024 financial year (not yet
endorsed by the UKEB):

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS
1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) effechive 2024
financial year (not yet endorsed by the UKEB);

52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
Definition of Accournting Estimates {Amendments to
IAS 8) effective 2024 financial year (not yet endorsed
by the UKEB};

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from @ Single Transaction {Amendments to 1AS 12)
effective 2024 financial year (not yet endorsed by the
UKEBJ;

— Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use [Amendments to 1AS 14) effective 2023
financial year. and

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
[Amendments o IAS 37) effective 2023 financial year.

In applying the accounting pcolicies deiailed on pages 16
to 22, the directors have made estimates in a number of
areas. Tne actua ouicome may difter from those
estimates. Key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
Daiance sheet date, with the potenhal for material
adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities
within the nexi financial year, are sel out below.

Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying values of a number of items on the balance
sheet are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group’s operations and investments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted to arfive ol
a net present value.

Assassment for impairment involves comparing the book
value of an asset with its recoverable amount (being the
higher of vaiue in use and fair value less costs fo sell).
value in use is determined with reference o projected
future cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate. Both
the cash flows and the discount rate invelve a significant
degree of estimation uncertainty.

Further details are included in note 9 for intangible assets,
note 10 for property, plant and equipment and note 12 for
investment property.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits, The Group
recognises deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
considered probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
avcilable in the future. This involves a significant degree of
estimation uncertainty.

When considering sources of future taxable profit, the
Group firstly considers existing deferred tax llabilities.
However, the majority of deferred tax assels are
recegnised based on future profit forecasts, including the
deferred tax assets in ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdom, the United States, Australia, Germany
and Spain.

When relying on profit {orecasts, the assessment of
whether to recognise deferred tax assets is based on the
following year's budget and expeciations of the future
performance of individual businesses {or groups of
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businesses in the case of national tax groups). Where
possible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairment assessments. Forecasts for impairment
assessments are discounted, but this is not permitted for
recagnilion of deferred tax assets.

Deterred tax assets are reduced when it is no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

The widaespread nature of the ABF's activities across
multiple jurisdictions means that if is not practical to
provide detalled sensifivities in raspect of individual
deferred tax assets.

Further detoils of deferred tax assets are included in note
15.

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
1AS 19 Employee Benefils. The accounting valuations,
assessed using assumptions determined with independent
aciuarial advice, resulfed in o significant net surplus os of
17 Septemper 2022, principally relating to the UK defined
penefit scheme, which is separately disclosed.

The neft surplus is highly sensitive to the market value of
scheme assets, to discount rates used in assessing
liakilities, to actuarial assumptions {(including price
inflation, rates of pension and salary increases, morlatlity
and other demographic assumptions} and to the level of
contfributions.

Further delqils are included In note 14, including
associated sensitivities.

The following accounting estimates and judgements refate
exclusively to the income, expenditure, assefs and
liabilities of the Associafed British Foods plc ("ABF”)
segment within the consolidated Group financial
statements of Wittington Investments Limifed.

Biclogical assets

In valuing growing cane, estimating sucrose content
requires the Group o assess expected cane and sucrose
yields for the following season considernng wedather
condifions and harvesting programmes. Estimating
suCrose price requires the Grou,o fo assess into which
markets the forfhcoming crop will be sold and assess
domestic and export prices as well as refated foreign
currency exchange rates. The carnying value of growing
cane and associated sensitivities is disclosed in note 19.

Income tax

The Group is exposed fo o range of uncertain fax
positions. It provides for open tax matters, where it
befieves it is probgbie that payments will be required,
including those for routine tax audits, which are by nature
complex and may take a number of years to resolve.
Uncertainty is driven by the resolution of fhe issue and
estimation process in arrving at the amount. The Group
has recognised pofential current corporate tax liabiities
for g number of uncertain tax posifions, none of which are
individually material. The provision for these uncerfain fax
positions was 2022 - £10Z2m (202} - £100m)j. the majority of
these provisions relate to fransfer pricing risks across a
number of jurisdictions in which the Group has operations.
Transfer pricing is a complex areq with resolution of
matters taking many years. Given the underlying nature of
these risks. the timing of when they will resolve is uncertain.
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The Groun has applied IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income
Tax Tregiments to measure uncertain 1ax positions. The
Group calculates each provision using management’s
best estmate of the liability based on interpiefalion of fax
law in each jurisdiction and ongeing moniforing of tax
cases and rulings. The Group believes it has adeguate
provision for these matters, Final conclusion of each
matter may result in an oufcome different to any amounts
provided, but the Group has concluded that this is unlikely
to have o material impact,
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3. Our businesses
ABF has five operafing divisions, as described below, plus Central ABF. These are ABF’s operating divisions, based on the
management and internal reporting structure, which combine businesses with commaon characteristics, primarily in
respect of the type of products offered by each business, but giso the production processes involved ond the manner of
the distribution and sale of goods.

inter-division pricing Is detfermined on an arm's length basis. Division result is adjusted operating profif, as shown on the
face of the consoiidated income statement. Division results include items directly atfributable to o division as well s
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. ABF is comprised of the following cperaling divisions:

Grocery

The manufacture of grocery products, including hot beverages, sugar and sweeteners, vegetable oils, balsarmic
vinegars, bread and baked goods, cereals, ethnic foods, and meat products, which are sold fo retail, wholesale and
foodservice businesses.

Sugar
The growing and processing of sugar beet and sugar cane for sale to industrial users and fo Sitver Spoon, which is
included in the Grocery segment.

Agriculture
The manufacture of animal feeds and the provision of other products and services for the agricutture sector.

Ingredients
The manufacture of bakers’ yeast, bakery ingredients, enzymes, lipids, yeast extracts and cereal specialities.

Retgil
Buying and merchandising value clothing and accessories through the primark and Penneys retafl chains.

In addition to ABF, ihe Group presents the revenue and adjusted operating profit of 'Luxury retaill’ and *Other', The latter
includes the Group's 'Real Estate’, 'Hotels’ and ‘Private Markets & Other Investments’ business segments, none of which
are individually material for separate disclosure. For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit is a key measure used in the ABF performance framework as outlined in the ABF remuneration
report on page 126 of the ABF consolidated financial statements. Adjusted operating profit is stated before amortisation
of non-operating intangibles, tfransaction costs, amortisation of fair value adjustments made to acguired inventory,
profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and exceptional itemns.

ltems defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and associates are ako treated as adjusting items for the
purposes of adjusted operating profit.

A recenclliation of this measure is provided on the face of the consolidated income statement.

. RQ@[@? . : Ad@ppe(o‘ing pr(;fir
2022 2021 2022 2071
£m Fatil £m &m
Grocery 3,735 3,595 379 413
Sugar 2046 1,650 162 152
Agrculture 1722 1.537 47 44
Ingredients 1,827 1.509 159 151
Retoil 7.697 5,593 756 321
CermalAge o - Y () R v
ABF Total 16,997 13,884 1,435 1.0
Luxury retait 224 146% 7 [l
oher __ R 7 2 14 0
Group Total ) ' 17258 14079 1,456 1.020
o o - o o ‘Revenue L
2022 2021
£m £m
Geographical information
United Kingdom 6,428 5,148
Europe, Middle East & Africa 6,292 4,945
The Americas 2,029 1.679
Asia Pacific L e 2,309 2,287
Group Total 17.258 14079
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4. Operating costs

_ A& __ ComoidaedGoup _ _.
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £m £m £m £m
Operating cosis
Costs of sales [including amortisation of intangibles) 13,219 10,753 13.349 10,854
Distribution costs 1,465 1.303 1,481 1,317
Administration expenses 1,045 Q52 1,139 1,024
Excepliono! items e 206 151 206 151
15,935 13,159 16175 13,346
Operating costs are stated after charging/({crediting):
Employee benefits expense 5 2,812 2,639 2,875 2,687
Armortisation of nan-operating infangibles 9 44 48 44 48
Amortisation of operating intangioles 9 24 26 27 8
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 5 3 5 3
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets (7) {4) (18) (5)
Depreciation of owned property, plant & equipment 10 521 535 530 544
Depreciation of right-of-use assets and nan-cash lease 281 288 286 301
adjustments 11
Impairment of property, plant & eqguipment and right-of-use - - (13) {8}
assets
Impairment of investment property 12 - - [ 6
Transaction costs ] 3 [ 3
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 14 7 14 7
Other operating income (25) {23) (31 {26)
Research and development expenditure 37 34 37 34
Fair value gains on financial assets and liabilities held for trading (23) {13) (23) {15)
Fair value losses on financial assets and labllities held for 17 12 17 12
frading
Foreign exchange gains on operaling activities (38) {31) (37) {31}
Foreign exchange losses on operating activities 37 33 37 33

Transaction costs of £6m and amortisation of non-cperating intangibles of £47m (2021 — £3m and £50m} shown as
adjusting items in the income statement, include £nil and £3m respectively (2021 — £nil and £2m respectively] incurred by

joint ventures, in addition 1o the amounts shown above.

Audilor's remuneration T TAw T DT ComaidaledGroup _
2022 202 2022 202°
£m £ £m £
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associales in respect of the
audit
Group audit of these financiai statements - - 0.2 0.2
Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation %2 &4 98 85
Total audit rernuneration 9.2 8.4 10.0 87
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its assaciales in respect of hon-
audit related services
Auditrekated assurance services 0.4 0.4 04 0.4
Allothersenvices | IR 05 03 o5 _ _ _03
Total non-audit relate remuneration 0.9 0.7 Q.9 0.7
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4. Operating costs continved
Excepfional items

2022

The income statement this year included an exceptional charge of £206m comprising non-cash wiite-downs of £72m
against praperty, plant and equipment and o write-down of £134m of right-of-use assefs relating fo the capitalisation of
store leases for Primark. ABF first entered the German market in 2009 and achieved very high sales densities in the early
stores. ABF then cpened stores in many city cenires with a retail seifing space much larger than the average for the rest
of the Primark estate. However, sales densifies declined in the later years up fo the 2019 financial year ond, weaker
frading in the second halff of this financial year, porticularly in Germany, has made it very unlikely that sales densifles wili
recaver to pre-COVID levels. In addition, Germany is a high cest te serve market for retailers. As o consequence, the
future cashflows in ABF's revised store forecast for Germany af the financial year end requires us ta recognise an
impairment which has been freated as exceptional in these financial stafemants, ABF remain committed fo our loyal
custorners in this important market and we are now reviewing options fo refurn ocur business in Germany to long-term
profitability. These options include the potential to optimise the retail seling space by store as well as reviewing the
footprint of the overall store portfolio. Ao £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total fax
charge for this inancial yvear was the de-recognition of the deferred tax assefts relating fo Germany.

2021

Exceptional items of £151m comprise impairments of £141m in property, plant and equipment at Azucarera and other
sugar businesses, a £21m inventory charge in Primaik, the reversal of £20m of the £22m Primark invenicry provision raised
frt 2020, a £5m provision for excessive stock of COVID-19 related items in Primark and o £4m pension past service cost
following o further High Court ruting on 20 November 2020 regarding the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions.
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5. Employees and directors

Y
2022 2021
£m &m
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 41,526 42,6596 43,086 44,070
Europe & Africa 73,155 67,481 73.155 &7 681
The Amernicas 6,102 4,081 6,102 4,081
Asapacfic 11490 11454 nssz 11516
132,273 127,912 133,895 129,348
T s comsolidalesGuus
2022 2021 2022 02
Mate £m £m £m £rm
Employee henefits expense
Wages and salaries 2,350 2.209 2,406 2,251
Social security contributions 3n 282 314 284
Contributions to defined confribution schemes 14 87 8! 89 83
Charge for defined benefit schemes 14 45 50 45 50
Equity-seffied share-based paymentschemes . 19 7 w7
2812 2,639 2,875 2,687
o T T 2022 2071
£°000 £000
Directors’ remuneration
Aggregate directors' emaoluments 6,095 4,802

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £2,286,000 {2021: £3,329.000). He is a member of a group
pension scheme and his annual accrued pension at the period end was £719,918 (2021: £693,361).

;ﬁljmbér of drectors

2022 202
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under:
Defined benefit schemes 4 4
&. Interest and other financial and expense
S e e L e L. Comgidated Goup
2022 2021 2022 2021

Note £m £ £m £m
Finance income
Cash and cash equivalents 19 ? 24 12
Gain on sales of investments’ - - - 62
Fair value gains on investments - - 18 59
Dividends receivable - - 2 4
R 9 44 137
Finance expense
Bank loans and overdrafts (20) {148) (20) {17)
Al other borrowings (8 {10 (8) {10)
Fair value losses on investments - - (4 {1
Lease lickilities {81) {84) {82) {85)
Other payables , S S €] (1 2 ()
A o) UD (114
Cther financial (expense)/income B
interest income on employee benefit scheme assets 14 84 69 84 69
nterest charge on employvee bensfit scheme liabilities 14 (74) {69) {74) 169)
interest charge on irecoverable surplus 14 1) {1 N {1
Net financial income/{expense) in respect of employee
benefit schemes 9 1] % {1
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on financing activities 4 - o (&)
Total other financial income/{expense) 13 1] 40 9)

During 2021 the Company sold its investment in Lady of Leisure Investco Limited, receiving proceeds of £79m.
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7. Income tax expense

Consolida’ed GR;:

ABE
2022 2021 2022 202%
£m £ £m £
Current tax expense
UK - corporation tax af 19% (2021 - 19%) 44 44 55 51
Ovearseas — corporation tax 244 208 244 208
UK — {over) funder provided in prior penods {12) v {13) 12
Overssas — under/{over) provided in prior periods ) L 1 _19) 1 9
T ' oo 254 287 262
Deferred tax expense
UK defered tax 18 13 22 19
Overseas deferred tax 72 137} 72 137)
UK — over provided in prior periods 3 13} (3) {4}
Overseas —overprovidedinprior pericds 8 T )] -
P _ 7 7 8 (22)
Total income fax expenseinincome stoferent L A A 240
Reconciliation of effective fax rate
Profit before taxation 1,076 725 1,153 852
Less share of profit after fax from joint ventures and associotes I {5/ A e) (80}
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associates B B 987 _ b4s 1,044 772
Nominaltax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021 - 19%) 184 123 198 147
Effect of higher and lower taxrates on overseas earnings 4 33 4 33
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income statement 2 17 3 19
Expenses not deductible for tax purpcses 63 51 60 47
Disposal of assets covered by tax exemptions or unrecognised capital losses é {3) é {15)
Deferred tax not recognised 120 ? 19 7
Adjustrments in respect of prior periods {23) {3) {23) m
Othertax adjustments . - - _ .3 3
el el 36wy 30 240
Income tax recognised directly in equity
Deferred tox associated with defined benefit schemes 198 144 199 144
Deferred tax associated with share-based payments ] - 1 -
Deferred iox associated with movernents in cash flow nedging position 28 14 28 14
Deferred tax associated with movements in other investments _ 1 - 1 -
- 228 158 229 158

The UK corporation tax rate of 19% is set o increase fo 25% from 1 April 2023. The legislation 1o effect these changes was
enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deterred fax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 2019 the Eurcpean Commission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's controlled

foreign company legisiation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Ald rdles in certain
circumstances. The Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decision as might other UK-based
multinational groups that had financing arangements in line with the UK's legislation in force at the time. The UK
Government, the Group and a number of other UK companies appedaled against this decision to the General Court of
the European Union (*GCEU’). On 8 June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commission's original decision. As a
result of this. in August 2022, the UK Government, ihe Group and various oiner UK comparnies appealed GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the Ewropean Unicn. We have calculated our maximum potentical liability 10 be £26m (2021
£26m}, however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on our current
assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revanue & Customs ['HMRC'], we made
payments to HMRC in the prior year. Our assessment remains that no provision is required n respect of this amount, we
wili continue to consider the impact of the Commission's decision on the Group and the potential requirement to record
a provision.

Deterred taxation batances are analysed in note 15.
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8. Dividends

2022 22
petice per pence per 2022 2321
share share £m £
First irderim 71.25 71.25 62 462
Secondintedm o 49.00 4900 42 42
120.25 120,25 104 104

9. Intangible assets

-..__Conspldated Group

_""!:JDH-ODGFOTIHQ 7 Operorr\n&ii 7
Customaer Srowwer
Goodwill'  Tecknology Brangs  relationsmps  agreemesnts Oher Other Total
£m £mr £rm £m £m Em £ £m

Cost
At 12 September 2020 1.281 210 441 281 103 5 545 2,886
Acqguisitions — externaly purchased - - - - - - ?8 28
Acquired through business combinations - 14 - 3 - - | 20
Other disposak - - - - - - {25} (25)
Effect of hyperinflationary econcmies 4 - - - - - - 4
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 49) (12) (12} {13) 6 - {(33) (113]
At 18 September 2021 ' 123 214 429 2717 108 s 406 2,870
Acquisitions — externally purchased - - - - - - 141 141
Acquired through business combinations 85 49 33 6 - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - - [49] (49)
Trarsfer to assets classiied as held for sale - - - - - - (16) (16)
Effect of hyperinflationary economies @ - - - - - - g
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 84 22 26 13 - 33 179
Al 17 September 2022 1414 285 488 290 110 5§ 715 3307
Amorisation and impairment
At 12 Seplember 2020 115 204 363 182 103 5 274 1,244
Amortisation for the year - 2 20 26 - - 28 74
Impairment - - - - - - 2 2
Other disposals - - - - - - {5) {5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (3) {11} {11) 8) 6 - L {40)
Al18 Seplember 2021 T iz 9s 372 200 109 5 286 1279
Amortisafion for the year - 7 22 15 - - 27 71
Other disposals - - - - - - (2) (2)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - - - (4) (4)
Effect of rnovements in foreign exchange 10 19 21 11 1 - 22 84
AY17 September 2022 w22z a5 2 10 5 329 1428
Al 18 Seplemier 2021 1124 19 57 71 - - 320 1591
At 17 September 2022 T T Q292 &4 73 4 - - 38 1,879

i. All Goodwill and Non-operating Intangible assets are ABF assets. Of the total Operating Infangible assets of £386m [2021: £320m), £375m [2021:
£310m) are ABF assets.

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £12m {2021 — £nil) intangible assets classified as assets held for sale

(see note 17). Amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £47m (2021 - £50m) shown as an adjusting item in the income
stafement includes £3m (2021 - £2m) incurred by joint ventures in addition to the amounis shoewn above.

Impairment
As at 17 September 2022, the consolidated balance sheet included goodwill of £1,2%2m {2021 - £1,124m). Goodwill is
allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the

synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwil, as follows:

Prmary reporting

sagmen! within ABF Discount 2022 2021

CGU ar group of CGUs bbusingss segment rore £m £m
Acetum Grocery 12.3% 93 20
ACH Grocery 13.0% 208 174
AB Maur Ingredients 16.2% 289 267
Twinings Ovaltine Grocery 12.2% 19 119
llove Sugar 23.4% 105 104
AR World Foods Grocery 12.4% 79 78
Other {not individually significant} Various Various 399 292
B ' 1,292 1,124
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9. Intangible assets continved

A CGU, or group of CGuUs, to which goodwill has been allccated must be assessed for impairment annually, or more
freqguently if eventfs or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year.

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed by reference toits value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the maost recent budget and reflects management's
expectations of sales growth, operating cosfs and margin, based on past experience and external sources of
information. Long-term growth rates for periods not covered by the annuat budget reflect the products, industries and
countries in which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs, operate.

Management expects to achieve growih over the next three to five yvears in excess of the long-term growtn rates for the
applicakble country of region. In these circumstances. budgeted cash flows are extended, generally 1o between three
and five years, using specific growth assumptions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key assumpiions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate 1o discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes in volumes, selling prices and direct costs.

The cash flow projections have been discounted using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital for each business,
adjusted for country, indusiry and market risk. Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rates used were between 9.8% and 23.4% (2021 - between 9.8% and 25.7%).

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, applied in the value in use calculations far goodwill

allocated to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant to the total carying amount of goodwill, were in a ‘
range between 0% and 6.7%, consistent with the inflation factors included in the discount rates applied {202 1- between

0% and 8.3%).

Changes in volumes, selling prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changes in the
market,

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impdirment testing is dependent on management’s estimates and judgements, particularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows. the discount rates selected and expected iong-term growth rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headrcom under the annual impairment review,

AB Mauri full year trading was lower than the prior year and profitability has been impacted by the challenges of passing
on high levels of input cost inflation to customers, including in hyperinflationary economies {Argentina and Turkey),
compounded by competifive pricing pressures in some of its businesses and currency devaluations. Estimation
uncefrtainty is increased as a result of the multiple locations the AB Mauri division operates in, the macroeconomic
challenges described above, the continued development of new products and any residual impact of COVID-19.
Accordingly, management has again undertaken an impairment review. Detailed forecasts for a period of five years to
reflect the fime required for completion of the business plan were prepared ond management concluded that the
assets were not impaired. The moderate forecast improvement has been driven off successful pricing actions in response
to significant globalinput cost inflation across key commadities, energy and freight in addition to a number of cost
reduction cchions, and continued growth in The global bakery ingredients business. However, the increase in the
discount rate significantly reduced overall headroom. Headroom was $72m on a CCGU carrying value of $1,044m (2021 -
headroom of $232m on a CGU carrying value of $1,003m). The geographic diversity and varying local economic
environments of AB Maurl's operalions mean that the critical assumptions underlying the detailed forecasts used in the
impairment model are wide ranging. It is therefore impractical to provide meaningful sensitivities to these assumptions
other than the discount rate. The discount rate used was 16.2% (2021 - 14.1%) and would have to increase to more than
18.0% {2021 — 16.3%} before value in use fell below the CGU carmrying value. Estimates of long-term growth rates beyond
the forecost periods were 2-3% (2021 - 2-3%) per annum dependent on location.

In light of the supply side inflationary pressures combined with the cost of living crisis faced by ABF's UK Grocery business,
management performed a detailed impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded no impairment was
deemed necessary. Key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include achievement of price increases in
high inflation environments, strategic initiatives in the UK and US markets, implementation of a number of margin
improvement inifiatives, particularly in cost reduction. and conservative volume elasticity estimations. Headroom was
£26m on a CGU canying value of £147m (2021 - headroom of £47m on a CGU carrying value at £164m). The discount
rate used was 12.0% and would have to increase to mare than 13.5% before value in use fell below the CGU canying
value.
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10. Propetly, plant and equipment

Conso calea Grovo

" Tlandand” Plant and Fixt uras and Assets undar 'SrnrlgTédngi
bullkaings riachinery fittings construchon raots Tolal
£m £ £m £ £ £m
Cost
At 12 September 2020 2.864 4,044 4,073 370 84 11,435
Acquisiions — externally purchased 55 50 122 305 10 543
COther disposals {15) (40 110) - - {65)
Transfers from assefs under construction 10 127 77 214) - -
Transfers o assets classified as held for sale [6) (25) - - - {31)
Cffect of movemenisin forcign oxchange (81} {1358 (182, (200 2y {423)
At 18 September 2021 2,828 4,08 4,080 441 92 11,459
Acquisitions — extemnally purchased 40 78 204 421 11 754
Acquired lhrough businigss Ccomloinations 1 1 1 - - é
Gther disposals {14) (3) {20) - (4} {41)
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 26 [293) - -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (32) (53) (2) - - {87)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ] 23 119 37 . 6 483
At 17 September 2022 2,954 4,431 4,478 806 105 12,574
Depreciation and impairment
At 12 September 2020 760 2,688 2,176 - 43 5.667
Depreciation for the yeaor 53 180 303 - 8 544
Impairment 24 12 3 - - 139
Reversal of impairment of Brighton Grand hotel 8) - - - - (8]
Reversalimpairment on sale and closure of
business 3) 7] - - - 110)
Other disposals {7) [36) {8) - - {151}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 3) (18 - - - (21
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (24) 85 (98] - . -4
At 18 September 2021 792 2 834 2.376 - 51 4,053
Depreciation for the year 48 176 296 - 10 530
Impairment (4) - 72 - - 66
Impairment on sale and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
Other disposals M - (19} - (4} (24)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sake 117) (60) 2) - - (7%}
Effect of movementsin foreign exchange 35 160 73 - 3 21
At 17 September 2022 o o ~ 862 37129 2796 - &0 6847
Net book valve
At 18 September 2021 2,036 1,184 1,704 441 41 5,406
At 17 September 2022 2.092 1,302 1,482 606 45 5,727
e o T 02 0 w21
£m £rr
Capital expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 364 307

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £18m (2021 - £10m)} of property, plant and equipment classified
as assets held for sale (see note 17). Of this, £18m (2021 - £3m)] is freehold land and buildings.
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’ Vif?'md ana ’ Pram'i- Frxturas r)ncA.‘E: __A_i ;‘efs uﬂdi-r Sug‘a}mn
buidingy machinery fiitnggs construc Hon racts Tata!
£m £ £ £ £ £m

Cost
Al 12 September 2020 2,743 4,035 4,014 369 84 171,245
Acquisiions — externally purchosed 56 50 i1g 304 18} 539
Other dispasals {15} {40) {8 - - {63)
Transfers from assets under construction 10 126 77 {213} - -
Transfer fo assets classified as held for sale )] {25 - - - {31
Effect of movements in forelgn exchange o8y (138 18y [ - N 2]
Al 18 September 2021 2,707 4,008 4,019 440 2 11,2468
Acquisitions — extemally purchased 32 76 203 471 T 743
Acquired through business combinations ! 4 I - - 6
Other disposals {14} 13 {17} - {4) {38
Transfers from assets under construchion 33 164 26 {293) - -
Transfer to assets classified as heid for sale {32) {53} {2) - - {87}
Effect of movementsin foreign exchange 98 223 e ¥ 6 _ 483
At 17 September 2022 2,825 4419 4,419 605 105 12,373
Depreciation and impairment
At 12 Sepfember 2020 721 2,687 72,148 - 43 5594
Depreciation for the year 51 180 206 - 8 535
Impairment 24 Hz 3 - - 139
Revensal of impaoirment on sale and closure of {3 (7] - - - {10}
business
Other disposals {7) {34 {6 - - {4%9]
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale {3} {18} - - {21]
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (24 (861 [98) - - {208}
Af 18 September 2021 759 2.827 2.343 - 5] 5,980
Depreciation for the year 47 174 290 - 10 521
Impairment - - 72 - - 72
Impairment an sale and ciosure of business I 9 - - - 30
Other disposals ) - {7} - f4) {22}
Transfer {to) ffrom assels classified as held for sale {17) &) 2} - - 79}
Effect of movementsinforeign exchange 35 160 74 S 3 L2
At 17 Septemper 2022 ~ 8m 3120 2760 - &0 6774
Nef book valuve -
At 18 September 2021 1,948 1181 1,676 440 41 5,286
Al 17 Seplember 2022 1,991 1,299 1.659 605 45 5,599
impairment

The methodclogy used to assess property, plant and equigment for impairment is the sarme as that described for
impairment assessments of goodwill. See note ¢ for further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal is
higher than value in use. this methodology has been used to determine the recoverable amount. This method uses

inputs that are unobservabie, using the best information avaitlable in the crcumstances for valuing the CGU, and
therefore falis into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.

An impairment of A$150m (£98m) was recorded in 2012 in the Australicn ABF meat business. Following a detailed
assessment, management has concluded that the carrying value of the assets in the meat business is not further
impaired. Headroom was A%46m on a CGU carrying vatue of A$302m (2027 — headrcom of A%63m on a CGU carrying

value of A$292m). The discount rate used was 11.9% (2021 - 8.5%). Estimates of long-ferm growth rates beyond the

forecast periods were 2.0% (2021 -2.0%) per annum. A sensifivity of +/- 1% on the discount rate decreases/increases

headroom by A$53m either way (2021 - A$51m either way respectively).
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for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

10. Property, plant and equipment continued

The income statement this year included an exceptional charge of £206m comprising non-cash write-downs of £72m
against property plant and equipment and a write-down of £134rm of right-of-use assets relating fo the capitalisation of
Primark Germany store leases. ABF first entered the German market in 2009 and achieved very high sales densities in the
early stores. ABF then cpened stores in many cily centres with a retail seling space much larger than the average for the
rest of the Primark estate, However, sales densities declined in the later years up o the 2019 financiol year and, weaker
trading in the second half of this financial year, particularly in Germany, has made it very unlikely that sales densities will
recover to pre-COVID levels. In addition, Germany is a high cost to serve market for retailers. As o conseguence, the
future cashflows in ABF's revised store forecast for Germany at the financial year end requires us to recognise an
impairment which has been treated as exceptional in these financial statements. The impairment models assume that
sales densities will decline for years 2 16 5 of these cashflows. Fstimates of long-ferm growth rates beyond the forecast
periods were 2% per annum. Key assumptions were revenue growth, sales density projections, assumptions on operating
costs, margin and discount rates. The discount rate used was 8.05%.

The Brighton Grand holel recerded impairment charges in 2019 and 2020 following UK lockdowns friggered by the
COVID-19 pandemic, The hotel has since benefitted from a very sirong UK leisure market following 115 re-opening in May
2021 and o third-party valuation of the property in 2021 supported ¢ £7.9m reversal of the impairment charges previously
recorded. In 2022, the remaining £0.4m impairment against the hotel was also reversed.

11. Leases
Most of the Group's right-of-use assets are associated with ABF's leased property portfolio inits Retail segment.

Right-of-use assets

Consolidated Group

T land éz\d_bullarg_s Sian and macreary Fixtures and Aithings Tetal
£mi £rm £m £

Cost
At 12 September 2020 3,378 47 1 3,426
Additicns 97 8 1 IRE:)
Lease incentives (8] - - (18)
Other movements (5] - - (6}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [157) 2 o 159
At 18 September 2021 3.294 63 2 3,359
Additicns 161 10 - 171
Lease incentives (46) - - {46)
Acquired through business combinations 8 - - 8
Other disposals 1) m {1 {3)
Other movements 12 2 - 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 108 ) Y e 1 14
Al 17 September 2022 3,536 74 3,613
Depreciation and impairment
At 12 September 2020 389 17 1 407
Depreciation for the year 283 8 - 301
Other movements - 2) - (2)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (203 - o (2h
At 18 September 2021 452 32 1 685
Depreciation for the year 248 18 — 286
Impaiment 134 - - 134
Other disposals {1} n ) (3)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 3 1 L - ) 34
Al17 September2022 1086 50 - - 1.136
Net book value
At 18 September 2021 B 2642 31 1 2474
Af 17 September 2022 2,450 24 1 2477
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11. Leases continued
Right-of-use assels continved

- L am _
tand and boddings Plant and machinery Fizbures ard firhngs
£fm £m £nt

Cost
At 12 Sepltember 2020 3.345 47 ]
Addifions 7 i8 i
Lease incenfives (18] - -
Ofher movements 16) - -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange . o [157) T |
At 18 Sepiember 2021 T 3267 T e ' 2 3326
Additions 161 o -
Legse incentives {46) - -
Acquired through business combinations 8 - -
Other disposals iy () i)
Other movements 12 Z -
Effect of movementsinforsignexchange _  _  ___der o 2 o
Af 17 September 2022 ) T 3502 ) 76 1
Depreciation and impairment
A 12 September 2020 385 17 !
Depreciation for the year 279 17 -
Other movements - i1 -
Effect of movements inforeign exchange o o {20} i . -
At 18 September 2021 - T osss T 3 !
Depreciation for the yvear 263 18 -
impairment 134 ~ -
Other disposals M) 1) i1
Effect of movements inforeign exchonge %™ _ v o
Ab17September2022 7 Twes T T e T T T T
Net book value
At 18 Septemiber 2021 s o 2,617 - 1
At 17 September 2022 2429 26 1

Impairment
The methodology used to assess right-of-use assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note 9 for further delails.

N the year there was ¢ £134m {2021 - £nill impairment of righi-of-use assetls relating o Primark {included within
exceplional items).
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11, Leases continued
Lease liability

Corsohdgled Group . _

Land and bui\d\nds Plant ond rmachinery Fixrures and fi'rirw-gT-

£ £m im £m
Cost
At 12 September 2020 3,650 35 - 3,685
Additions 92 18 ] 11
Interest expense relating to lease liabilifies 84 i - 85
Repayment of lease liabifity 1359) (19} ) (379)
Other movements (1) | - {10)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [167) {2) - (169)
At 18 September 2021 3,289 34 - 3,323
Aclditions 161 9 - 170
Interest expense relating to lease liabilifies a1 1 - 82
Repayment of lease liability [320) {18) - {408)
Acquisition of businesses 8 - - 8
Cther movements 14 2 - 16
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o7 . - %8
At 17 September 2022 3,260 29 - 3.289
e . ComclidatedGroup
2022 202
£m £m
Current 334 308
Non-curent 2% 3015
U Lo 329 3323
Lease fiabilities comprise £3,275m {2021 - £3,308m) capital payable and £14m (2021 — £15m) interest payable. The
interest payable is all current and disclosed within tfrade and other payables, Repayments comprise £326m {2021 -
£295m) capital and £82m (2021 — £84m} interest.
S R
Land and buwldrgs  Plant ang machmery Fixtures and fiftings Totat!
£m Zm Im £m
Cost
At 12 September 2020 3,620 35 - 3,655
Additions 2} 18 I e
Interest expense relating to lease fabilifies 83 i - 84
Repaymernt of lease liability {354) {19) 11 {374)
Other movements f1i) i - {10)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {167) {2 - {169)
At 18 September 2021 3,262 34 - 3,296
Addlitions 141 9 - 170
interest expense relafing to lease labilifies 80 i - 81
Repayment of lease fiability {385) {18] - {403)
Acquisition of businesses 8 - - 8
Other movements 14 2 - 16
Effectof movementsinforeignexchange % T . LT P8
Al 17 September 2022 3,237 29 - 3,266
T T T -
2022 2021
£m im
Curent 330 304
Non-curent o 293¢ 2997
S 3,266 3,296
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11. Leases continved
Other information relating to leases
The Croup had the following expense relating to short-term leases and low-value legses:

ABF. . " Comsolidgren Group,
2022 2021 2022 202,
£m £, £m &1
Land ond buildings - ; — 3
Plant and machinery 2 ! 2 i
Fixtures and fittings - B _ R S 2 _. 1 B 2
3 4 3 4

The Group expensed £1m (2021 - £1m) of variable lease payments that do not form part of the lease liobility. Cash
outflows of £4m {2021 — £2m} hat do net form port of the lease Yiability are expected 1o be made in the next 12 months.

Rental receipts of £4m (2021 — £6m) were recognised relating to operating leases. The total of future minimum rental
receipts expected fo be received is £36m (2021 - £45m}. £11m (2021 - £17m) is due to be received inrespect of sub-
leasing right-of-use assets.

12. Investment property
- I o - . T C.O.\"SCG(SIE‘G ’
Craup

£m
At 12 September 2020 B - ) B ) ) ) ) . S 223
Additions a a T 2
Disposals {3)
Impairment losses ) o B I £
Af)8Seplermber 2021 o - L o o . 214,
Additions B . 63
Disposcils (25)
Impaimentlosses L B - - ~ - (&
Al 17 September 2022 ' 246

Impairment losses were recorded in both 2021 and 2022 to reflect the tair value of investment properties as determined
by an independent value. The impairments were primarlly recognised against properties with tenants operating in the
retail sector, reflecting prevailing market conditions.

13. Investments in joint ventures and associates

I B T Tfomolooled Groue

Jont venfures Associales doint vertures Lssaciates

£m Edr £ £

At 12 September 2020 233 56 238 59

Acguisitions 43 - 40 1
Profit for the period ['s] 13 44 16
Dividends recelved 158) {5 (58] 15)
Effectof movements inforeign sxchange _ L R A —
Al 18 September 2021 T T e &0 278 67
Acquisitions 4 - é -
Profit for the period 0 19 o0 19
Dividends received (88) {5] (88} 8}

Effect of movements in forsign exchange . e [ VAU | SR VA
At 17 September 2022 B T an 85 303 8%

Details of joint ventures and associates are listed in note 32.
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13. Investments In joint ventures and associates continued

Includead in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets,
liabilities and profit of joint ventures and associates:

—— - . .. ConoldgledGrowp
_ Jeintvenfures _ ____ Assgoigles . _Jonfweniures. | .. Associates
2022 2027 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2071
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-curent asseis 202 160 46 38 202 160 48 45
Curent assels 641 441 427 302 643 457 432 310
Curent ligbilities (475) {285) (386) [278] (475) {301} (389) (284)
Non-current liabiities {87) {57) (3 (3 [CES) {57) (3) {5)
Goodwill 20 191 P20 e 1 o]
Net assets 301 278 85 40 303 278 89 67
Revenue 2,165 1,566 1,313 914 2,165 1,574 1,343 923
Profit for the period 20 66 19 13 90 64 1% 14

14, Employee entitlements

The Group operates a number of defined pbenefit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK and
overseas.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to a variety ofactuarial risks including demographic assumptions such
as mortality and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation risk and market (investment) risk. The Group is not
exposed to any unusual, entity-specific or scheme-specific risks. Al schemes comply with local legislative reguirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the *Scheme’), which is
a funded final salary scheme that s closed to new members. Defined contribution arrangements are in place for other
employees. The UK defined benefit scheme represents 90% (2021 — 91%) of the Group's defined benefit scheme assets
and 86% (2021 — 88%) of detined benefit scheme liabilities. The Scheme is governed by a truslee board which is
independent of the Group and which agrees a schedule of contributions with the Company each fime a formal funding
valuation is pertormed.

The most recent triennial funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2020, using the current unit
method, and revealed o deficit of £302m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,317m, representing 92% of
members' accrued benefits after allowing for expected future salary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed using a risk-controlled investment strategy. which includes a liability-driven
invesiment policy that seeks to maich, where appropriate, the profile of the liabilities. This includes the use of derivative
instruments to hedge inflation, interest and foreign exchange risks. The Scheme utifises both markel and solvency triggers
to develop the level of hedges in place. To date, the Scheme is fully hedged for 74% of inflation sensitivily and 53% of
interest rate risk. 1 is intended to hedge 80% of total exposure.

The Scheme is forbidden by the frust deed from helding direct invesiments in the equity of ABF, although it is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some equity funds,

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group also operates defined benefit retirement schemes in a number of overseas businesses, which are primarily
funded final salary schemes, as well as a small number of unfunded post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are
accounted for in the same way as defined benefit retirement schemes.

Defined coniribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined confribution schemes for which the charge was £44m in the UK and £45m
averseas, folaling £89m (2021 — UK £42m, overseas £41m, telaling £83m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the year end were;

T 022 ;023 Tz T T o
UK Overseas UK Overseqs
% % T %
Discount rate 4.6 0.9-13.5 1.8 0-14.1
Infiation 2.4-34 0-55.0 2.6-3.4 0-12.4
Rate of Increase in salaries 3.7-4.3 0-40.0 3.7-4.3 0120
Rate of increase for pensions 1n payment 1.9-3.2 0-40.0 2.1-3.2 0-120
Rate of increase for pensions in defermant {where provided) 2.5-2.8 0-2.3 2527 0-2.0

Discount rates are determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quaiity corporate bonds
consistent with the estimated term of the obligations. This has been done in conjunction with independent actuaries in
each jurisdiction.
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14. Employee entilements continved
The UK inflation assumption includes assumptions on bath the Retail Price Index and Consumer Price index measures of
inflation on the basis that the gap between the two measures is expected to remain stable In the long term.

The mortality assumptions used fo value the UK defined benefit schemes in 2022 are derived from the S3 mortality fables
with irnprovements in fine with the 2020 projection model prepared by the Continuous Mortdlity Investigation of the UK
actuarial profession (2021 - $3 mortality tables with improvements in line with the 2019 projection moded), with a 0-vear
rating movement for males and females (2021 - O-year rating movement for males and females), both with a long-term
trend of 1.5% (2021 - 1.5%] . These mortality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assumptions for further
improvements in life expeciancy of scheme members. Exarnples of the resulting life expectancies in the UK defined
benefil schemes are as follows:

owmm _aen
Lie expeciancy from agea £5 {in years) Male Fernale Male Ferma's
Member aged 65 in 2022 (2021) 22, 243 22.1 243
Member aged 65 in 2042 (2041) 237 2.1 237 2.1

An allowance has been made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experience. Qther demographic
assumptions for the UK deifined benefit schemes are set having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and
other relevant data.

The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic funding valuation of the schemes.

For the overseas schemes, regionally appropriate assumpfions for mortalty, financial and demographic factors have

been used.

A sensitivily analysis on the principal assumplions used 1o measure UK defined benefit scheme iiabilities o 17 September
2022 is:

] T ' T T ) — ) - - - B - Ch(ﬁ;’@m OSS?'N 5iIOn '7 ~ .77”*“{')&1C? E:VSChE’ﬁS-EIE;b:\ ties
Discountrate decrease/increcse by 0.1% Increase/decrease by 1.5%
Inflation increase/decrease by 0.1% nerease by 0.9%/decredse by 1.2%
Rate ofrealincrease in salaries increcse/decrease by 0.1% increose/decrease by 0.3%

members assurned fo be one
Rate of mortality year younger/older increase/decrease by 4.2%

A sensifivity fo the rate of increase in pensions in payment and pensions in deferment is represented by the inflation
sensitivity, as ait pensions increases and deferred revaluations are linked to inflation.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based onreasoncbly possible changes in the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the periocd and may not ke representative of the actual change. It is based on @ change in the
specific assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used to calculate scheme liabilities recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The method and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis have not changed since the prior year.
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14. Employee entittlements continued
Balance sheet

Consalidated Group

2022 ] o T T .
UK Overseas Total LS Overseas Total
£m £m £m £ £m £m
Equities 1,135 188 1,323 1,246 194 1,440
Government bonds 3o8 92 400 840 86 926
Corporate and other bonds 747 47 814 812 49 861
Property 398 37 435 360 29 389
Cash and other assets ______1,]_26 53 1,179 1_957 55 1112
Scheme assets - 3,734 417 4,151 4315 013 4,728
scheme fabilfies (2897 (405)  (2802)  (3729)__ [490)  {4.219)
Aggregate net surplus/(defic) 1,337 12 1,349 586 {77) 509
Irecoverable surplus* - - (42)  (42) - o {2e (24
Net pension osset/{liability] 1337 {(30) 1,307 586 (103 483
Analysed as
Schemes in surplus 1,366 27 1.393 633 7 640
schemes in defict [ ) B C1) ® _ @7 (g (1s7)
1,337 (30) 1,307 586 (103) 483
Unfunded liabiiity included in the present value of scheme
fabilities above (29) (52) (81) (47) (66) (113)

* The surpluses in the plans are only recoverable to the exlent that the Group can benefit from either refunds farmally agreed or from future
confribution recluctions.

UK $cheme

Scheme assets include £50m (2021 - £345m) of derivative instruments, £44 1m {2021 - £482m) of corporate debt

instruments and £841m {2021 — £1.394m) of government debi.

Corporate and other bonds assets of £767m (2021 - £812m) include £248m (2021 — £225m) of assets whose valuation is
not derived from quoted market prices, The valuation for all other equity assets, government bonds, and corporate and
other bonds is derived from quoted market prices. The carrying value of UK property assets is based on « 30 June market
valuation, adjusted tor purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuation and the balance sheet date.
Cash and other assets includes £820m (2021 - £6%7m) of assets whose valuation is not derived from quoted market
prices.

For financial reporting in the Group's financial statements, liabilities are assessed by actuaries using the projected unit
method.

The accounting value is different from the result obtained using the funding basis, mainly due to different assumptions
used to project scheme liabilities.

The defined benefit scheme liabllities comprise 24% (2021 - 26%) in respect of active participants, 20% {2021 - 23%} for
deferred participants and 56% {2021 — 51%) for pensioners.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme liabilities at the end of the year Is 15 years for both UK
and overseqs schemes (2021 — 17 years for both UK and overseas schemes).

Income statement
The charge to the income statement for employee benefit schemes comprises:

_Corsolidated Group

2022 202
£m £m
Charged to operating profit:
Defined benefit schemes
Curent service cost (48) {46}
Past service cost - (4)
Defined contribution schemes e (89) 183
Total operating cost - E:

Reported in other financial (expense) /income:
Net interest income on the net pension asset 10 -
Interest charge on imecoverable surolus m .
Netimpact on profit before tax

(28 N34

Wittington Investments Fnancial Stalements 2022 a9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 680A588C-BD00-48AA-861F-CE91ED8436D7

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

14. Employee entitlements continued

Cash flow

Group cash flow in respect of employee benefils schemes comprises contributions paid to funded schemes of £3é6m
{2021 — £39m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £2m (2021 — £3m). Contributions to funded defined
benelit schemes are subject to pericdic review. Contributions to defined contribution schemes amounted to £89m (2021
— £83m).

Total coniributions 1o funded schemes and benelit payments by the Group inrespect of unfunded schemes in 2022 are
currently expected to be approximately £29m in the UK and £10m overseas, totalling £39m {2021 — UK £30m, overseas
£10m, totalling £40mj.

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net pension asset recognised In other comprehensive income are ds follows:

ﬂwCon@gl\c}qleg Croun

2022 2021
£m £m
Return on scheme assets excluding amounis included in net interest in the income statement (582) 664
Actuarial gains/flosses) arising from changes in financial assumptions 1,444 {101)
Actuarial gains/{losses) arsing from changes in demographic assurmptions 11 4]
Cxperfence {losses)/gains on scheme liabilities {38) 12
Change in unrecoghised surplus - (10) (12)
Remeasurements of the net pension asset ] e B o B 825 559
Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities
_________ T - 7_-777" . "ﬁ;j(;w;c;i\d'gicd Group 7;_7 _
2022 202" 2022 2021 2022 202
assets cEsers liabBities labailitics net net
£m £m £m £m £im £m
At beginning of yeor 4,728 4,153 {4219) 14,206} 509 {53
Current sefvice cost - - {48} [46) (48) [46)
Employee contributions 8 7 (8) {7] - -
Employer conftributions 34 39 - - 34 39
Benefit payments (154) (179} 158 182 2 3
Past service cost - - - {4} - {4}
Interest income/ (expense) 84 &9 (74) 6%} 10 -
{Lass)/return on scheme assets less interest income (582) 464 - - (582) 464
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial
assumptions - - 1,444 {101) 1.444 {101}
Actuarial gains/{losses) arsing from changes in demographic
assurnplions _ _ 11 4] 1 ()
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme labilties - - (38) 12 (38) 12
Effect of rmovements in foreign exchange 31 (25) (28) 34 3 g
Transfer from Trade and other payables - .. D LI oL = (10}
At end of year 4,151 4,728 (2,802) {4.219) 1,349 509

2022 2071

£m £

Al beginning of year (26) (13)
Change recognised in other compreheansive income {10) (12}
interest charge on imecoverable surplus )] Al
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ) - . ) (5) -
At end of year e o (42) (26)
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15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Consldaled Growe .

Provisions  Tax value of

Praperty, rF~ancial and atner canry-
piant and Intangitle Employce  asszls and ‘emporary forward
equpment assetfs Leases bane'its liabities  diferences lasses Total
£m £m £ £m £ £m £ £m

Al 12 September 2020 144 90 (93) (16} 4 (?1) (34) 4
Amount credited to the income siatement (36) (&) (8) (n - 8 2 {41)
Amount credited fo equity - - - 105 14 - - 119
Acquired through business combinations - 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of changes in tax rates on theincome 29 6 {6) (3) - (3) {4) 19
statement
Effect of changes in tax rates on equily - - - 32 - - - 39
Eftect of hyperinflationary economies taken
o operating profit 2 - - - - - - 2
Eftect of movemends in foreign exchange S (5) 3 1 -5 - 8
At 18 September 2021 140 90 {101} 125 18 (81) {36) 155
Amount credited to the income staterment 34 (5) 27 1 - 13 8 78
Amount credited to equity - - - 155 28 2 - 185
Acquired through business combinations - 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income
statement 2 - - - - - - 2
Effect of changes in tax rates on equity - - - 44 - - - 44
Eftect of hypernfiationary economies taken
to operating profit 3 - - - - - - 3
Transfer to assets/iabilities held for sale 5 - - - - - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [ 10 (4) = - (4) - 8
Al 17 September 2022 190 117 (78) 325 46 {68) (28) 504

Provisions and other temporary differences include provisions of £(93)m (2021 - £{23)m), biological assets of £32m (2021 -

£29m], tax credits of £{16)m (2021 - £{15/m} and other temporary differences of £9m (2021 - £{2)m}

. _AE . e -
Provisioris  Tax vaive of
Property, Finamcial and other Carfy-
olanf aond intangiole tmpioyee ossels aond femporary forward
equipment assets teases bernefits hoblities  afferences losses fatat
£rr £ im £ £m im £m £m
At 12 September 2020 141 70 [93) (16) (2) [90) (32) {2)
Amount credited to the income statement (34} {6} {8) (1) - 5 2 {44}
Amount credited fo equity - - 105 14 - - 119
Acquired through business combinations - - - - - - 5
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income
staternent 29 4 {6) {3 - {5} (4] 17
Effect of changes in tax rates on equity - - - 39 - - - 39
Effect of hyperinflationary economies taken
to operafing orofit 2 - - - - - - 2
Effect of movemenfs in foreign exchange L 1 - S R R S,
At 18 September 2021 137 20 (101) 125 12 {84) (34) 145
Amount credited fo the income sfatement 34 (5) 27 1 - 13 8 78
Amount credited to equity - - - 154 28 2 - 184
Acquired fhrough business cormbinations - 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income
statement 2 - - - - - - 2
Fifect of changes in tax rates on equity - - - 44 - - - 44
Effect of hyperinflationary economies taken
fo operating profit 3 - - - - - - 3
Transfer to assets/liabilifies heild for sale 5 - - - - - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange & 10 () - i ) R 4
At 17 September 2022 187 117 (78) 324 40 (75) (24) 489
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15. Deferred tax assels and liabilities continued

Certain deterred tox assets and Habilities have been offsel in the table above. The following is the analysis of the
deterred tax balances {after offset] for financici reporting purposes:

e ] . " Consolidated Group.
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m L£m £m £
Deferred tax assefs (158) {218) (1600 [221)
Deferred tax labliities o o I - T 363 ) 444 376
489 145 504 155

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £5m (2021 - £nil} deferred tax assets classified as assets held for
sale (see note 17).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of £348m {2021 - £310m). Of these tax losses,
£188m (2021 - £170m) will expire at various dates between 2022 and 2027 (2021 - 2021 and 2024}, Deferred tax assets
have alsc not been recognised in respect of other temporary differences of £520m (2021 - £111m). This includes £378m
{2021 - £nil) relating to property, plant and eqguipment and leases in Germany which were derecognised during the year
as o result of the impairment charge (see notes 10 and 11 for further details], These deferred tax assets have not been
recognised on the basis that thelr future economic benefit is uncertain.

In addition, the Group's overseas subsididries have net unremitted eamings of £2,029m (2021 - £2,537m). resulting in
temporary differences of £1,495m (2021 - £1,167m). No detferred fax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the timing of the reversals can be contfrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will nol reverse in
the foresecable future.

14. Trade and other receivables

G

2022 zom 2022 2021
£m £ £m £
Non -current - other receivables
Loans and receivables 29 32 29 45
Imvestments designated FYOC! o 29 23 29 ) 23
58 55 58 48
Curent - trade and other receivables
Trade receivables L3t 1.021 1.321 1,032
Ctherreceivables 218 178 232 181
Accrugdincome . L _ 35 o819
1,564 i,215 1,591 1,232
Prepayments and other non-financialreceivables ) 14152 198 156
1.758 1,367 1,789 1,388

In addition to the amounts disciosed above, there are £3m (2021 - £nil) trade and other receivables classified as assets
held for sale (see note 17).

The direciors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates {oir value,
For details of credit risk exposure on trade and other receivabies, see note 28,

Trade and other receivabies include £29m (2021 — £32m} in respect of finonce lease receivables, with £25m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables {2021 - £28m in non-current focans and receivables
and £4m in current other receivables}. Minimum lease payments receivable are £4m within one year, £16m between
one and five years and £9m in more than five years {2021 - £4m within one year, £17m between one and five years and
£117m in more than five years).

The finance lease receivabies relate 1o property. plant and equipment ledsed to @ joint venture of the Group (see note
30].
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17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

ABF currently expecls to dispose of Tts north China sugar business, subject to competition and administrative

requirements. In the prior year, held for sale assets and liabilities relaled o an ABF Chinese yeas! business expected to
be sold to a Chinese joint venture.

Consglidated Grovp_, .

2022 2021
£m £
Assets classified as held for sale
Intangible assets 12 -
Property, plant and eguipment 18 10
Inventories : 7 3
Taxation 5
Trade and other receivables .
e 45 13
Liabifities classified as held for sale
Trade and other payables o N L =) S -
S _ Q4 -
31 13
18. Inventories
’ - T T ABF . ConsoldaleaGrowp |
2022 2021 2022 0321
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 607 411 607 411
Work In progress 70 55 70 55
Finished goods and goods held forresgle 2582  }685  261% 1,713
3,259 2,151 3,296 2,179
Write down of inventories (115) {95) (115) [96)

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £/m (2021 — £3m)} of inventories classified as assets held for sale
(see note 17).
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19. Biclogical assets

Corsolidgiod Groyg,

Srymeng
cone Other Toral
£m Er Em
A1 12 Septemiper 2020 b6 5 72
Transfered to inventory (%2) {13) (108)
Purchases - 1 1
Changesin fair value _ e s [ 4
AT 18 Septerniber 2021 7% & 85
Transfered 1o inventory {113) 13) {128
Purchoses - 5 5
COther disposals - 1) IR}
Changes in fair value 124 3] 134
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ) - ) o B A -
A1 17 September 2022 T 97 8 105

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane is determined using inputs that are unchbservable, using the best information available in
the circumstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls info the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.
The following assumpiions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 17 Septermber 2022

__South Afiica

_Malawl  Zambia _ " Eswallni ~ Tanzania _ Mozambligue
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 4,028 19.207 16,163 8,419 9,612 5,802
Estimated yield (fonnes cane/hectare) 47.9 103.7 115.9 99.5 72.4 71.0
Average maturity of growing cane 47.6% 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 446.2% 72.4%

The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage of 18 September 2021:

Scuth Afreg

Malawi Fompa Eswalin Tanzaria N‘.gzanwciqdé-
Expected area to harvest (hectaras) 6,363 18911 16,584 B.464 9,526 5,545
Estimafed yield (tonnes cane/hectare) 6.9 108.4 1157 102.0 739 83.4
Average maturily of growing cane 16.1% 87 4% 857% &7 7% A8.9% 71 46%
A 1% change in the unobservable inputs could incredase or decrease the fair value of growing cane s follows:
) - B ' ' ' ' > Tz

1% 1% +1%, 7
im £m £ £m
Estimated sucrose content 1.2 (1.2) 1.1 (1.1}
Estimated sucrose price 1.4 (1.4) 1.4 {1.4]
20. Cash ond cash equivalents
- - - - - — T/ T T T T e 7T T TCensaldotedGroup
2022 2021 2022 w21

ato £m EXin £m £
Cash
Cash at bank and in hand 674 759 779 993
Cash equivaients B, I . L Asis o 1M ] 1516
Cash and cash equivalents e 28 2121 2225 272 259
Reconciliation to the cash flow statement
Bonkoverdrafs 2 28 el (126) {8y
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash fiow statement o 1.995 2189 2100 2423
Cash ond cash squivalents on the face of the bolancesheet - 2721 2,275 2226 2509

2,121 2,275 2226 2,509

Cash at bank and in hand generally earns interest at rates based on the daily bank deposit rate.

Cash equivaients generally comprise deposits placed on monay markets for periods of up fo three months which earn
interest at a short-term deposit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that have a maturity of less than or equal to

three months and are af fixed rates.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates (gl value.
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21. Loans and overdrafts

_ LoAE T Comoidated Growp
2022 202) 2022 2021
Mote £m £m £m £m
Current loans and overdrafts
Secured loans 1 - 1 46
Unsecured loans and overdrafts %6 330 156 330
T 157 330 157 376
Non-current loans
Secured locans - I 1 1
Unsecured loans ) S 48D 480 75
L - ~ 480 76 481 76
28 637 406 438 452
T T T o ABE__ __ __ __ comsogoledGroun
2022 2021 2022 202
Mote £m £m £m £
Secured loans
- GBP floating rate - - 1 44
- Other floaiing rate i ] 1 1
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafis
- Bank overdrafts 20 126 8¢ 124 86
- GBP fixed rate 390 80 390 80
- USD floating rate 8 3 8 3
- USD fixed rate 87 217 87 217
- EUR floating rate 2 7 2 7
- Other floating rate 13 7 13 7
~Otherfixedrate _ e _ 10 IR T 5
637 404 4638 452

Secured loans comprise amounts borrowed from cormmercial banks and are secured by floaling charges over the assets
of subsidiaries. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.

ABE " Consolidated Grous
2022 202) 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 1,362 938 1,377 252
Acoval w8 997 129 1011
2,637 1,935 2,673 1,963
Deterred income and other non-financial payables L 4T 457 492 449
314 2,386 3,165 2,432

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are £14m trade and other payables {2021 - £nil) classified as liabilities

held for sale (see note 17).

For payables with a remaining life of less than one year, carrying amount is deemed 1o reflect fair value.

In a small number of businesses, the Group utilises supplier financing arrangements fo enable participating suppliers, ot
each supplier's sole discretion, 1o sell any or allamounts due from the Group to a third-parly bonk earlier than the
invoice due date, at better financing rates than the supplier alone could achieve.

Payment terms for suppliers are identical, irespective of whether they choose to participate. The Group receives no

benefit from these arangements.

Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third-party
bank as akin to amounts owed to the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within frade payables ond
associated cash flows are included within operating cash flows, as they continue to be part of the Group's normal

operating cycle.

At year end, the value of invoices sold by suppliers under supply chain financing arrangements was £45m (2021 - £27mj.
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23. Provisions

T Consolidated Group .
Defarred

Restructuring canudsraton Other Tolal

£ £ £ i

At 18 September 2021 52 14 36 102

Created 31 14 16 41
Utilised {16} {91 {7 {32)
Released {13) - (?) (22
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o o ) N 1 2 4
Al 17 September 2022 T 55 20 38 s
Current 49 14 22 87
Non-curent _ — _ _ 6 4 e 2
55 20 38 113

Financial tiabilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years (see note 28).

Restructuring

rRestructuring provisions include tusiness restruciure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Group's

anncunced recrganisation plans. These restructuring provisions are largely expected to be uliised in the next financial

vear.

Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amounts due to the previous owners of businesses acquired by the Group
which are often linked to performance or other conditions,

Other

Other provisions mainty cornprise lifigation claims and woarranty claims arsing from the sale and closwre of businesses. The
extent and fiming of the utilisation of these provisions is more uncertain given the nature of the claims and the period of

the warranties.

24, share capital and reserves
Shore caopital

A1 18 September 2021 and 17 September 2022, the Group's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 862,022
ardinary shares of 50p, each carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £431,011,

Other reserves
Other reserves are non-distributatle,

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial staterments
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of ligbilities that haedge the Group's net investmant in foreign

subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent that they are effective cash flow
hedges, net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged transaction or when the

hedged transaction fs no longer expected fo occur.

25. Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions
2022

v Januaory, the ABF acquired 100% of Fytexia, o B2B specialty ingredients business in France and Haly producing and

formulating polyphenofs-based active ingredients for the diefary supplements industry, This acquisifion will expand ABF's
portfolio of products and capabilities to serving the pharmaceutical, nutifional and food market sectors.

in July, ABF acquired Greencoat, ¢ UK-based animal supplement and care business. This acquisition contributes to AB
Agri's strategic goal to expaond ifs international animal nutrition and technology business.

During the year, ABF also acquired a small grocery company in New Zealond, a smali agriculture business in Finlond and

a small ingredients business in Australic.

464 Wittington Investments Fnancial Statements 2022



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 8B0A588C-BD00-48AA-861F-CES1EDB436D7

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

25. Acquisitions and disposals continued

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities:

" Pre

" T Recogrised valucs on acquistion )
acnuisition

carrying Fyrexia Greencooat Other [otal
values £ £m £ £m £m

Net assets
intangible assets - 54 27 7 83
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 14 1 1 12 14
Working capital 17 3 Hi 11 25
Ceaish and overdrafis 10 & 1 3 10
Loans (23) mm (3} 2] 23}
Lease lapiities 8} - - 181 18]
Provistans {7} {7) - - {7)
Taxation 8) (14) 18} 2 {24)
Nel identifiable assets and fabiities 5) 32 29 14 75
Goadwill e 41 12 12 85
Total consideration 93 43 26 160
o o - o o o R - B - - o T o o o Recogniéed
values on
acquis hon
. .. — —_ - — - — m

Satisfied by:

Cash consideration 153
Deferred consideration - 7
e ~ 160

Net cash:
Cash consideration 153
Coshondcoshequivalentsacquied ...~
143

Pre-acquisifion carrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £88m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, technology and customer relationships, an £8m uplift to inventory, a £16m reiated
deferred tax liobility and goodwill of £85m (none of which is tax-deductible) reflecting the benefits of expecied future
synergies. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joinf ventures and associates of £154m comprised £153m cash
consideration tess £10m cosh and overdrafts acquired, £7m of deferred consideration relating to previous acquisitions
and a £4m contribution fo an existing joint veniure in China.

2021

in the prior pericd, ABF's Ingredients business acquired DR Healthcare Espafia, a Spanish enzymes producer. Totdl
consideration for this fransaction was £14m, comprising £12m cash consideration and £2m deferred consideration. Net
assefs acquired included non-operating infangible assefs of £19m. which were recognised with their related deferred
tox of £5m.

ABF afso contributed £43m to the bakery ingredients joint venture in Ching with Wilmar Intermafional and paid £2m of
deferred consideration on acquisitions made in prior years.

Disposals

2022

The proposed sale of a yeast company to the joint venture with Wilmar International in China [classified as held for sale
at the 2021 year end] is not going aghead. The £10m non-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/{loss) on safe
and closure of business has been reinstated at o cost of £11m.,

ABF's investmenf in north China Sugar is classified as held-for-sale at year end and an associafed £]19m non-cash wrife-
down has been charged to loss on sale and closure of business.

ABF also released £3m of closure provisions in Vivergo in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no fonger required for a
disposed Ingredients business in the United States.
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25, Acquisitions and disposals continved

2021

ABF sold a number of Chinese yeast and bakery ingredients businesses into a new Chinese joint venture with Wilmar
international. Gross cash consideration was £39m with £5m of cash disposed with the businesses. The joinf venture cko
assumed £11m of debf, resulting in net proceeds of £45m. Net assets disposed were £33m with provisions of £6m for
associated restructuring costs and a £6m gain on the recycling of foreign exchange differences. The gain on disposal
was £6m.

ABF agreed the sale of a factory in Ching to the same joint venture, subject to reguiatory approval, These assets were
fully written down in 2019 when the proposed joint venture with Wilmar was first announced. A non-cash reversal of
impairment of £10m was included in profit on sale and closure of business. This was reversed in 2022 {see above).

Closure provisions of £3m retating to disposals made in previous years were no longer required and were reledased 1o sale
and closure of business in Ingredients and Grocery, both in Asia Pacific. Property provisions of £1m held in previous years
were ako no longer required.

The annual charge in the income statement for equity-settied share-based payments schemes was £19m (2021 - £17m).
The Group had the following principal eqguity-seitled share-based payment plans in cperation during the period:

Associated British Foods 2014 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 LTIP’)

The 2016 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Group at the ABF AGM held on 9 December 2014, If takes the form of
conditional allocations of shares which are released if, and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied,
typicdlly over a three-year vesting period.

Associated British Foods 2014 Short-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 STIP’)

The 2016 STIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 November 2016. It takes the
form of conditional allocations of shares which are released at the end of a three-year vesting period if, and to the
exfent that, performance targets are satisfied. over o one-year performance perniod.

Further information regarding the operation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 126 to 153,

Total conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

sakance Bolance

au'standing at culstaraing

the boainring Grardeay Expired/ ar the end

of the pernod awarged vested lapsed ol tke penod

2022 5,419,237 2,445,814 718,185} ({1.056,861) 6,020,005
2021 5030360 2498918 1440,870)  (1,669.171} 5,419,237

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to agllocation under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are held in o separate
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Vaoting rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisable by the trustee, who is entitled to consider any recommendation made by a committee of ABF. AT 17
September 2022 the Trust held 3,042,132 (2021 - 1,347,089) ordinary shares of ABF. The market value of these shares at the
yeor-end was £40m {2021 - £25m). The Trust has waived s fight 1o dividends. Movements in the year were a release of
718,185 shares and the purchase of 2,413,228 shares (2021 - release of 440,870 shares).

Fai values

The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by taking the market price of the shares at
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesting period. The weighted
average fair value of the conditional shares allocated during the year was 1.837p (2021 - 1,879p) and the weighted
average share price was 1.975p (2021 - 2,021p). The dividend vield used was 2.5% (2021 - 2.5%).
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27. Analysis of net debt

A

. Consolidated Group

New leoses At
18 Sectember Acguisiions  ancd nen-ccash Bxchange 17 September
2020 Cash flow  ard digposa’s iters adjustrrents 2022
£ L £m £m £m £m
Short-term loans [290) 58 [23) 224 - {31}
Long-term loans (76) (179) - {224) [2) {481)
Lease fiabiifies e (3308) _ _ 35 8 Jesy 98] (3.275)
Totallabiities fom financing activifies {3.674] Vo4 e s (00 (3787)
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and
overdrafts 2,423 {397) - - 74 2,100
Curentinvestments designated FVIPL 1,093 2z - 3 31,243
(158} [71) [31) {189} 5 (444)
S o ~ ComsldatedGrowp T
At New leasas Al
12 September Acquisilions  and non-cask Lxchange 18 Septamber
2020 Cash ficw  ard disposals items adjustments 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Short-term loans {65) 10 10 {248} 3 {290)
Long-term loans 1365) 20 - 248 21 {76}
leaseliobiites =~ %8sy =S (163)
Totallabilties fom financing activities . (4099) 325 10 (193) 3,674
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and
overdrafts 2,098 389 - - [64) 2,423
Curent investments designated FVIPL e 11 N | 4 U - 13
{797) 663 17} [146) 129 (1358)

Cash and cash equivalents comgprise bank and cash balances, call deposits and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less. £126m (2021 - £8ém) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integral part of the Group's cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for ihe
purpose of the cash flow statement (see note 20 for a reconciliation].

Net cash excluding lease liabilities is £2,831m (2021 - £3,150m).

Current and non-current lease liabilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £320m and £2.955m respectively
(2021 - £293m and £3.015m respectively] comprise the £3.275m (2021 - £3,308m) of lease licbilities shown above.

Current investments designated FVTPL comprise term deposits and short-term investments with originatl maturities of
greaier than three months but less than one year.
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28. Financial instruments

Financial instruments include £3m {2021 - £nil) of trade and other receivables and £14m (2021 - £nil] of trade and other
paydables which are classified as held for sale {(see note 17]. All disclosures in this note are given gross, before the held-
for-sale reclassitication is made.

a) Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

B _ ABF 7 Comsoidalen Groue
2022 2071 2022 7021
Mote Em & £m £m
Financial assefs
Financial assets of amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 2121 2,275 2,224 2,509
Investments 4 32 4 32
Trade and ofher receivables 1.567 1.215 1.594 1,232
Qther non-cumrent receivables 29 32 29 45
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments 29 23 29 23
At fair value through profif and loss
Investrments - - 1,381 1,162
Derivative assets not designated in a cash flow hedging
relationship:
- curency dervatives 50 @ 50 9
- commeodity derlvatives 3 - 3 -
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Dervative assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instruments:
- currency derivatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) 70 22 70 22
- Cross-Currency swaps 29 44 29 44
-commadity derivatives ) o 323 49 . 3z3 49
Total financial assets 4,225 3,701 5,738 5127
Financial ligbilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables {2,451) {1,935} (2.687) {1.963)
Secured loans {n {1 {2) (47)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts [fair value 2022 - £571m; 2021
—£417m) {638) {405} (634) (405)
Lease babilities (fair value 2022 — £3.494m; 2021 - £3,320m)| (3.252) {3281} {3.275) {3,308
Deferred consideration (20} {14) (20) [14)
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivative liabilities not designated in @ cash flow hedging
relationship:
- currency dervafives [excluding cross-currency swaps) (5) (i} (5) N
- commaoadity derivatives {3 - {3) -
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivative liabilities designated as net investment hedging
instruments:
- Cross-Cuency swaps (7} {12 (7} (12
Designoted cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative abilities designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instruments:
- curency dervafives (excluding cross-curency swaps) {17} {5) (7 15
- interast derdvativaes (3) - (3] -
-commoditydeivatives e ™ g 19 (4
Tofal financial liabilites " (5768 (5670) (6825) (5771
Net financial liabilities T sy (1969  (1087) (644)

Except where stated, carrying amount is equal to fair value,
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28. Financial instruments continued

Valuation cof financial instruments carried at tair value

Financial instruments carried al [uir value on the balance sheet comprise derivatives and invesiments. The Group
classifies these financial instruments using ¢ fair value hierarchy that reflects the relative significance of both objective
evidence and subjective judgements on the Inputs used in making the falr value measurements:

Level 1: financial instruments are valued using observable inpuls that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices inan
active market for identical instruments. An example of an item in this category is a widely traded equity instrument with
a normal quoted market price.

Level 2: financial instruments are valued using techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. market prices
and rates) or indirectly {i.e. derived from market prices and rates). An example of anitem in this category is a currency
derivative, where forward exchange rates and yield curve data, which are observable in the market, are used to derive
fair value.

Level 3: financial inslrurnents are valued using techniques involving significant uncbservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which thelr fair value measurement method is
categorised for Investments held at fair value through profit and loss:

e — __C_é_h_soiid_o!ég Gmup

-~ L2
levell Level 2 Level 3 Total level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m im £m £ £ £
investments designated FYTPL 695 682 4 1,381 690 469 3 1.162

Included within the level 2 investments is the Group's aggregate £138m interest (2021: £101m) in 46 separate
Partnerships, each of which held investments in unguoted investments. Such investments represent the Group's
allocable share of Partnership investments and include interests in non-redeemable, closed-end private investment
funds that do net trade in an active market and represent Tliguid long-term investments that generally require fulure
capital commitments,

The fair vaiue of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unquoted
investments are valued in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuations Guideglines

as endorsed by the British Venture Capital Asscciation, The basis of valuation in these guidelines include valuing
investments at the price of recent comparative industry price earnings ratios discounted for marketability and
performance of the investment, by review of comparable M&A deals in appropriate sectors, and net asset valuations for
asset based investments.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuing unquoted investments, the eventual realisation proceeds may differ
from the estimated fair value and the difference could be significant. Appropriate provisions are made against all
individual values where necessary to reflect unsatisfactory financial performance or a fall in comparable ratings. leading
to impairment in value.

b} Derivatives
All derivatives are classified as cument on the face of the balance sheel. The table below analyses the carrying amount
of derivatives and their contractual/notional amounts, together with an anaiysis of derivatives by the level in the fair

value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method Is categorised.

_ C:é'rasorlridatéo Groug

2022 _ LR
Contractual/ Contractualy
national noticnal
amounts Level 1 Level 2 Tetal amounts Level | Level 2 Total
£m £m £m £m £ £m £m £
Financial assets
Curency derivatives
lexcluding cross-currency swaps) 2,193 - 120 120 1,360 - 31 31
Cross-cumency swaps 94 - 29 29 208 — 44 44
Commedity derivatives 439 3 323 326 o188 4 45 49
, , _ 2726 3 472 A7S 1776 4 120 124
Financial liabilities
Currency derivatives ¥21 [22) (22)
{excluding cross-currency swaps) - 702 - (&) {8)
Cross-currency swaps 68 - (7) {7 196 - (12) {12}
Inferestrate swaps 400 - (3) 3) - - - -
Commedity cervafives 3 - 073 (73 16 Mmoo _ a8
1,755 - (205) {205) 1.064 (1] (33) [34]
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28. Financial instruments continued

c) Cash flow hedging reserve

The foliowing table identifies the movemaents in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the periods in which

the cash flows are expected to occur. The pericds in which the cash flows are expected to impact profit or loss are

materially the same,

2022 o T T
Currency curency
derivatives dariva‘fves
(exclyding Cross- [excuding Cross-
oroLs- cunrency inferest Commodity cro5s- cumersy In*eress  Commeait,
currency) Swaps Derivatives derivatives Total currencyl swaps Ceerivatives dervabves Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £ Emr g gm
Opening bakance (14 (4} - (28) {43) & {1 - 2 7
{Gains)/losses recognised in the
hedging reserve {295) (20} 3 (234) (546) 3 16 - [55) (36)
Amountremoved from the hedging
reserve and included in the income
statement:
—revenue 5 - - (4) 1 8 - - (4) 4
—cost of sales - - - 108 105 - - - g 9
~ other financial expense/lincome) - 21 - - 21 - {16} - - {16)
Amountremoved from the hedging
reserve and included in a non-
financial asset:
—inventory 258 - - 22 280 {37 - - 12 {25)
Deferred fax - 5 - M 24 22 6 - - 8 4
Clasing balance L @y - 2 (msy (154 (14 1 - (28) (43
Cash flows are expected fo occur:
—withir six months {36) - 2 (105) {139) {9) - - [25) (34)
- between six months aond one vear (&) - - (10) (18) {4) - - [2) 16)
-between one and twao years 1 - - - 1 imn - - i {2)
Tbetween two and five years I - T .= e L R - Al
41) - 2 (115) [154) {14} n - [28) 143}

Of the closing balance of £{154)m, £{(84)m is aftributable fo equity sharehoiders and £{70)m to non-controlling interests
{2021 - £{43)m, £{24)m attributable tc equity shareholders and £{19)m fo non-controlling interests). Gf the net movement

in the year of £{111)m, £{40)m is attributable to eguity shareholders and £{51)m to non-controling interests {2021 -

£{50Im, £(27)m is attributable to equity shareholders and £{23)m to non-controling interests).

The balance remaining in the commodity cash flow hedge reserve from hedging relationships for which hedge
accounting is no longer applied is £1m (2021 - £{1]m}.

The balance in the cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 18 Seplember 2021 or 17 September 2022.
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28. Financial instruments continued
d) Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed to the tollowing financial risks from the use of financial instruments:

- market risk; and
- credit risk.

The CGroup's financial sk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evatuation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk management policies and systems have been established and are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group. through its standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees undersiand
their rofes and obligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many locations around the world. These operations
expose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commodity markets. Risk management
teams have been established n the Group's major businesses lu mmanage this cxposure by entering inta a rminge of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps, and, where appropriate, options. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularly 1o executive management,

Treasury operations and commodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined framewaork of
Board-approved policies and guidelines to manage the Group's financial and commodity risks. Group Treasury waorks
closely with the Group's procurement teams to manage commaodity risks. Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available at all times for the management and development of the Group's
businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk and credit risk. The Group's risk management policy explicitly
forbids the use of financial or commodity derivatives {outside its risk management framework of mitigating financial and
commaodity risks) for specuiative purposes.

e) Foreign currency translation

The Group presents its financial statements in sterling. As a result of its worldwide operations, the Group is exposaed 1o
foreign currency translation risk where overseas operations have a functional currency other than sterling. Changes in
foreign currency exchange rates impact the translation into sterling of both the income stalement and net assets of
these foreign operations.

Where appropriate, the Group finances its operations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its
operations and where appropriate, by borrowing locally in the same functional currency. This reduces net asset values
reported in functional currencies other than sterling. thereby reducing the economic exposure o fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates on fransiation.

The Group also finances its operations by obtaining funding at Group level through external borrowings and, where they
are not in sterling, these borrowings may be designated as net investment hedges. This enables gains and losses arising
on refransiation of these fereign cumency orrowings to be charged to other comprehensive income, providing a partial
oftset in eguity cgainst the gains and losses arising on translation of the net asselis of foreign operations. At year end, the
Group had no borrowings (2021 - none) that were designated as hedges of its net investment in foreign operations.

The Group dlso holds cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed raie non-sterling debt. These are reported as
cash flow hedges and net investiment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument, to the degree
effective, s retained in other comprehensive income. Under IFRS 9, the currency basis on the cross-currency swaps is
excluded from the hedge designation and recognised 'n other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The
hypothetical derivative is based on the critical terms of the debt and therefore the only ineffectiveness that might arise is
in relation to credit risk, Credit risk is monitored regularly and is not a significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group does not aclively hedge the transiation impact of foreign exchange rate mevements on the income
statement (other than via the particl economic hedge arising from the servicing costs on non-sterling borrowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-equity for the purposes of IAS 21. The
effect of the designation is that any foreign exchange volatiity arising within the borrowing entity and/or the lending
entity is cccounted for directly within other ccmprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange of £nil {2021 - £nil) on refransiation of these loans has been taken to the transiation reserve cn
consolidation, alf of which was attributable o equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-currency swaps that have
been designated as hedges of its net invesiments in euros, whose change in fair value of £1m has been debited 1o the
transiation reserve, all of which was affributable to equity shareholders {2021 — £14m has been crediled fo the franslation
reserve, £8m aftributable to equity shareholders).

Witlington Investments  Financial Statements 2027 53



DocuSign Envelope 1D; 680A588C-BD00-48AA-861F-CE91ED8436D7

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

28. Financial instruments continved
fy Market risk

Market risk is the risk of movermnents in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument or forecass fransaction
as vnderlying rnarket prices change. The Group is exposed to changes in the market price of commodities, interest rates
and foretgn exchange rates. These risks are known as ‘fransaction’ {or recognised) exposures and ‘economic’ {or
farecast) exposures.

() Commedity price risk
Commeodity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials and the conseguent exposwre to changes in market
prices.

The Group purchases a wide range of commoaoditias in the ordinary course of business. Exposure to changes in the
market price of certain of these commodities including sugar raws, energy, wheat, edible oils, soya beans, fed, lean
hog. cocoa and rice is managed through the use of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including
futures, swaps and aptions primarily to convert floating prices to fixed prices. The use of such contracts to hedge
commodily exposures is governed by the Group's risk management policies and is continually monitored by Group
Treasury. Commodity detivalives also provide a way 1o meet customers' pricing reguirements whilst achieving a price
structure consistent with the Group’s overall pricing strategy.

Some of the Group's commodity forward contracts are classified as ‘own use’ contracts, since they are entered info,

and continue 10 be held, for the purposes ¢f the Group's ordinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical

delivery of the commodity concerned. Own use contracts do not require accounting entries until the commedity ,
purchase actually crystallises. Where possible, other commodity derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges

{typically with a one-to-one hedge ratio), but there are scme commodity derivalives for which the strict requirements of

tedge accounting cannot be satisfied. Such commodity derivatives are used only whare the business believes they

provide an econcmic hedge of an underlying exposure. These instruments are classified as held for trading and are

marked o market through the income statement.

The majority of the Group's forward physical contracts and commodity derivatives have maturities of less than one yeaor.

The Group's sensitivities in respect of commodity derivatives for a +/- 20% movement in underlying commodity prices are
£62m {2021 - £24m) and £{57)m {2027 -- £{24)m), respeciively.

(ii) Interest rate risk \
Interest rate risk comprises two primary elements:

- interest price risk results from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates
therefore affect the fair value of these fixed rate financial instruments; and

interest cash flow risk results from financial instruments bearing floating rates. Changes in floating interest rates affect
cash flows on inferest receivable or payoble.

The Group's policy is fo manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant
change in interest rates does not have a material negative impact on the Group's cash flows.

AL 17 Seplember 2022, £487m [76%) {2021 - £303m and 75%) of 1olal debt was subject 1o fixed rates of interest, the
rmajority of which is the 2034 public bond (fixed rate of 2.5%). Floating rate debt comprises other bank borrowings
bearing interest rates for various iime periods up 1o 12 months, by reference o the relevant maiket rate for the cuirency
and location of the borrowing.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current asset investments are subject to floating rates of interest, typically
fixed for pericds up fo 3 monihs by reference o the relevant market rate for the cuitency of the cash placing or
investment,

£400m of 12-month sterling interest rate swaps have been entered into so that the floating interest rate received on an
equivalent balance of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is fixed for the 12-month period 1o August 2023.
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28. Financial instrumenis continved

{iii) Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and consequently In many foreign currencies. As a result, 1t is exposed fo
movements in foreign currency exchange rates which affect the Group's tfransaction costs. The Group also publishes its
financial statements in sterling and is therefore exposed to movements in foreign exchange rates on the transiation of
the results and underlying net assets of its foreign operations into sterling.

Translation risk is discussed in section e) on page 53.

Transaction risk

Currency transaction exposure occurs where a business makes sales and purchases in a currency cther than its
functional currency. It alse arises where monetary assets and liabilities of a business are not denominated in ifs functional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remifted from overseas. The Group's policy is to match transaction
exposures wherever possible, and to hedge actual exposures and firm commitments as soon as they occur by using
forward foreign currency centracts.

The Group uses derivatives (principally forward foreign currency contracts and time cptions) 1o hedge its exposuie lo
movements in exchange rates on its foreign currency trade receivables and payatles. The Group does not seek formad
fair value hedge accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead, such derivatives are classified as held for frading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the refransiation of the
foreign currency trade receivables and payables.

Economic (forecast) risk

The Group principally uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge its exposure 1o movements in exchange rates on
its highly probable forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on ¢ rolling 12-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percentage on an individual zasis with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and
prevaling market conditions. The Group designates currency derivatives used to hedge its highly probable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS 9, the spot component is designated in the hedging relationship and
forward points and currency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The
cost of hedging vaiue during the period and at the balance sheet date was not material. The economic relationship is
based on critical terms and a one-to-cne hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective. gains and
losses are deferred in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are recycled either
to the income statement or to the non-financial asset acquired.

The majerity of the Group's currency dervatives have original maturities of lass than one year.

The Group's most significant currency transaction exposures are:

- sugar sales in British Sugar to movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate; and

- sourcing for Primark - costs are denominated In a number of currencies, predominantly sterling, euros and US dollars.

Elsewhere, a number of businesses make sales and purchase a variety of raw materials in foreign currencies {primarily US
dollars and euros), giving rise to transacticn exposures. In all other material respects. businesses tend to operate in their
functional currencies,
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The table below lllusirates the effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated balance sheet and conselidated
income statement by disclosing separately by risk category, and each type of hedge, the deluails of the associated
hedging instrument and hedged item.

"@r{éél}dgled Grqm

L -~ ¥ S R
Change in fair Change In fair
Camying value of hedging value of hedge
amount Furthest Instrument used to iterm used to
Conlact assels/ maturity Hedge determine hedge detemmine hedge
notional  (llebilities) date retio ineHectiveness effectiveness
Em £m £m T £m £m
Cument
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
—currency derivatives (excluding cross-currency swaps) 2,102 54  Sep23 100% 54 (54)
— commaodity derivatives 739 152  Aug 23 100% 152 (152)
—interest rate swaps 400 (3) Auvg23 100% (3) 3
Non-current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
—currency derivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps) 32 (1) Sep24 100% m 1
— Cross-CUnrency swaps 94 29 Mar 24 100% 14 (14)
— commodity dervatives 20 1 Joan 24 100% 1 m
Dasignated net investment hedging relationships:
—currency derivatives [Cross-curency swaps) 48 {(7) Mar24 100% (3} 3

' Chﬁnge in fair Change = feair
Camying vaue of hedging vae of hedge
amaunt Farthest Irsrrument Lsed o e used to
Contract assets/ maturity Redge determine hedge determine redge
natianal [t ias) date ratio ine‘feciivensss offectiveness
£ £ £ % £mi £
Current
Designated cash flow hedging reiationships:
—currency derivatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) 1,367 16 Sep 22 100% 16 16}
- CrOSS-CUMency swaps 150 78 Mar 22 100% (r) 11
— commaodity derivatives 350 33 Aug?22 100% 34 (34]
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
currency dervatives (Crass-curency swaps) 129 8] Mar 22 100% 10 h1¢)]
Non -current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
— currency derivatives {excluding cross-curency swaps) 34 1 Dec 22 100% | )
— CFOSS-CUMTENCY SWapRs 78 16 har 24 00% {6} 5
—commodity derivatives 4 - Jan 23 100% - -
Designated net investrment hedging relationships:
— currency derivatives (Cross-currency swaps) &7 (4]  Maor24 100% 5 5)

Hedging relationships are typicaily based on a one-1o-one hedge ratio. The economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument is analysed on an ongoing basis. Sources of possibie inaffectiveness include changes in
forecast transactions as a result of fiming or value or, in certain coases, different indices finked to the hedged item and
the hedging insirument. As at 17 September 2022, £2,134m of forward foreign curency contracts designated as cash
flow hedges were oulstanding (2021 - £1,401m), largely in relation to purchases of USD (£1.453m) and sales of EUR
[£214m) with varying maturities up to September 2024, Weighted average hedge rates for these contracts are GBPUSD:
1.21, EURUSD: 1.04 and GBPEUR: 1.16. Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.26. Commodity derivatives designated as cash flow hedges related to a range of underlying hedged items,
with varying maturities up to January 2024.
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28. Financial instruments continued
The analysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure to financial assels and liabilities by currency of denomination is as
follows:

_ Comsoldaled Group,. .

. e o 2022 _ _
Serling s dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 8é& 13 38 138
Trade and other receivables - 55 54 24 133
hnvestments . _ . __ = 149 - T4
S 1 290 67 62 420
Financial liabilities
Trade and othor payablss (29) {512) (38) {17) {(594)
Unsecured loansand overdrafts - (90) - A ")
e (29) {602) @@ an ~ (686)
Cunrency derivatives
Gross amounts receivable 93 2,143 78 256 2,590
Gross amounts payable (2) (202) ~ (428) (87} (689}
o 91 1,941 (330 199 1,901
63 1.429 (31 244 1,635
I L _cersolidgredGop S
Y -4
Sterirg LiS acllar Euro Other Total
£ £ i £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 a3 25 40 149
Trade and ofherreceivables - 3% 4 19 .. Jes
o 1 2270 % 252
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {19) {381) (36} [8) {444)
Unsecured loars and overdrofts - - @28 - B {221]
I {19) (599) (36) N less)
Currency derivatives S I '
Gross amounts receivable 62 1,374 197 221 1,854
CGrossgmountspoyable N - I LS @y 50 [814)
S 1241 (234) S 70 1288
) 764 {200) 219 825
The following major exchange rates applied during the year:
S T ) . Ayeogerste . _ _ _ Glosingrate _
2022 202 2022 202
Us dallar 1.29 1.37 1.14 1.38
Euro 1.18 1.14 1.14 117
Australion dollar 1.80 1.82 1.7Q 1.89

The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact that a 10% strengthening of the Groug's fransactional currencies
against local functional currencies would have had on profit and equity. The analysis covers currency translation
exposures at year end on businesses' financial assets and liabilities that are not dencminafed in the functional currencies
of those businesses. A similar but opposite impact would be felt on both profit and equity if the Group’s main operating
currencies weakened against local functional currencies by a similar amount.

The exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses on franslating the financial statements of subsidiaries into sterling is
not included in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impaci on the income statement, and the gains and 1osses are
recorded directly in the translation reserve in equily (see below for a separate sénsifivity). This sensitivity 15 presented
before taxation and non-controlling interests.
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28. Financial instruments continved
Sensitivity analysis

Do T T am Twom T

impact on Impact on impact on impact on

profit tor total prof {or wotal

X th iod b the period :

10% strengthening against other currencies of ® per:m eqt;r?my perfq- eq;x
Sterfing - é - 5
US doliar 19 172 i2) 87
Furo {19} (41) 12 (24)
Other 14 22 12 24

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Group's profit before tax if the average rates used fo hransiate
the results of the Group's foreign operations into sterling were adjusted to show a 10% strengthening of sterling, A similar
but opposite impact would be felf on profit before tax if sterling weakened against the other currencies by a similar
amount.

T 2022 C T o

impact on Impaci on

profit tar proft for

X th fod the periad

1 0% strengthening of sterling against < perfm e ?m
S dollar (18) {19
Euro (3) 3
Australian doltar (&) i4)

g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties to financial insiruments do not perform according to the terms of the contract or
instrument. The Group's businesses are exposed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, and from
certain financing activities.

The immediate credit exposure of financial instruments is represented by thase financial instruments that have g net
positive fair value by counterparty at 17 September 2022. The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit risk to be:

. Consclidated Groun

2022 2071

£m £

Cash and cash equivalenis 2,226 2.50%
Investrments at amortised cost 4 3z
Investments ot fair value through profit and loss 1,381 1,162
Trade and ather receivablas 1.594 1.232
Other non-curent receivables 29 45
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 29 23
Derivative assets at fair value thraugh profit and lass 83 9
Derivative assets in designated cash flow hedging relationships . o &5 103
5,731 5115

The significant majority of cash balances and short-term deposits are held with strong investment-grade banks or
finoncial institutions.

The Group uses market knowledge, changes in credit ratings and other melrics to identify significant changes to the
financial profile of its counterparties.
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28. Financial instruments continued

Trade and other receivables

Significant concenltalions of credit risk are very limited as a result of the Group's large and diverse customer basé. The
Group has an established credit policy applied by each business under which the credit status of each new cusfomer is
reviewed before credit is advanced. This includes external credit evaluations where possible and in some cases bank
references. Credit limits are established for all significant or high-risk cusiomers, which represent the maximum amount
permitted to be outstanding without requiring additicnal approval from the appropriate level of management,
Cutstanding debts are continually monitored by ecach business, Credit limits are reviewed on a regular basls, and at least
annually. Customers that fail fo meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may only tfransact on a prepayment
bosis. Aggregate exposures are monitered at Group level.

Many customers have been transacting with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debts has been low.
Where appropriate, goods are sold subject to retention of title so that, in the event of non-payment, the Group may
have o secured claim. The Group does not typically require collateral in respect of frade and other receivables.

The Group provides for impairment of financial assets including trade and olher receivables based on known evenis,
and makes a collective provision for losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majority of the provision
comprises specific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, gross frade receivables cre assessed regularly by each business locally with
reference to considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical location of
each customer, and days past due (where applicable]).

Expected losses are determined based on the histerical experience of write-offs compared to the level of trade
receivables. These historical loss expectations are adjusted for current and forward-looking information where it is
identified to e significant. The Group considers factors such as national economic outlooks and bankruptcy rates of the
countries In which its goods are sold to be the maost relevant factors. Where the impaci of these is assessed as significant,
the historical loss expectations are amended accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk to have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over and expects these debts
to be provided for in full. Where the Group holds insurance or has a legal right of offset with debtors who are alse
creditors, the loss expectation is applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reascnable expectation of recovery, indicaters of which may include
the failure of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past

due.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of
origin was;
T o J _ _Consoligales Group
2022 2021
£m Em
UK 604 459
Eurcpe & Africa 385 306
The Americas 230 164
Asia Pacific - & 303
T T 1,594 1,232

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

. _ Consclidated Group

2022 2021

£m £m

Not overdue 1,134 906
Up to one month past due 141 101
Between one and two months past due 31 18
Between two and three months past due 12 7
More than three months past due 30 24
Bxpectedlossprevision e 0 24
1,321 1,032

Trade receivables are stated net of the following expected loss provision;

_ 'Eoinsadalié_q groqp

2022 2021

£m £rm

Opening balance 24 27
Increase charged fo the income staternent é 4
Amounts relecsed (4) 12}
Armounts written off m {3)
Effect of movements In foreign exchange e 23
Closing balance 27 24

No trade receivables were written off directly 1o the income statement in either year.
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28. Financial instruments continued

The geographical and business line complexity of the Group, combined with the fact that expected credit loss
assessments are all performed locally, means that it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit losses.

In relation to other receivables not forming part of tfrade receivables, a similar approach has been taken to assess
expected credit losses. No significant expected credit loss has been identified.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banking relationships are generadly selected for thelr credit slatus, globalreach and their abllity to meet the businesses’
day-to-day banking reguirements. The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Cperating

procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be ogreed with Group
Treasury. The Group has not recorded impairments against cash or cash equivalents, nor have any recoverability issues

been identified with such balances.
h} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associoted with its financial
iabifities as they fall due. Group Treasury s responsible for monitoring ond managing liguidiy ond ensures that the Group
has sufficient headroom in its committed facilities 10 meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements, The Group also has

access to uncommitted facililies Yo assist with short-term funding requirements.,

Avdilable hegdroom s monitored via the use of detailed cash flow farecasts prepared by each business, which are
reviewed at least quarterly, or more often, as required. Actual results are compared to budget and forecast each
period, and variances investigaied and explcined. Particulor focus is given 10 management of working capital.

The Board's treasury policies are in place to maintain a strong capital base and manage the Group's balance sheet to
ensure long-term financiai stabiiity. This includes maintaining access to significant total liquidity comprised of both net

cash and undrawn committed credit faciliies. These poiicies are the basis for investor, creditor and market confidence
and enable the successful develcpment of the business.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given in section i) on page é1.

The following taple anatyses the controctual undiscounted cash flows relating o financial iiabilities at the balance sheet

date and compares them to carrying amounts:

. - e
Due Due Due
between between between
Due within 4 manths Tand 2 2and § Due after Contracted Carmrylng
& months and 1year vears years Syears amount amount
tole £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (2,659) (28) - - - (2,687) (2.687)
Secured loans 21 - m (1} - - (2) {2
Unsecured loans and averdrafts 21 {153} (N (103} {31} (470) (774} (638)
Lease liabiities 27 (200) (217) (413) (1.127) {2.404) (4.361) (3.275)
Deferred consideration 23 [C)] 12 (W)} k)] - {20) {20)
Derivative financial liabilities
Curency derivatives {excluding cross- {15) (2) (mn - - {18) (22)
currency swaps] (net payments)
Commodity derivatives [net payments) (17Q) (1) {2) - - {(173) (173)
interest rate derivalives (nef payments) R A R C:) R <)
Total financial liabilities (3.204) {278) {521) {1,161) (2.874) (8,038) (6,818)
- - T - B T ___ Consolicated Group - o _
— — . 2 — .
Cue Due Due
Delwecs between oetween
Cus withir & monihs and 2 Zand 5 Due ofter  Con‘racted Carryng
& maonths and 1 yeor years years £ years amount amaunt
[\ie s £ £m £ L & £ £
Non-derivative financiol iabilities
Trade and ofher payables 22 (1,943} {204 — - - (1,963} {1,963}
Secured loans 21 {46) - ~ (1 - 147} {47)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 21 1320} (%) [13) {75} - [417) {405)
Lease liabilities 27 (177} 1193) [387) 11,074) 12.570) {4,401} {3,308}
Deferred consideration 23 {6) - (8) - - {14) (14)
Detivative financial labilities
Curency derivatives {excluding cross- 15) (2) - - - (7) (&)
currency swaps) (net payments)
Commodily derivafives [net payments) B - I e B L)
Tolal financial Nabilities |2.509) 1228) {408) 11,150) 12,570) [6.865) {5,759}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

28. Finoncial instruments continuved
The above tables do not include faorecast data for liabilities which may be incurred in the future but which were not
contracted at 17 September 2022,

The principal reasons for differences between carrying values and confractual undiscounted cash flows are coupon
payments on the fixed rate debt to which the Group is already committed, future interest payments on the Group's
lease liabilities, and cash flows on derivative financial instruments which are not aligned with their fair value,

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing faciliies available to . The undrawn committed facilities available at 17
September 2022, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been met, amounied to £1,567m (2021 - £1.145m):

" Consclicated Group.

7 . ow
Facility Drawn Undrawn Facity Drawn Undrawn
£m £m £Em L £ £m
Committed Revolving Credit Facility 1,500 - 1,500 1,088 - 1.088
Public Bond due in 2034 390 390 - - - -
US private placement a7 87 - 297 297 -
lhowo 77 12 65 65 10 55
Other w8 2 49 47 2
o 2,064 497 1,567 1,499 354 1,145

Uncommitted facilities available af 17 September 2022 were:

" Comsolidated Group

2022 . - T

Faeility Drawn Undrawn Focill'y Orawn Undrawn

£m £m £m Em im £m

Moneymarket ines 100 - 100 100 - 100
llovo 188 9% 8y 157 é3 94
Azucarera 36 2 34 30 5 25
China 39 - 39 37 - 37
Oher . 2 4 122 el % 13l
525 141 384 485 98 387

In addition to the above facilities there are also £114m (2021 - £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the
purposes of issuing letters of credit and guarantees in the normal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m due in 2034, Included are deferred financing costs totalling £10m which
have been capitaiised against the bond and are to be amortised over its term.

The Group has o £1.5bn Committed Revolving Credit Facility which matures in June 2027, The Group also has £87m of
private placement notes remaining in issue to instifutional investors in the US and Eurcpe which are due in 2024, A1 17
September 2022, these had an average remaining duration of 1.5 years and an average fixed coupon of 3.92%. The
other significant core commitied debt facilities are local committed facilities in lllovo.

Uncommitted bank borrowing facilities are normally reaffirmed by the banks annually, although they can theoretically
be withdrawn at any time.

Refer to note 10 for details of the Group's capgital commitments and to note 29 for a summary of the Group’s
guarantees.

i) Capital management

The capital structure of the Group is presented in the consolidated balance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capltal management, capltal includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to eguity shareholders, totalling
£8,106m (2021 - £7.099m). The consolidated statement of changes in equity provides details on equity and note 21
provides details of loans and overdrafts. Short- and medium-term funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan
and overdrait facilities, both commitied and uncommitted, with a range of counterparties and maturities. Longer-term
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond, the private placement notes and committed syndicated loan facilities.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
enable successful future development of the business. The Board monitors return on capital by division and determines
the overall level of dividends payable to shareholders.

From time to time the trustee of the ABF Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust purchases ABF shares in the market fo
satisfy awards under the Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back into the market. The Group
does not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries s subject to externally-imposed capital reqguirements.
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29. Contingencies
Litigation and other proceedings against the Group are not considered material in the context of these financial
statements.

Where Group companies enfer into financial guaraniee contracts 1o guarantee the indebiedness of other Group
companies, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements and has elected to account for them as such in
accordance with IFRS 4. In this respect, the guaramee contract is freated as a contingent liabiiity until such time as if
becomes probable that ihe relevant Group company issuing the guarantee will be required to make a payment under
the guarantee.

As at 17 September 2022, Group companies have provided guarantees in the ordinary course of business amounting o
£1,754m {2021 - £1,513m].

In 2021, a Thai court ruled in faveour of the Group's Ovaltine business in Thailand in a legal action it brought against one
of its suppliers in respect of ¢ contractual dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier had
overcharged Ovaltine Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 bilion Thai baht (£52m; 2021 - £48m). The relevant
contractual relationship between the Group and its supplier terminated at the end of 2019, The Group has not yet
recorded an asset inrespect of this matter as the defendant is appealing the judgment,

30. Related parties
The Group has a controling shareholder relationship with its parent company, Wittington investments Limited, with the
frustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. Furiher
details of the controlling shareholder relationship are included in note 32. The Group has o related party relationship with
its associates and joint venfures (see nole 32) and wilh its direciors. In the course of normal operations, relaied party
fransactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arm's length basis.

mMaterial fransactions and yvear end balances with related parties were as follows:

e T w12 T
note £000 £000
Dividends paid by Associated Brifish Foods plc ond received in o beneficial capacity by:
(i} trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and their close family ! 16217 5,299
{iiy directors of Wittington Investments Limited who are not frustees of the Foundation and
their close family 2 3,334 1,287
Sates to and commissions paid to cornpanies with common key management personnegl on
normaf trading tenms 3 16,897 14,280
Amounts due from companies with commaon key management personrel 3 2,898 1,705
Sales to joint ventures and associates on nomal frading terms 127,471 90812
Purchases from joint ventures and associates on normal frading terms 450,346 377.811
Amounts due fromjoinf ventures and associates 58,106 52.292
Armounts due to joint ventures and associates 30,808 24575
Provision for doubtiul detbis on amounts due rorm joint ventures and associates {300) [300)

. The Garfield Weston Faundation (The Foundation'] is an English charitable trust, esfablshed in 1958 by the late W. Gaifield Weston. The
Foundation has no direct interest in the Company. but as at 17 September 2022 was the beneficial owner of 483,073 shares (2021 - 683,073
sharest in wittington investments limited representing 79.2% (2021 = 79.2%} of the Company's issued share capital and is, therefore, the
Company's ulfimate controling parly. At 17 September 2022 trustees of the Foundation comprised nine grandchildien of the lte W. Gartield
Weston of whom five are children of the late Garny H. weston.

2. Details of the direciors of Witlington Investments Limited are given on page 5. Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in note 5.

3. The companies with common key management petsonnel are the George Weston Limited group. in Canada, and Selfridges & Co. imited.
Amounts due from joint ventures include £29m (2021 — £32m) of finance lease receivables (see note 16}. The remainder
of the baiance is frading balances. Al but £4m {2021 - £4m) of the finance lease receivables are non-current.

Details of the group's subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are set out in note 32.

31. Post Balance Sheef Event
Cn 15 Dacember the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £78.50, total value of £48m, was paid
between the 6 and 91 January 2023 to shareholders on the register on 15 December 2022.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 Saeptember 2022

32. Group entities
Control of the Group

The trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation ('1the Foundation')arc controlling sharehnlders of the Company, Certain
other individuals, including certain members of the Weston family who hold shares in the Company are, under the Listing
Rules, freated as acting in concert with the trustees of the Foundation and are therefore also treated as controlting

shareholders of the Company.
Subsidiary undertakings

A list of the Group's subsidiaries as at 17 September 2022 is given below, Given the Group owns 54.5% of the share
capital of ABF plc, the effective ownership of subsidiaries is 54.5% except where ownership percentages are shown.
These percentages give the Group's ultimate interest and therefore allow for situations where subsidiaries are cwned by
partly owned intermediate subsidiaries. Where subsidiaries have different classes of shares, this is largely for historical
reasons and the effective percentage holdings given represent both the Group’s voting rights and equity holding. All

subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group's financial stalements.

C T T T U meftectve halding

Subsidiary unaecttakings if not 54.5%

ST % mfachive halding

Subsidiary undertakings If not 54.5%

United Kingdom

Weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Street, Londorn,
WK 4QY, United Kingdom

A.B, Exploration Limited

A.B.F. Holdings Limited

AB.F. Nominees Lirnited

AB.F. Properties Limited

AB AgriLimited

AB Foods Australia Limited

AB Ingredients Limited

AB Maur (LK) Umited

AB Maur China Limited

AB Maur Eurcpe Limited

AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
AB Sugar China Limited

AB Sugar China North Limited
AB Sugar Limited

AB Technology Lirmited

AB World Foods {Holdings) Limited
AB World Foods Limited

ABF (No. 1) Limited

ABF (Mo. 2} Limited

ABF [(No. 3} Lmited

ABF BRL Finance Lid

ABF Energy Limited

ABF Eurcpe Finance Limited
ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ABF Food Tech Investrnents Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Products Limited
ABF Green Park Limited

ABF Grocery Limited

ABF HK Finonce Limited

ABF Ingredients Limited

ABF investments plc

ABF japan Limited

ABF MXN Finance Limited

ABF Overseags Limited

ARF plc

ABF PM Limited

ABF UK Finance Limited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ABF ZMW Finance Limited

ABN [Overseas) Limited

ABNA Feed Company Limited
ABNA Limited

Acetum (UK} Limited (previously Allied
Technical Centre Limited}

Agriines Limited

Alied Bakeries Uimited

Alled Grain {(Scotland) Limited
Alled Grain (South) Limiled

Alied Grain (Southern) Limited
Alled Grain Limited

Alied Mills (No.1) Limited

Allied Mills Limited

Allinson Limited

Associated British Foods Pension Trustees
Limited

Atrium 100 Properties Limited
Atrium 100 Stares Holdings Limited
Atrium 100 Stores Limited

B.E. International Foods Limited
Banbury Agriculfure Limited

British Sugar [Overseas) Limited
British Sugar plc

BSO {China) Limited

Cereal Industries Limited

Cereform Limited

Davijon Food Limited

Dorset Cereals Limited

Eastbow Securifies Limited
Elsenham Quality Foods Limited
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & Grain Limited

Food investments Limited

G. Costa (Holdings) Limited

G, Costaand Company Limited
Gerrnain's [UK.) Limited

H & Limited

llovo Sugar Africa Holdings Limited
John K. King & Sons Limited
Kingsgate Food Ingredients Limited
LeaflC Limited

Mauri Products Limited
Mountsfield Park Finance Lirmited
Nere Properties Limited

Nutrition Trading {International) Limited
Nutrition Trading Limited

Patak (Spices) Limited

Patak Food Limited

Patak's Breads Limited

Patak's Foods 2008 Limited
Premier Nutritiony Prociucts Limited
Pride Qils Public Limited Company
Primark (U.K.} Limited

Primark Austria Limited

Primark Mode Limited

Primark Pension Administration Services Limited

Wittington Investments Financial Statements 2022 63



DocuSign Envelope ID: 680A588C-BD00-48AA-861F-CE91EDB4360D7

Noles to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

32. Group entities continuved
- - o - - - 7%%&‘“‘;(.‘[\(«3]’16%”'@

Sybsdiary yndertgkings ifnot 54.5%

Primark Stores Limited

Primary Oiets Umited

Primary Nutrition Limited

Pro-Active Nutrition Limited

R. Twining and Cornpany Umited
Reflex Nutrition Lirmited

Roses MNutition Lid

Seedcote Systerns Limited

Serpentine Securities Umited

Sizzlers Limited

Sizzles Limited

Spectrum Aviation Limited

Speedibake Limited

Sunblest Bakeries Limited

The Bakery School Limited

The Bilington Food Groue Limited

The Home Grown Sugar Company Limited
The Jordans & Ryvita Company Limifed
The Naturai Sweetness Company Limited
The Roadmap Company Limited

The Silver Spoon Company Limited

Tip Top Bakeries Limited

Trident Feeds Limited

Twining Crosfield & Co. Limited

Vivergo Fuels Limited

W. Jordan & Son {Sio) Umited

W. Jordan {Cereals) Limited

wereham Gravel Company Limited (The)
Westmill Foods Limited

waeston Biscuit Company Limited (The)
Weston Foods Limited

Weston Research Laboratories Limitec
Worldwing Investrments Limited

Wonastow Road industrial Estofe, Monmouth
NF25 5JA, United Kingdom

Gresncoot tirmited

C/O Greencoat Limifed, Wonastow Road
indusirial Estate, Monmouth NP25 SJA, Unifed
Kingdom

Shep-Fair Products Limited

Unit 4, wonasfow Road Industial Estate,
Monmauth MP25 5JA, United Kingdomn
Greencoat Farm Limited

Unit ¢ & 5, Wonasfow Road industrial Estare
{West], Monmouth NPZ2S SJA, United Kingdom
Natural Vetcare Limited

Vemon House, 40 New North Road,
Huddersfield, Wesf Yorkshire HD T 508, United
Kingclorn

Proper Nutty Limited

i College Place North, Beffast, BT 6BG,
United Kingdom

James Neill, Limited

Unif 4, 211 Castie Road, Raondalstown, Co.
Antrim, BT41 2EB, United Kingdom

Jordan Bros. (ML) Limited

Nutrition Services finternational) Umited
Vistavet Limited

180 Glentanar Road, Glasgow, G22 7UP,
United Kingdom

ABN (Scotiand] Limited

Miller Samuel LLP, RWF House,

5 Renfield Street, Glasgow, GZ 5£7,

United Kingdaom
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subsdiary undertakinas if not 54.5%
Korway Foods Limited

Korway Holdings Limitedl

Patak's Chilled Foods Limited

Patok's Frozen Foods Limfted _ . B
United Kingdom - Non ABF

Weston Cenfre, 10 Grasvenaor Street, London,

WIK 4y, Unifed Kingdom

Aveary Row Management Umited 100%
Listergate Student Holdings Limited 100%
WINDL Offices Limited 85%
Wittihgton Investments [Developmenits] Limited 100%
wittington Investments {Properties) Limited 100%
Brighton Grand Hotei Operations Limited 100%
wittington Investments (Brighton Grand]} Limited 100%
Wittington invesiments {[Richmond Hiit Holel 1 00%
Limited

Richmond Hill Hotel {Operations) Limited 100%
Ceorge Weston Lirniled {dormant) 1007
Ciinton Farms Limited 100%
Howard Investments Limited 100%
wittington Investments (Private Equity) Limited 100%
wWitlingion Investrments Finance Limited 100%
WILH (Investments) Limited 100%
Wittington  Investments  PEF [Euro)  Limited

toreviousl Wittington Investments (17) Limited) 100%
wittington  Investments  PEF  [GBP) Limited

{previously Wittingfon Investrments (PPE) Limited) 100%
Witlingfon investments  PEF {USD)  Urnited

{previously Wittington Investments {CIP} Limited) 100%
196 Tottenham Courf Road, London, WIT 7LQ

Heal & Son Lirmited 100%
Heal's Holdings Limited 1007
Heal's Pension Fund Trustees Limited 100%
Heal's plc 100%
Heak {1810} Urited 100%
181 Piccadily, tondon, WIA 1ER

F. & M. Limited 100%
Forinum & Mason [Export} Limited 100%
Fortnum & Mason (London) Limited 100%
Fortnum & rMason Hospitality Limited 100%
Fortnum & mMason PIC 100%
Fortnums Limited 1009

United Kingdom - Non ABF - audit exempt

The following subsidiary companies of Wittington
Invastments Limited (note that Wittington Investments
{BSP) Limited is a subsidiary of Witlingion investmenis
{Finance) Limited) have availed themselves of the audit
exemption for subsidiary company under s479A-479C of
the Companies Act 2006 for the financial year ending
September 17th 2022,

As the parent company (or utimate parent company in
the case of Wittingion Investments (BSP} Limited),
Wittington Investiments Limited guarantees all outstanding
iabilities to which ecch subsidiary company listed below is
subject as at September 17th 2022:

% effective hoding

Subs.giary underiakings ifnet 54.5%
Weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Sireef, Londan,

WIK 4QY, Unifed Kingdom

wittington Investrnents (Ahren) Limited 100%
Wittington Investments fapolio) Limited 100%
Wittington Investmeants {Bestport) Limited 100%
wittington investments (BPA 1) Limited 100%



DocuSign Envelope ID: 680A588C-BD0G-48AA-861F-CEQ1EDS436D7

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

| % eflective halkding ' - ooty % effectve holding
Subsidiory urdertakings if not 54.5% Subsoigy undertakirgs iinot 54.5%
Wittington Investments [BSP VIII} Limited 100% The Jordans and Ryvita Company Australia Pty
wittington Investments [BSP) Limited 100% Lid
wittington Investrnents [BSPF) Lirmited 100% Yumi's Qualty Foods Pty Lid
wittington nvestments (BV ) Uimited 100% 35-37 South Corporate Avenue, Rowvilie,
Wittington Investments [Careplaces) Limited 100% VIC 3178, Australia
Witfingion Investments {Dunedin Il Limited 100%  ABFood & Beverages Australia Pty. Limited
wittington Investiments {(Dunedin Limited 100% 170 South Gippsiand fighway, Dandenong,
Wittinglon Investments (FAP! 1) Limited com VIS5 Australia )
Wittingtan Investments (FAPI} Limited 1005  ABF Wynyord Parc limited Partnerstip.
witfington Investments (FIPL) Limited 100% Aus'mq 7 »
Wittington Investments (Graphite) Lirmited 100% W'of!zede i ”‘?‘ G, 1010 Vienna, Ausing
Wiltington Invostments (Harhourvest) Limited 100% Primark Austria Ltd & Co KG
Witiington Investments (Next Wave| Limited 10W%e sfﬂffenbochgfrcsse, 82-88/51g 1/Top 5. 1190
Wittihnglon Investments (OCP) Limited 100% enna, Austria
e L Mutriialbs GmisH
Witfington Investments {Reof} Limited 100% Bangladesh T TT U ottt omrTooomonoos
Wittington Investments (Sandaire) Lirmited 100%
Wittington Investments (VOT) Limited oop  Lovel 13 Shanta Wester Tower,
i Bir Uttam Mir Shawkat Road, 186 Tejgaan /A,
witlington Investments (WHEB) Limited 100% Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh
Wiltington investments (WPX) Limited 100% Twinings Ovalting Bangladesh Limited
Argentina Brelrg'ium - - ) )
Marscal Antorio Jose de Sucre 632 - 2nd Ficor, Industiepark 2d, 9820 Merelbeke, Belgivm
Buenos Aires 1428. Argenfina AB Maur Belgiurm NV
AB Mauri Hispanoamerica 5.A. Chaussee de lka Hulpe 177720, 1170 Bruxelles.,
Surgras $.A {in liguidation) Belgium
Av. Raul Alfonsin, Monte Chingolo, Primark SA
Buenos Aires 3145, Argentina Brazil - - T ) )
Compania Argentina De levaduras $.ALC. Avenida Tieté, L-233 Baranca do Rio Tieté,
Australia City of Fedemeiras, Stafe of Saa Paulo,
Building A, Level 2, 11 Talavera Road, CEP 17.280-000, Brazi
North Ryde, NSW 2113, Australia AB Brasilindustria e Comércic de Alimentas Lida
AB Mauri Overseas Holdings Limited Alameda Madeira 328, 20th Floor, Room 2005,
AR Maur Pakistan Pty Umited Atphovﬂ!e — Barven, Sao Paulo 06454-010, Brazil
AB Maur ROW Holdings Pty Limited AB Enzimas Brasil Comercial Lida

AR Maur South America Pty Limited Avenida Dra. Ruth Cardoso, n:°_7.22_J,> 11 floor,
AB Maur South West Asio Ply Limited Room 1107 {parte)], Condominio Edificio

aun soulh West Asia Py Limile Birmann 21, Pinheiros, CEP 05425-902, Cify of
AB Maur Technology 8 Development Pty Sao Paulo, State of Sao Paulo, Braz!

Limited ) . AB Vista Brasil Comércio De Alimentagdo
AB Maun Technology Pty Limited Animal Lidg

AB World Foods Pty Ltd N T T T T T T T T T T T T ST T ST T s e s m e

Anzchem Pty Limited Canada
nzenem By !m| & Blake, Cassels & Graydon HLFP, 199 Bay Steef,
AusPac Ingredienis Pty Ltd

CCD Animal Health Py Lid Suite 4000, Toronto, Onlario M3l 1A, Canada
nimarneatn fly AR Mauri (Canada] Limited
Dagan Trading Pty. Ltd -

L Chile
Food Invesiments Ply. Limited Miraflores Street No. 222, 28 Floor, Santiago,

George Weston Foods (Victoria) Pty Lid Chile

George Weston Foods Limited Caba Chile Inversiones Umitada
Indonasian Yeast Company Pty Limited ’ o T
Mauri Fermentation Brazil Pty Lirmited
Mauri Fermentation Chile Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation China Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation India Pty Limited
Mawri Fermentation Indonesia Ply Limited
Mauri Fermentation Malaysia Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Philippines Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Vietnam Pty Limited
Maurl Yeast Australia Pty Limited

N&C Enterprises Pty Ltd

NB Love Industries Pty Lid

Semol Ingredients Pty Limited
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32. Group entities conlinued

B | Baffectiva hoiding
Subsid ary urdertakings if Nt 5459
China

ro. 1 Tongcheng Street, A Cheng Disfrict,
Harbin, Heflongjiang Province, China

AB {Horbin) Food Ingredients Company Limfred
Harbin Mauri Yeast Co., L. [in iquidation)
North Huang He Road. Rudong

New Fconomic Development Zone,

wantong City, Jiangsu Province, China

AB Agri Animal Nutrition [Nantang) Co., Ltd

AB Agri animal Nutrition (Rudong| Ca., Lia.

NO 28. South Shunjin Rood, Yintai District,
Tongchuan, Shoarnxi Province, Chino

AB Agr Animal Nutrifion {Shaard) Co., tid.
Chuangxin Road, Tonggu industry Zone, Sandu
Town, Tonggu County, Jiangxi Province, China
AB Agri Pumeixin Tech {Jiangxi) Co. iid.

Room 2802, Raffles City Changning,

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changning Disirict,
Shanghaoi, 200051, China

AB Enzymeas Trading [Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Room 2803, Rafffes Cify Chongning.

No. 1189 Chongning Road, Changning Disfrict,
Shonghoi, 200051, Ching

ABNA Managemen?t [Shanghai) Co., Lid.
ABNA Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Room 2906 Rafffes City Changning,

No, 1189 Changning Road, Changning Disfrict,
Shanghai, 200051, China

Associated British Foods Holdings (China) Co., Lid
Unit 006, Roorn 401, Floor 4, Building 1, No. 15
Guanghua Road, Chacyang District, Beling,
China

AR Maur {Befing) Food Sakes and

rMarketing Company Limited

Buitding 1. 35 Chi Feng Road . Yangpu District,
Shanghai 200092, China

AB Maur Foods (Shanghai) Company Limited
868 Yongpu Road, Pufiang Town,

Minhang District, Shanghai 201 112, China
ABNA (Shanghai] Feed Co., Lid.

4 juhail Rood, Jinghoi Development Zone,
Yiangin, Ching

ABNA [Tianjin) Feed Co. Lid

Shu Shan Modern industrial Zone of Shou
County, Huainan Cify, Anhui Province, Ching
ABMA Feed (Anhuil Co., Ud,

145 Xincheng Road. Tengao Economic
Development Zone, Anshan,

Liconing 114225, Ching

ABNA Feed {Liooning) Co., Lid.

17 Xiangyang Street, Tu Township, Chayou
Giangi, Inner Mongaotia, China

Bofian Sugar Indushy [Chayou Qiangi] Co., Ltd.
No. 1 Botian Road, Economic Development
Zone, Zhangbei County, Zhangjiakou City,
Hebei Province. Ching

Botian Sugar Industry (Zhangbei] Co., Lid.
Raoam 1710, No.368, Changjiang Raad.,
rangang Concenidrated District, Economic
Development Zonea, Harbin, China

Botion Sugar indusiry Co., Lid.

Y induskial North Street, Zhangjiakou, Zhangbei
County, Hebei Province, China

Hebei Mauri Food Co., Ltd.

8 tancun Road, Fcanomic and Technicat
Development Zone, Minhang. Shonghai
200245, China
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% oftactioe l\-aLd_mg-

Subssichory undeitakings if nol 54.5%
Shanghai AB Food & Beverages Co., Ltd

Na. 88-1, Shuanglong Road, Fushan District,

Yantai City, Shandang Province, China

YontoiMaur Yeas! Co, Ud. . 0%
Colombia

Cra 35# 34A-64, Palmira, Valle, Colombia

Flebchmann Foods .4, .
Czech Republic

Neovdraing 523, 349 01 Stfbro, Czech Repubiic

Bodit Tachov s.r.o.

Patiadium, Na Poficl 1079/3a, Prague 1, 11000,

Crech Republic

Primark Prodeiny sr.o. . o

Denmark

Skiermvej 42, Trigstrup, 6920 Videboek, Denmark

AB Neo A/S

Middelfartveg 77, Baring, 5466 Asperup,

Denmark

Cowconnect ApS

Ecuador

Medardo Angel Silva 12y Panamd, Manzana

12, £l Recreo, Eloy Alfaro, Durdn, Guayas,

Fcuador

ABCALSAS.A. . i
Eswatini

tbombo Sugar Limited, Old Main Road,

Big Bend, Eswalini

Bar Circle Ranch Limited 33%
llova Swazitand Limited 33%
Moyeni Ranch Limited 33%
Unomioo Sugar Limited 3%
Finiand

Tykkimdentie 15b (PO Box 26), Rajamdki,
FI-05200, Fintand

AB Erzymes Oy

Tykkimdentfie [ 5b (PO Box 57/, Rajomdki,
F05201, Finland

Enzyrnes Leasing Finland Oy

Koskelontie 19 B, Espoc, F-02920, finland
Alimetrics Group Oy
Alimetrics Diagnostics Oy
Alimetrics Research Oy
AR Vista Fnland Gy
France o ’
40742, avenue Georges Pompidiou, 69003,
alyon, france

AB Mauri France

25 Rue anatole France, 92300 Levallois-Perret,
France

Twinings & Co SAS

11 Rue de Milan, 75009, Paris, France

ABFI France SAS

Cenfre Commercial Regional Crétell Solell,
Niveau 3, 131 Avenue du Général de Gaulle,
24000, Crétefl,. France

Primark France SAS

845 Chemin du Vation du marre, 13240,
Septemes les Vallons, Fronce

SP Phiarma SAS

ZAE Via Europa, 3rue d'Athénes, 34350
Vendres.France

Fytexia Group

Fytexia
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32. Group entlities continued

% effective halding

T Geffective Ralding

Subsidiary undertakings if no* 54.5% Sutssiciany undertakings i nol 54.5%
Germany Primark Pension Trustees Limited
Feldbergsirasse 78, 64293, Darmstad!, Germany | Stokes Place, $t. Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2,
AB Enzymes GrmbH refand
Wandsbeker Zollstrasse 59, 22041, Alied Mills Ireland Limited
Hamburg, Germmany Unit 5, Hebron House, Macdonagh Junction,
ABF Deutschland Holdings GmbH Kikenny, RZ5T?1Y, Ireland
Ohly GmbH Intelync Technology Limited
Ohly Grundbesitz GmbH Arthur Ryan House, 22-24 Parnell Streef.
Rhenische Prasshefe- und Spritwerke GmibH nghn J,Afre‘!ond
Kennedyplafz 2, 45127, Essen, Germany Primork L\mﬂe'-d L
Frimark Mode Lid. & Co. KG Primiark Austria Limited
Primark Property GrmiH Primark Mmode Limited
. 13 Classon Howuse, Dundrum Business Park,
g;‘fr‘;f’;f;”“se 28, 60325, Frankfurt am Main, Dundrum, Dublin 14, D14X9F9 ireland
Wander GrmbH Nufritional Advanced Formulas (relond) Limited
Marie-Kahle-Allee 2, D-531 13, Bonn, Germany ltaly _
Westmill Foods Europe GmbH Viale Monfe Nero, 84, 20135, Mitan, Haly
Greece T T oTT T AB Agriltaly Sirl
28. Dimitriou Soutsou Sir, Athens. GR 11521, Vio Milano 42, 27045, Casteggio, (Pavia). fialy
Greece AB Mauri Italy S A,
PSH Teal Single Member S.A. ABF Iraly Holdings S.rl.
(_;G;s_e?______—_____ TTTTThTmmmrmr e Largo Francesco Richini 2/A, 20122, Milan, ltaly
Dorey Court, Admiral Park. St. Peter Port, Primark Ifafy Sr.l
GYI 2HT, Guemsey Via Rizzoftc 46, 41126, Modena (MO}, Italy
Talisman Guernsey Umited o Acetaic Fini Modena Sl
Hong Kong Via Sandro Pertini 440, 401314, Cavezzo (MO,
Workshop D, 8th Floor, Eeason Croup Tower, ttaly
No.403 Castle Peak Read, Kwai Chung, New Acetum S.p.A.
Tenifories, Hong Kong Via Garibaldi 84, Magenta, 20013, Milan, fialy
Associated British Foods Asia Pacific ALP Immobiiicre Sr.l, 38%
Holdings Limited _ Vig Gran Sasso, 33, Corbetta, 20011, Milan, fialy
Hungary B Natural S.r.l. 38%
Kdrolyi utca 12. 3. em., Budapest, 1053, Hungary jersé; CoT oo or e T
PSHvioletkft. st Floor, Durell House, 28 New Street, S1. Heller,
India JEZ 3RA, Jersey
#218 & #219, Bornmasandra — Jigani Link Road, Bonuit Investments Limited [dissolved on 20
Anekol Taluk, Bangaiore, 560105, rdia Seplember2022)
AB Mauri India Private Limited Luxembourg — Non ABF
First Floor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Ft Road, 8th 3A, val Sainte Croix, L-1371 Luxembourg 10C%
Biock, Koromangala Bengaluru, Kamatoka, WIF Luxembourg S.ar.l.
560030, F.ﬂd{cr . o Malawi 7
?;;ff]ei}omeg F;:orn;o;rlvc;ie L;gfec; o iova House, Churchill Road, Limbe, Malawi
, New Budge Budge Trun , . .
Dakghar, Kolkala wEsrgBengoJ, 700141, Indii Dwangwa Sugar Cerporation Limitedd 4%
Twinings Private Limited llova SfJgOr tMC_]b_WU pic 4%
indonesia Mq:qw Sugartimited R
. . Malaysia
;/Jg?:ggf?gfﬁ%%gg;?g;of\io.28 Jhsend, Unif 30-01, Levet 30, Tower A, Verfical Business
PT AB Food & Beverages Indonesia {in Suife, Ave_nue_:i, Bangsar Souih, NO'B’.‘W‘?OO
fquidation] Jalon Ke{mchx, KL.JOIG Lumpur, Malaysia
reland AB Malur Malaysia Sdn. Bhd, 8%
. Malta
i}k;g;g;:zi:;:g:'ﬁ?eg refand 171 O{q ngery Street, Valletta, VLT 1455, Malta
Primark Holdings Unlimited Company Relax Limited I -2
Wittington Investments Financial Statements 2022 &7
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Notes to the consolidated financiol statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 Sepiember 2022

32. Group entities continued

‘% efeciive holding
Supsidiary underfakings ifnot 54.5%
Mauritius

10th Floor, Standard Charered Tower,

19 Cybercity, Fhene, Mountius

llovo Group Financing Services

lovoe Group Holdings Limited

llove Group Marketing Services Limited

Kilombera Holdings Limited

Sucorna Holdings Limijed

Mexico

Paseo de fa Reforma No 2620, Edificio Reforma

Plus, pisa 8, 803, 804 y 805, Col. Ltomas Aflas, DF

11950, Mexico

AB CALSA S.A.de C.V.

Avenida Javier Banos Siema 495, piso 7 oficina

07-102, Col, Santa Fe, Alvaro Obregdn, Ciudad

de Mexico, 01219, Mexico

ACH Foods Mexico, §.deRL. de CV.

Mozambigque

Km75 ENI. Magiona, Disrito de  Manhiga,

Provincia de Maputo, Mozombique

Maragra Acucar, S.A.

Netherlands

Milweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrecht, Netherdands

AB Maui Metherlands B.V.

AB Maur Netherlands European Holdings BV,

Foods International Holding B.v.
var  Oldenbameveltplaats
Ratterdlam. Netherands

Primark Fashion B.V.

Prirnark Netheriands B.V.

Primark Siil B.V.

Weena 505, 3013AL Rofterdam, Netherands
AB Vista Europe B.V.

3a. 3012 AH.

7122 US Aagiften, Dinxperiosestraatweg 127,
Netherands

Gerrnains Seed Technology B.V.

Oude  Kerkstraal 55 4878 AK, Ehten-leur,

Netherands

Mauri Technology B.V.

Laarderhoogtweg 25, 1101 £8 Amsferdam,
MNetherkands

Westmill Foods Europe BV,

New Zediand

Building 3, Level 2, 666 Great South Road, Eltershie,
Auckiond 1051, New Zealand

Alied Foods (NZ) Lid

Anzchem NZ Limited (dissoved 28 October 2022)
AusPac ingredients NZ Umited

George Weston Foods [NZ) Limited

57 Forge Road, Siverdate 0932 New Ffealand
Dad's Pies Umifed

Nigeria

23 0Obo Akinjobi Street, GRA, kejo. Lagos, Nigeria
Twinings Ovatting Nigeria timited

Pakistan

21KM Ferozepur Road, 2 KM Hadyvara Drain,
Lahore, Pakistan

AB tauri Paxkton (Prvate) Limitedt

L8R

68 Wittington investments  Fingnciol Siaternents 2022

T 7, effective hokding

Peru

Poland

Foland

Poland

Sp.zo.o)

Poland

Portugal

Subsiciary ynaeriakings if not 54.5%
Av, Republica de Argentina No. 1227, 2.1 Lo
Chofaca, Calico, Pery
CaboPeriS.A.C. el
Philippines
86 £ Rodiguez Jr. Ave., Ugong Norte, QC, 1604,
Pasig Cify. Mefro Manila, Philippines
AB Food & Beverages Philppines, INc. 54%
1201-1202 Prime Land Building, Marke! Sfreef,
Madrigdd Business Park, Avala Alabang,
Muntinlupa, 1770, Philippines
AB Mauri Phifippines, Inc. ~
Przemystowa 2. 67-100 Nowa Saf, Lubuskie,
AB Foods Pokka Spolka z ograniczona
odpowiadzianoscia [AB Foods Polska Sp.z o.0.]
Towarowa 28,00-839 Warsaw, Poland
Primark Sklepy spolka z ograniczona
odpowiedzamoscia {Primark Skispy sp. 2.0.0)
ul. Robowickag 29/31, 62-020, Swarzedz - Jasin,
R. Twining and Company Spdtka z ograniczona
odpowiedzianoscia [R. Twining and Company
ul. GIdwna 34, Bruszczewo, 64-030 Smigiel,
AB Neo Polska spolka z organiczona
odpowiedzianoscia [AB Neo Polska Sp. 2.0.0)
foreviously AB AgriPolka Sp. zo0) o
Avenida Salvador Allende, n.° 99. Lishoa Oeiras,
Juli&io da Barra, Pago de Arcas e Caxias, 2770-
157, Faco de Arcos, Portuga!
52%

AB Mauri Porfugal, S.A.

Rug Castitho 50, 1250-071, Lisbon, Porfugal

Loijas Primark Portugal ~ Exploracaao, Gestao e
Administracao de Espacos Comercials S.A._
Remanio

Distict 1, 163 Calea Floreasca. One Tower, 12th
Floor, Bucharsst, Romania

Primark Magazine SR L. {previously P.§.R. Indigo)
Rwanda
tNyarugenge District, Nyarugenge Sectar,
Kigadh City, Rwanda

tovo Suger Kigal tmitea
Singapore -

80 Robinsan Road, #02-00, 068898 Singupore
AB Maur Investments [Asial Pte Lid

112 Robinson Road #0501, 068902 Singopore
A Vista Asia Pre. Limited
Siovakia

Staromestska 3, 811 03 Bratisiava - Stare Mesfo,
Siovakia

Brimark Siovakiasro.
Slovenia

Bieiweisova cesta 30, Ljubliana, 1000, Slovenia
Primark Trgovine, frgovsko podjetie, d.o.o.
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32. Group entities continued
T % effoctive ho'\diag;

Subsidigry unaertakings if not 54.5%

T % effec’ive hoding

Subsidiary undertakings i nat 54.5%

South Africa

I Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhlanga Rocks,
Kwazulu Natal 4320, South Africa

CGS Investments (Pty] Limited

East African Supply (Pty) Limited

Glendale Sugar (Pty) Ltd

loveo Distributors (Pty) Limited

Novo Sugar (South Africa) Proprietary Limited

lllevo Sugar Africa Proprietary Limited

llprop (Pty) Limited

Lacsa {Pty) Limited RR%
Noodskerg Sugar Company (Pty) Lid
Reynolds Brothers [Py) Ltd

S.A, Sugar Distributors (Py] Limited

Spain

Calle Cardenal Marcelo Spincla, 42, 28016,
Madrid, Spain

AB Azucarera Iberia, S.L. Sociedad Unipersonal

AB Vista Iberia, S.L.

Calle Levadura, 5 14710, Vilarrubia, Cordoba

AB Maur Food, S.A

AB Maur Spain, S.LU.

ABF Iberia Holding S.L.

C/ Esculter Coomonte n®. 2, Enfreplanta,

Benavente, Zamora, Spain

Agroteo S.A. 29%
Calle Comunidad de Murcia, Parcela LIE-1-03,

Plataforma Logistica de Fraga, 22520, Huesca,

Spain

Alternative Swine Nutrition, S.L.

Calle Escoles Pies 49, Planta Baja, 08017

Barcekona, Spain

DR Hedlthcare Espana, 5.L.U.

Avienda Virgen de Montserat, 44 Castellol,
08719, Barcelona, Spain

Germains Seed Technology. S.A.

Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasse $/N. Torre Picasso,
Pianta 37, Madrid, Spain

llove Sugar Espana, S.L.

Gran Via, 32 50 28013, Madrid, Spain
Primark Tiendas, S.L.U.

8, 2 Calle Via Servicio |, 2 CP, 19150 Torija,
Guadalajara, Spain

Prirmark Logistica, S.L. Sociedad Unipersonal
$i Lanka -
124 Termplers Road, Mount Lavinia, S Lanka
AB Mauri Lanka {Private) Limited

Sweden

Retzius vég 8, 171 65, Soina, Sweden
Larodan AB

Switzerland

Fabriksfrasse 10, CH-3176. Neuenegg,
Swifzerland

Wander AG
Tawan
SF. No. 217, Sec 3, Nanking E Rd, Taipei City,

104, Taiwaon (R.O.C.)

ABFood and Beverages Taiwan, Inc.
Tanzania

Msolwa Mill Office, Kidatau, Kilombero District,
Tanzania

love Distilers (Tanzania) Limited
llovo Tanzanic Limited
Kilomiberd Sugar Company Limited . M%

Theailand

11th Floor, 2535 Sukhumvit Road, Kwaeng
Bangchak, Khet Prakhanong, Bangkok, 10260,
Thaikand

AB Food & Beverages (Thailand) Lid.

ABF Holdings {Thailand) Ltd.

1 Empire Tower, 24th Floor, Unit 2412-2413,
South Sathorn Road, Yannawa, Satham,
Bangkok, 10120, Thailand

AB World Foods Asia Lid

2200110 Moo 1, Tepwvrak Road, T,
Bangsaothong, A. Bangsaothong.
Samutprakarn, 10540, Thailand
dasol Asia Pacific Limited

Turkey

Aksakal Mahallesi, Kavakpinan, Kume Evleri
No. 5, Bandirma- Balkesir, 10245, Turkey

Maur Maya Sanayl AS.
United Arab Emircates

Office 604° Jofza LOB 15, Jebel Al Freezone,

Dubai, PO BOX 17620, United Arab Emirates
AB Maur Middlle East FZE

United States

CT Corporation System, 818 West Seventh
Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles CA 0017,
United States

AB Mauri Food Inc.,
The Corporation Trust Company. Comporafion
Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington DE
19801, United States

AB Enzymes, Inc.

AB Vista, Inc.

AB World Foods US, Inc.

ABF MNorth Americo Corp.

ABF North America Holdings, Inc.

Abitec Comporation

ACH Food Companies, inc.

ACH Jupiter LLC

B.V. ABF Delaware, Inc. {in iquidation)
BakeCood, LLC

Germains Seed Technology. Inc.

PGP International, Inc.

Primark US Corp.

SPI Pharma, Inc.

SPI Polyols, LLC

Twinings North America, Inc.

101 Arch Street, Floor 3, Boston MA 02110,
United States

Primark GCM LLC

158 River Road, Unit B, Clifton, NI 07014,

United States

Balsamic Express LLC

158 River Road, Unit A, Cilifton, NJ Q7014,

United States

mModena Fine Foods, Inc.

Registered Agent Solutions, 1220 S St Ste 150,
Sacramentc CA 95811

PennyPacker, LLC

Registered Agent Solutions Inc.. 9 E Loockerman
Street Suite 311, Dover, Kent DE 19701, United
States

Prosecco Source, LLC

251 Lttle Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808,
United States

Fytexic Corp.

Witlington Investments Financial Statements 2022 69



DocuSign Envelope 1D: B80A588C-BD00-48AA-861F-CES1ED843607

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

32. Group entities confinued 7

T % effective kE‘Qi(\g N
Subsdiary underiaking, it not 54.5%
Uruguay

Cna. Carlos Antonio Lopez 7547,

Montevideo, Uruguay
Llevadura Uruguaya S.A.

Venezvela
Oficings Once 3 (N° 11-3) y Once 4 {N° 11-4),
Tomre Mayupan, Centro Comercial San Luis,
Av.Principal Urbanizacion Son Luls, cruce con
Calle Comercio, Caracas, Bolivarian Republic
of Venezuela

Allmentos Fleischmann, C.A.,

Compafia de Alimentos Latinoamericana
de Venezuela (CALSA} S.A.

Vietnam

Unit 2, 100 Nguyen Thi Minh Khai Street.
ward 6, District 3 Ho Choi minh City, Vietnam
AB Agr Vietnam Company Limited

La Nga Commune, Dinh Quan Disfrict, Dong
Nai Province, Vietnarm
AB Maur Vietnomtmited . _ -
Zambia B
Nakombatio Estates, Plof No. 118a Lulbombo
Road, Off Great North Road, Zambig

thovo Sugar {Zambial Limited
Nanga Farms PLC

Tukunka Agricultural Umited
Zambia Sugar ple

3%

PN
A
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32, Group entities continued

Joint ventures

A list of the Group's joint ventures as at 1/ September 2022 1s given below. All joint ventures are includead in the Group's

financicl statements using the equity method of accounting.

Jaint ventures

% holding

United Kingdom

Weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Street, London.

WK 40, United Kingdom

Frontier Agriculture Limited 50%
Boothmans (Agriculture) Limited 50%
Forward Agronomy Limited 50%
G FP {Agriculture) Limited 50%
GH Grain Limited 50%
GH Grain [No, 2) Limited 5%
Grain Harvesters Limited 50%
Infracrop Limited 50%
MNomix Limited S0%
North Wold Agronomy Limited 50%
Phoenix Agronomy Limited 50%
SOYL Limited 50%
The Agronomy Partnership Limited 50%

Berth 36, Test Road, Eastern Docks, Southampton,

Hampshire, SO 14 3GG, United Kingdorm
Southampton Grain Termingl Limited 50%

Kingseat, Newmacher, Aberdeenshire,

AB21 QUE, Scotond, United Kingdom
Euroagkem Limited 50%
Lothian Crop Specialists Limited 50%

Riverside, Wissington Road, Nayland, Colchesfer,

Essex, CO6 4LT, United Kingdom

Anglia Grain Holdings Limited 0%

Anglia Grain Services Limited 50%

Unit 8, Burnside Business Park, Burnside Road, Market

Brayton, TFQ 3UX, United Kingdom
B.C.W {Agricutture] Limited 50%

Witham St Hughs, Lincoin, LN6 TN, United Kingdom

MNomix Envire Limited 50%

Fagle Labs Incubator, 28 Chesterfon Road.

Cambridge, England, CB4 3A7

Yagro Lid 50%

United Kingdom - Non ABF

Prologis House, Blythe Gate, Blythe Valley Park,

Solihull, BYO 8AH

Tango Real Estate LLP 80%

Second Floor, 11 Waterloo Street, Brmingham B2 578

Nurfon Developments (Quintus) Limited ———— 50%

Australia

Building A, Level 2, 11 Talavera Road, North Ryde

NSW 2113, Australia

Fortnum & Masons Pty Limited o 33%

Chile

Ave. Balmaceda 3500, Valdivia, Chile

tevaduras Collico S.A. 50%

China o

1828 Tigjueshan Road, Huangdaao Districl, Qingdaa,

Shandong Province, China

Qingdao Xinghua Cereal Ol and Foodstuff Co., Ltg 25%

1 East Ren Min Road, Regiment 44, Cocodala,

Xinjiang, China

AB Maur Yihai Kerry {Cocodala) Food Co., Ltd.

(previously Xinjiang Mauri Foed., Lid) 0%

Room 607, 6th Floor, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong

New District, Shanghai China

AB Maur Yihgi Kerry Investment Company Limited 50%

Joint ventures

% holding

Roaom 608, éth Flioar, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong
New Chsfrict, Shanghai, China

AB Mauri Yiha Kerry Food Marketing [Shanghai} Co.,
Lid

Ta Ha Comprehensive Industrial Park, Fuyy County
Fconomic Development Area, Qigihar, Hellongjiong
Frovince, China

AB Maur Yihai Kemry (Fu Yu) Yeast Technology Co.,
Ltd

9 Tonggang Road, Shage Village, Nonpu rown,
Quangang Areq, Quanzhou, Fujion Province, Ching
AB Maur Yihai Kery [Quanzhou) Yeast Technology
Co. Lid.

intersection of finotong Avenue ond Zhoushan
Road, Gang Disfrict, Zhoukou, Henan Province,
Ching

AB Maur Yihai Kemy [Zhoukou) Yeast Technology
Co., lid.

Xinsha Industrial Zone, Machong Town, Dongguan,
Guangdong Province, China

AB Maurl Yihai Kemry [Dongguan) Food Co., Lid

Finland

Tykkimdentie 15b (PO Box 57), Rajarndiki,
FIN-05201, Finland

RooiOy
France

59, Chemin du Moulin, 695701, Carron, Dardifly,
France

Synchronis
Germany
Brede 4, 59348, Wermne, Germany
UNIFERM GmbH & Co. KG

INA Nathrmittel GmibH
UNIFERM Verwaltungs GmiH
Bredle 8, 59368, Weme, Germany
UNILOG GmbH
Japcmri

34F Atago Green Hills Mori Tower, 2-5-1 Atago,
Minato-ku, Tokye 105-6236, Jopan

Twinings Japan Co Ltd

50%

50%

50%

50%

_ _50%_

50%
50%
50%

50%

0%

Polond

ul. Wybieg, nr 5, 1ok 9, miesjsc, KOD 61-3135,
FPoznan, Foland

Uniferm Polska SpZ.0.0

South Africa

I Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhlanga Rocks,
Kwazuiu Natal 4320, South Affica
Glendale Distiing Company
Spain

C/ Raimundo Ferndndez, Villaverde 28, Madrid,
Spain

Compafia de Melozas, S.A.

United States

The Corporafion Trust Company, Comoration Trust
Center, 1209 Orange Sireet, Wimington DE 19801,
Unifed States

Stratas Foods LLC
Stratas Recevables I LLC

wittington Investmenids Financial Statements 2022
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32. Group entities continved

Associates

A list of the Group's associates as at 17 September 2022 is given below. All associates are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity methoed of accaunting.

A:ss!ocict-és - % hCTd‘mq

United Kingdom
Paciofi House, Duncan Close, Maoulfon Park Industrial
Estate, Northamplon, NN3 6WL United Kingdom

Bakers Basco Limited 20%

Paternoster House, 65 St Paul's Churchyard.,
London, EC4M 8AB, United Kingdom

C. Crarnikow Lmited 43%
Czamikow Group Limited 43%
C. Czarnikow Sugar Futures Limited 43%
C. Czarnikow Sugar Limited 43%
Sugarworld Limited 43%

MNorthants Apc, Rushton Road, Ketterng, NN T4 FL
England, Unifed Kingdom
Navara Oai Milfing Limited
United Kingdom ~ Non ABF
Parker Cavendish, 28 Church Rood, Stanmore,

Middiesex, HA7 4XR,

Vanneck Residentical LLP A%
Unit 1 Woaodley Park Estafe, 59-69 Reading Road,

Woodley, Reading, RG5 3AN

Davidson Holdings Umited 28%
Beverey Park Golf Range, Beverley Way, New Malden,

Surrey, K13 4PH

The Adventure Experience Limited 44%
7 Savoy Court, London, WC2R 0EX

19%

tondon Theatre Company tHoldings Limited - 19%
Australia

283 Flagstaff Road, Brinkiey SA 5253, Australic

Big Pork River [Australia) Pty Ltd 20%
Big River Pork Py Ltd 20%
Murray Bridge Bacon Pty Ltd 20%
32 Davis Road, Wethenll Park, Sydney NSW 2164,

Australia

New Food Coatings Py Lid _ __ 50%
Bahrain

Suite No. 1959 Diplomafic Commercial Office, Tower B,

Building No. 1565, Road 1722, Diplomatic

Area/Manama 317, Bahrain

Czarnikow Supply Chain Sales for Food & Beverage

Ingrediients Bohiain $PC. _ 4%

Brazil

Avenida Fresidente Juscelino Kubitschek, n.® 2.04], 17°
andar- Vilg Olimpia, CEP 04.543-011, 586 Paulo, Brasil
Czarnikow Brasil Lida 43%
Rua Fidéncio Ramos, 308, cjé4, Torre A, Vila Climpia.

Sdo Paulo, SP. Cep 04551-010, Basil

CzEnergy Comercialzado Ra De flanol SA - 2%
China i

Room 17A01, 232 zhong Shan éth Road, Guangzhou

City, Guangdeng Frovince, 510180, Chino

C. Czarnikow Sugar (Guangzhou} Company Lid _ 43%
india

House Mo. 1-8-373/A, Chiran Forf Lane, Begumpet,

Hyderabad, 500003. india

C. Czarnikow Sugar [Indic) Private Limited o 43%
Indonesia - T T
Komplex Puri mutiara Biok AZ1-22, JL. Griva Utama,

Sunter Agung, Jokarfa, 14350 indonesic

PT Indo Fermex 49%
P.1. Jaya Fermex 49%
PTSama indah 9%
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Asociates, % haking
Israel

26, Harokmim st., Halon Azirelt Center Building B,israel

Sucarim (CLST)itd o o o 43%
Italy

Viey Borgogna, 2-2012Z, Milan, italy

Cramikow talia S L o n 43%
Kenya

{ & M Bank House, Second Ngong Avenue,

P£.O. Box 10517, Nairohi 00100, Kenya

Cramitow East Africa Umited o 43%
Mauritius

No 5 President John Kennedy Street,

Fort Louis, Maurifius

Sukpak L‘\)mired L - - - o 32_%
Mexico

Jaime Balmes #8 Loc. 3-A, Las Moralas

FPolanco,Méxica City, 11510, Mexico

C. Czarmikow Sugar (Mexico), S.A.de C.V. 43%
Czarnikow Servicios de Personales (Mexico), S.A. de

Cv. . . B _ 43%
New Zealand

of/o KFMG, 18 Vioduct Harbour Avenue, Marifime

Square, Auckland, New Zealand

New Food Coatings {New Zealand} Limited B 50%

Philippines

Unit A, 103 Excellence Avenue, Carmmeliay

Inclustial Pork 1, Canlubang, Calamba,

taguna, Phiippines

raw Food Coatings (Philppines) Inc. 50%
5F Don tacinto Bullding, Delo Rosa cor, Salcedo

Streets, Legaspf Village, 1229 Mokati City, Philippines

CZ Phiippines, Inc..
Singapore

3 Fhillip Street, #14-01 Royal Group Building,
Singapore 048693

C. Czamikow Sugar Pie, Limited

South Africa

I Giedhow Milf Road, Gledhaw, Kwadukuza, 4450,

Sauth Africa

Gledhow Sugar Comparny {Phy) timiled 30%

%

3%

Tanzania

7th Floor Amani Place, Ohio Streel, PO Box 38548, Dar
es-Sakaam, Tanzanic

Czamikow Tanzania Limited 43%
Msolwa Mill Office, Kidatau, Tanzania

Kilormbero Sugar Distributors Limited

Thailand

0% Moo 15, Teparak Rogd, Tambof Bangsaothong,
King Amphur Bangsaothong, Samutprakarn, Thalland
Newly Weds Foods (Thailand) Ltd 0%
1203, 12th Floor, Metopolis Building.

725 Sukhurmvit Road, North Klongfon, Wattana,

Bangkok, 10116, Thailand

_ X%

Czamikow (Thailand} Limited - . 43%
United States "

333 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 2860, Miami,

FL 33131 USA

C. Crzamikow Sugar Inc. - o 43%

Vietnam

5th Floor, IMC Tower, 62 Tan Quang Khai, Tan Dinh

Ward, District 1, Ha Chi Minh City, Vielnam

Czarmikow {Vietnam) Limited . _ . A3%
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Company balance sheet
at 17 September 2022

2022 Taom
rdle £m £m
Non-current assets
Investrment property 1 3 3
Investments in subsidiaries i 1,042 1.042
Investments in associates 3 3 2
Deferred fox assefs I A28
1,050 1,050
Curent assets ) o o o -
Trade and other receivables 5 920 676
Other investments 6 28 30
income tax g 5
Coshond cashequivalents 5 2
- e 1,014 823
Current liabilities -
Trade and other payables 7 (18) {7
Netcurrentassets 996 816
Non-current liabilities
Empoyee benefiis fapilfies R S U I _ {10
Net assels 2,039 1,854
Equity
Called up share capital ? - -
Share premium account 7 382 382
Retonedeamings 7 15T 1,474
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 2,039 1.856
The Company's profit for the 52 week period ended 17 September 2022 was £284m (53 week period ended 18
September 2021: £93m).
The financial statements on pages 73 to 78 were approved by the Board of directors on 12 January 2023 and were
signed on its behall by:
1
SR
/\ \AA
Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 17 Septermper 2022

Balance at 12 September 2020
Total éorhgrehenéi;é income
Frofit for the perlod

Other comprehensive income

share T Share Retainad - 1ot

capitgl premum earnnigs equity

&rr £ £ £m

- - 382 485 1.867
- - 93 23

- - 73 )

Total comprehensive @;orﬁe La’ the @oné
Transactions with owners

Balance at 18 Sepfemoer 2021

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the period

Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes

Transactions with 'owners
Dividends paid o equity sharehclders
Balance at 17 3eptember 2022

(o4 1194
1,474 1856
284 284

a 4

0 )

3 —— a— — 3_

287 287

.o Qo4 (104
1.457 2,039
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Accounting policies
tfor the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Basis of preparation
The tinancial slakements arc presented in sterling,
rounded to the nearest million. They are prepared under
the historical cost basis, except that Other Investments
are stated af their fair value, and in accordance with FRS
101 and the Companies Act 2006.

As permifted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under
that standard in relation to financial instruments, capital
management, presentation of comparative information in
respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash flow
statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of
assets and certain related party fransactions. Where
required, equivalent disclosures are given in the
consolidated financial statements.

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act
2004, a separate income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the Company has not been
inciuded in these financial statements. The principal
accounting policies adopted are descriced below. They
have all been applied consistently to all years presented.

Investment property
Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Impairment is determined by reference to
the fair value of property estimated either by
independent valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residual
value of major compenents of the property is less than
curent book value.,

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment,

Investments in associates
Investments in associates are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment,

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's investments in
subsidiaries and other assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
charge 1§ recognised in the income statement whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asseft.

Animpairment charge is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the new
carrying ameount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment charge had been
recognised.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company recognises financial assets and ligbilities
when it becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrument,

Trade and other recelvables

The Company records trade and other receivables initially
at fair value and thereafier at amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expeciation of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment trigger has
occurred.

Trade payables

Ihe Compuainy records trade poyables inttially at fair value
and thereafter at amortised cost. This generally results in
recognifion al nominal value.

Other investments

Equity investments where the Company does not have
significant influence, control or joint control are measured
at tair value through profit and loss {(FVTPL), and are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit and
loss,

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Company operates one defined coniribution and
one unfunded post-employment plan. For the unfunded
plan, the amount charged in the income statement is the
cost of benefits accruing to employees over the year, plus
any benefit improvements granted to members by the
Company during the year. It also includes interest
expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate
to the pension liability. The present value of liabilities is
disciosed as a liability In the balance sheet. Any related
deferred tax {to the extent recoverable) is disclosed
separately in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are
recognised immediately in cther comprehensive income.
Contributicns payable by the Company in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged to operating
profit as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax, Income tax s recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to
items taken directly to equity.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on taxable
income for the year, using taxrates encacted or
substantively enacted during the pericd, together with
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deterred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, providing for temporary
differences between the camying amounts of assets and
ligbilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalenis comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 Seplember 2022

1. Investment Property

-
At 18 September 2021 3
Addiions e L T
Al 17 September 2022 3

2. Investments in subsidiaries

e

Listed Unhsteg L

AL 18 September 2021 345 697 1042
Addifions L L L L T _._ =
At 17 September 2022 T o YT 897 1,042

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown at cost less amaounts written off, Investments include 403,341,215
ordinary shares of 5 15/22p {2021 - 403,341,215) each in Associctaed British Foods plc, equivalent 1o 50.9% of the ssued
shore copitol of that company, which is fisted on The London Stock Exchange. At 17 September 2022 ihe market value
of the holding was £5,342m {2021 - £7,623m). Associated British Foods pic s incorporated in Great Britlain and regisiered
in England. Through ifs subsidiary, Howard Investments Limited, the Company holds a further 28,173,893 {2021 -
28,173,893} shares in Associated British Foods plc, represeniing 3.6% of the issued share capitai of thal company. A list of
trading subsidiary undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statements. The holding
company structure is complicated and does not necessarily reflect the management grouping in which the companies
are listed.

3. Investments in associates

&m
At 18 September 2021 2
Reversal of impairment 1
At 17 September 2022 3

A list of associate undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statements.

At 18 Septemiper 2021 K]
Effect of changes In faxrate on income statement 1.
Al17 Seplember 2022 2

Finance Bill 2021 which was substantively enacted an 24 May 2021 increcsed the main cate of corporation tax in the LK
to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023, Deferred tax ligbiity on the baiance sheet has been medasured at 25% which is the
rate expected to apply when the tax liabillity is settled.

5. Trade and other receivables

""" T oo T T TaeaT T T gl
£m £

Amounts falling due within one year
Armounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 718 473
Ofnerdeblors e o - B S
920 476

The directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates to their fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

6. Other Investments

Total
Listea Jnlisted Other
investmen’s investments Invastments
£rn £m £
At 18 September 2021 29 1 30
Farvaleloss e e e o [0 R L) S i
At 17 Seplember 2022 28 - 28
The Groug classifies these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy cutlined on page 51. The table below
analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which thelr fair value measurement method is categorised for
Investments held at fair value through profit and loss:
- . 2] F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m im £m £m £ £ £ Lrn
Investrments designated FYTPL 28 - - 28 29 - 1 30
7. Trade and other payables
o ’ ) o - e s e e _-_2_025 202
£m £m
Amounts faling due within one year
Accruals and deferred income 1 1
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings S L.
18 7
The directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors approximates to their fair value.
8. Employee benetfits liabilities
e DD e e el e
At 12 September 2020 10
Cumrent service cost _
Actuarial gain -
At18september2021 o o ol 10
Curent service cost 1
Actuarial gain (4)
At 17 Septembsr 2022 7

The Company operates one unfunded post-employment plan which is accounted for in the same way as the Group's

defined benefit retirement schemes detailed in note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. Applicable actuarial

assumptions are stated on page 37. The Company’'s unfunded liability forms part of the Group's £29m {2021: £47m)
unfunded UK liabilities disclosed on page 39.

9. Capital and reserves
Share capital

- _Odeary ;Horés Heminal Véﬂuéﬂ

of 50p sacr £
Authorised - At 17 September 2022 and 18 September 2021 200,000 450,000
ssued and fully paid - At 17 September 2022 and 18 September 2021 842,022 431,011
Dividends
Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

10. Related parties

The Company has a controliing shareholder relationship with the trustees of the Garfield Weston Founddtion and with
certain other individuals who hold shares in the Campany. The Company has a reloted party relationship with its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and directors. In the course of normal operations. retated party transactions
entered into by the Company have been contracted on an arm's length basis.

Material transactions and year end balances with related parties {excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were as follows:

022 02

£000 £'000
Dividends paid by Witlington Investments Limited and Associated British Foods plc [ ABF')
and received in o beneficial capacity by:
fij Trustees of The Garfield Weston Foundaotion 3,85¢ 3,729
{iil Directors of Wittington Investrmenis Umited who are not Trustees of The Foundation 1,012 987
Amounts due from joint ventures and asscciates 11,090 12,318
Provision for doubtful debts on amounts due from joint ventures and associates (300) {360)

See note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for further details.

11. Other information
Emcluments of ditectars
Note 5 to the consclidated financial statements of the Group provides details of Directors remuneration.

Employees
The Company had an average of 32 employees in 2022 {2021 - 34].

Auditors’ fees

Note 4 to the consolidated financical statements of the Group provides details of the remuneration of the Company's
audifors on a Group basis.

12. Post Balance Sheet Event
on 15h December the Cirectors declared an interim dividend. The dividend of £78.50, tatal value of £48m, was paid
between the 6 and 9in January 2023 to shareholders on the register on 15 December 2022,
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